A MARION

His Worship the Mayor
Councillors

City of Marion

Notice of General Council Meeting

Council Chamber, Council Administration Centre
245 Sturt Road, Sturt

Tuesday, 25 October 2022 at 6.30 pm

The CEO hereby gives Notice pursuant to the provisions under Section 83 of the
Local Government Act 1999 that a General Council Meeting will be held.

A copy of the Agenda for this meeting is attached in accordance with Section 83 of
the Act.

Meetings of the Council are open to the public and interested members of this
community are welcome to attend. Access to the Council Chamber is via the main
entrance to the Administration Centre on Sturt Road, Sturt.

Tony Harrison

Chief Executive Officer
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1 Open Meeting

2 Kaurna Acknowledgement

We acknowledge the Kaurna people, the traditional custodians of this land and pay our respects to
their elders past and present.

3 Disclosure

All persons in attendance are advised that the audio of this General Council meeting will be
recorded and will be made available on the City of Marion website.

4 Elected Member Declaration of Interest (if any)

5 Confirmation of Minutes

5.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the General Council Meeting held on 13 September 2022

Report Reference GC221025R5.1
Originating Officer Business Support Officer - Governance and Council Support —

Cassidy Ryles
Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive — Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer — Tony Harrison

RECOMMENDATION

That the minutes of the General Council Meeting held on 13 September 2022 be taken as read and
confirmed.

ATTACHMENTS
1. G C 220913 - Final Minutes [5.1.1 - 9 pages]
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Minutes of the General Council Meeting

held on Tuesday, 13 September2022 at6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Council Administration Centre
245 Sturt Road, Sturt

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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PRESENT

His Worship the Mayor Kris Hanna
Councillor Tim Gard

Councillor Maggie Duncan Councillor Matthew Shilling
Councillor Luke Hutchinson

Councillor Bruce Hull Councillor Nathan Prior

Councillor Kendra Clancy (from 6.34pm) Councillor Jason Veliskou

Councillor Joseph Masika
In Attendance

Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

General Manager City Services - Ben Keen

Manager Office of the CEO - Kate McKenzie

Unit Manager Governance and Council Support - Victoria Moritz
Executive Officer to the Chief Executive - Dana Bartlett

1 Open Meeting

The Mayor opened the meeting at 6.30pm.

2 Kaurna Acknowledgement

We acknowledge the Kaurna people, the traditional custodians of this land and pay our respects to
their elders past and present.

3 Disclosure

All persons in attendance are advised that the audio of this General Council meeting will be recorded
and will be made available on the City of Marion website.

4 Elected Member Declaration of Interest (if any)

The Chair asked if any memberwished to disclose an interest in relation to any item being considered
at the meeting

The following interests were disclosed:

e Councillor Hull declared an actual conflict of interest in the item Code of Conduct

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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5 Confirmation of Minutes
Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Shilling

That the following items be moved en bloc:

¢ Confirmation of Minutes of the General Council Meeting held on 23 August 2022
¢ Confirmation of Minutes of the Special General Council Meeting held on 30 August 2022

Carried Unanimously

5.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the General Council Meeting held on 23 August 2022

Report Reference GC220913R5.1
Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Shilling

That the minutes of the General Council Meeting held on 23 August 2022 be taken as read and
confirmed.

Carried Unanimously

5.2 Confirmation of Minutes of the Special General Council Meeting held on 30 August

2022
Report Reference GC220913R5.2

Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Shilling
That the minutes of the Special General Council Meeting held on 30 August 2022 be taken as read
and confirmed.

Carried Unanimously
6 Adjourned Items - Nil
7 Deputations - Nil

8 Petitions

8.1 Petition - BMX Track - Central & Fryer Avenues Hallett Cove

Report Reference GC220913P8.1
Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Councillor Gard
That Council:

1. Notes the petition from Mr Anthony Farrugia.

2. (a) Notes (i) the recent and current upgrades to Central Avenue Reserve and nearby Fryer
Street Reserve to the value of $510,500, (ii) the scheduled Central Avenue Reserve 2 upgrade

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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scheduled for 2028/29 to the value of $402,400, and (iii) the new pump tracks in Hallett Cove
and Marino, and therefore retains the current scope and timing of the Central Avenue Reserve
2 upgrade as per the Open Space Plan.
3. Advises the head petitioner/s of the resolutions of Council.
Carried
Councillor Hull called a Division
Those for: Councillors Masika, Veliskou, Clancy, Prior, Hutchinson, Shilling, Duncan and Gard
Those against: Councillor Hull
Carried
9 Committee Recommendations - Nil
10 Confidential Items
10.1 Cover Report - Code of Conduct
Report Reference GC220913F10.1

Councillor Hull declared an actual conflict of interest in the item.

Mayor Hanna declared a material conflict of interest in the item as both Councillor Hull and Mayor
Hanna have nominated as a Mayoral candidates in the upcoming 2022 Local Government Elections.

6.46pm the Mayor vacated thar Chair and left the meeting
6.48pm the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Hutchinson took the Chair

6.48pm Councillor Hull left the meeting

Moved Councillor Gard Seconded Councillor Shilling

That pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999, the Council orders that
all persons present, with the exception of the following persons: Chief Executive Officer, Manager
Office of the CEO, Unit Manager Governance and Council Support and Governance Officer, be
excluded from the meeting as the Council receives and considers information relating to a Code of
Conduct Matter upon the basis that the Council is satisfied that the requirement for the meeting to be
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed by the need to keep consideration of
the matter confidential given the information relates to the conduct of a Council Member.

Carried Unanimously
6.48pm the meeting went into confidence

6.49pm Councillor Hull re-entered the meeting
6.51pm Councillor Hull left the meeting

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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Moved Councillor Veliskou Seconded Councillor Clancy

That in accordance with Section 91(7) and (9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders
that this report, Code of Conduct, any appendices and the minutes arising from this report having
been considered in confidence under Section 90(2) and (3)(a) of the Act, except when required to
effect or comply with Council’s resolution(s) regarding this matter, be kept confidential and not
available for public inspection for a period of 12 months from the date of this meeting. This
confidentiality order will be reviewed at the General Council Meeting in December 2022.

Carried
7.04pm the meeting came out of confidence
11 Corporate Reports for Decision

7.05pm the Mayor re-entered the meeting
7.05pm Councillor Hull re-entered the meeting

The Deputy Mayor vacated the Chair
The Mayor resumed the Chair

11.1 Elections for the positions of Representative Members of the LGFA Board of Trustees

Report Reference GC220913R11.1
Moved Councillor Veliskou Seconded Councillor Duncan

That formalmeeting procedures be suspended to allow Council Members to participate in preferential
voting and for the votes to be calculated for the items Elections for the positions of Representative
Members of the LGFA Board of Trustees and Election Process for LGA President & GAROC
Representatives.

Carried Unanimously
7.06pm formal meeting procedures suspended
7.11pm formal meeting procedures resumed

The Mayor sought and was granted leave of the meeting to vary the order of agenda items and
consider the Corporate Reports for Information / Noting next on the agenda and return to the
items Elections for the positions of Representative Members of the LGFA Board of Trustees and
Election Process for LGA President & GAROC Representatives at the conclusion of the Corporate
reports for Information / Noting.

12 Corporate Reports for Information/Noting
Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan
That the following Corporate Reports for Information / Noting be moved en bloc:

¢ Questions Taken on Notice Register

¢ Disability Accessand Inclusion 2021-22 Implementation Update

¢ Reconciliation Action Plan 2021-22 Implementation Update
¢ Public Health Implementation Update 2020-2022

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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¢ Quarterly Risk Report
¢ WHS Monthly Performance Report

Carried Unanimously

12.1 Questions Taken on Notice Register

Report Reference GC220913R12.1
Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan
That Council:
1. Notes the report ‘Questions Taken on Notice Register’.

Carried Unanimously

12.2 Disability Access and Inclusion 2021-22 Implementation Update

Report Reference GC220913R12.2

Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan
That Council:
1. Note the DAIP 2021-22 Implementation Report
2. Note the 2021-22 Department of Human Services online survey City of Marion

responses (Attachment 2)
Carried Unanimously

12.3 Reconciliation Action Plan 2021 - 22 Implementation Update

Report Reference GC220913R12.3

Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan
That Council:
1. Note the 2021-22 RAP Implementation Report

2. Note the next RAP development process (Attachment 1)
Carried Unanimously

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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12.4 Public Health Implementation Update 2020-2022

Report Reference GC220913R12.4

Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan

That Council:

1. Note the Progress Report on Public Health Planning (1 July 2020 - 30 June 2022) to be
submitted to the Chief Public Health Officer (Attachment 1).

Carried Unanimously

12.5 Quarterly Risk Report
Report Reference GC220913R12.5

Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan

That Council:

1. Notes Corporate Risk Register Report (Attachment 1) and provides feedback on the
review outcomes.

2. Notes the changes made to the DTPO1 risk with the completed treatments being
implemented as controls as queried by the FRAC on the 17 May 2022.

3. Notes the risk rating changes for PCUO1 moving from Medium to High risk, as detailed
in Attachment 2.

Carried Unanimously

12.6 WHS Monthly Performance Report
Report Reference GC220913R12.6

Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Duncan
That Council:

1. Notes the report and statistical data contained therein.

Carried Unanimously

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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Moved Councillor Masika Seconded Councillor Veliskou

That the following Corporate Reports for Decision be moved en bloc:

¢ Elections for the positions of Representatives Member of the LGFA Board of Trustees
o Selection Process for LGA President & GAROC Representatives

Carried

11.1 Elections for the positions of Representative Members of the LGFA Board of Trustees

Report Reference GC220913R11.1

Moved Councillor Masika Seconded Councillor Veliskou

That Council votes for the appointment of;

1. Anette Martin
2. Nigel Graves

To the Local Government Authority Board of Trustees.

Carried

11.2 Election Process for LGA President & GAROC Representatives
Report Reference GC220913R11.2

Moved Councillor Masika Seconded Councillor Veliskou

That Council votes for the appointment of:
1. Votes for the appointment of Erika Vickery for LGA President

2. Notes that Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross and Councillor Luke Hutchinson are elected
to GAROC South Regional Grouping.

Carried
13 Workshop / Presentation Items - Nil
14 Motions With Notice - Nil

15 Questions With Notice - Nil

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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16 Motions Without Notice

16.1 Condolences on the passing of Her Majesty the Queen

Report Reference GC220913M16.1
Moved Councillor Shilling Seconded Councillor Gard

The City of Marion expresses its sadness at the death of Her Majesty The Queen; and conveysits
sincere condolences to His Majesty King Charles Ill and the Royal Family on behalf of residents of
the City of Marion.

Carried Unanimously
17 Questions Without Notice - Nil
18 Other Business - Nil
19 Meeting Closure

The meeting was declared closed at 7.26pm.

CONFIRMED THIS 25 DAY OF OCTOBER 2022

CHAIRPERSON

GC220913 - General Council Meeting - 13 September 2022
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6 Communications
Nil

6.1 Elected Member Verbal Communications

Page 14

In accordance with the Code of Practice - Procedures at Council Meeting 2017/18 an Elected
Member has the right to speak for up to two minutes in the second meeting of Council every second
month from February (with the exception of caretaker period).

6.2 CEO and Executive Communication Report

Report Reference

GC221025R6.2

Date Activity Attended By
Meeting | Studio Nine Architects
Principal Architect and Interior .

22 August 2022 Designer re City of Marion Tony Lines
Administration Refurbishment

26 August 2022 Meeting | Lomluse Mllller-Frost MP Tony Harrison
re General discussion
Industry Supply Media Launch |

29 August 2022 Hydrogen Park South Tony Harrison, Tony Lines
Australia (HyP SA)

29 August 2022 Boothby Jobs and Skills Tony Harrison

Roundtable

31 August 2022

Meeting | Studio Nine Architects
Principal Architect and Interior
Designer re City of Marion
Administration Refurbishment

Tony Lines

1 September 2022

Meeting | Mayor Kris Hanna, Tony
Harrison, Marteine Edward and
Lachlan Monfries (Scentre Group)
re Scentre Group strategic vision
and opportunities for Marion and
also provided a high level
overview of proposed parking
options.

Tony Harrison

Meeting | General

2 September 2022 Managers/Directors Network Ben Keen
Planning — LG Professionals
Queen’s Jubilee Ceremonial

2 September 2022 Planting | City of Marion Elected Tony Lines
Members

3 September 2022 MC | Citizenship Ceremony Ben Keen

7 September 2022 Meeting and Site Tour of the City | Tony Lines

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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of Salisbury | Property and
Buildings Manager and Facilities
Manager re City of Marion
Administration Refurbishment

12 September 2022

Community Leadership Program
Graduation Event

Tony Harrison

19 September 2022

Meeting | Neilly Group re the City
of Marion Water Business
Strategy

Ben Keen

20 September 2022

2022 Australian Local
Government CEO Index Forum

Tony Harrison

20 September 2022

Meeting with City of Melbourne re
Greenline Project

Tony Harrison

26 September 2022

Meeting | Julian Whiting re Water
Business Strategic Review

Tony Harrison

Meeting | Studio Nine Architects
Principal Architect and Interior

27 September 2022 Designer re City of Marion Tony Lines
Administration Refurbishment
27 September 2022 Meeting | City of Charles Sturt re Ben Keen

Project Management

27 September 2022

Meeting | Tony Harrison, Kate
McKenzie, Liz Watts and Glen
Winkler re insights

Tony Harrison

28 September 2022

Meeting | Associates of Pelligra
and the Mayor re Ice Arena

Tony Harrison, Tony Lines

28 September 2022

Cross Council Open Space
Service Review | Meeting with
CEOs of Cities of Marion, Charles
Sturt and Pt Adelaide Enfield

Tony Harrison, Ben Keen

29 September 2022

Meeting | City of Marion and the
Seacliff Group re Seacliff Village

Tony Lines

30 September 2022

Meeting and Site Tour of the City
of Tree Tea Gully | Group
Coordinator Operations, Fleet and
Property and Manager
Organisational Development re
City of Marion Administration
Refurbishment

Tony Lines

30 September 2022

Meeting | Turner and Townsend
Associate re Sam Willoughby
BMX

Tony Lines

30 September 2022

Meeting | General
Managers/Directors Network
Planning — LG Professionals

Ben Keen

6 October 2022

Meeting | Tonsley Project Control
Group monthly meeting with City

Ben Keen, Tony Lines

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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of Marion, Peet Limited and
Renewal SA

6 October 2022

Meeting with Salesforce re
introduction meeting

Tony Harrison

Meeting | General
Managers/Directors Network
discussion on Project

7 October 2022 Management and Asset Ben Keen
Management Systems — LG
Professionals
Meeting | City of Marion and

10 October 2022 Happy Valley and Cove BMX Club| Tony Lines

Representative

11 October 2022

Meeting and MCC Tour | City of
Cockburn visitors; The Mayor,
Acting CEO and Economic
Development Manager re meet
and greet and general discussion

Tony Harrison, Ben Keen, Tony
Lines

11 October 2022

Meeting | Tony Harrison, Gordon
Parberry and Kaliopi Eleni re
introduction meeting

Tony Harrison

Meeting | City of Marion and
Brightly/Siemens on Asset

12 October 2022 . Ben Keen
Management project scope and
process
Meeting | General

14 October 2022 Managers/Directors Network Ben Keen

Planning — LG Professionals

18 October 2022

Event | The future of Hallett Cove
Shopping Centre

Tony Harrison

19 October 2022

Demonstration with EPM Partners
on pmo365 Deep Dive

Ben Keen

19 October 2022

Public Sector Network Future
Cities and Regions Roadshow
Adelaide

Tony Harrison

20 October 2022

Meeting | Tony Harrison, Kate
McKenzie and Tony Gray (JLTA)

Tony Harrison

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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7 Adjourned Items - Nil
8 Deputations - Nil
9 Petitions - Nil

10 Committee Recommendations

10.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the Planning and Development Committee Meeting held on
6 September 2022

Report Reference GC221025R10.1
Originating Officer Project Support Officer (Development) — Anne Mitchell

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive - Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this report is to facilitate the receiving and noting of the minutes of the Planning and
Development Committee meeting held on 6 September 2022.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A summary of items considered by the Committee Members is noted below.

Reports for Discussion
¢ Code Amendments Update
e Southern Suburbs Residential Code Amendment
e Tiny Houses

Reports for Noting
o Development Services Activities Update
e Land Development Projects Update
¢ North South Corridor Update

Workshop/Presentation items
e Point Data Workshop

Business Arising
e The committee discussed the scheduled 1 November 2022 meeting and determined
that due to a lack of items the meeting is not required.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Receives and notes the minutes of the Planning and Development Committee meeting
held on 6 September 2022.

2. Notes that the 1 November 2022 Planning and Development Committee meeting be
cancelled due to a lack of items.

3. Notes that separate reports will be brought to Council for consideration of any
recommendations from the Planning and Development Committee.

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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1. PDC220906 - Final Minutes [10.1.1 - 8 pages]

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 10.1.1 Page 19

A MARION

Minutes of the Planning and Development Committee
held on Tuesday, 6 September 2022 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Council Administration Centre

245 Sturt Road, Sturt

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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His Worship the Mayor Kris Hanna

Councillor Kendra Clancy (Presiding Member)
Councillor Luke Hutchinson

Councillor Jason Veliskou

Councillor Joseph Masika

In Attendance

Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

General Manager City Development - Tony Lines

Manager Development and Regulatory Services - Warwick Deller-Coombs
Chief Executive Officer of Point Data — George Giannakodakis

Senior Policy Planner — David Melhuish

Development Officers — Kristen Sheffield & Kai Wardle

Manager Engineering, Assets and Environment — Mathew Allen
Project Support Officer (Development) - Anne Mitchell
Executive Officer to the General Manager City Development - Mina Caruso

1 Open Meeting

The Chair opened the meeting at 6:31pm.

2 Kaurna Acknowledgement

We acknowledge the Kaurna people, the traditional custodians of this land and pay our respects to
their elders past and present.

3 Elected Member Declaration of Interest (if any)

The Chair asked if any member wished to disclose an interest in relation to any item being
considered at the meeting

Nil interests were disclosed.

The Chair sought and was granted leave of the meeting to vary the order of the agenda and
consider the Point Data Workshop (PDC220906R9.1) item next on the agenda.

9 Workshop / Presentation ltems

9.1 Point Data Workshop

Report Reference PDC220906R9.1

The Manager Development and Regulatory Services introduced Mr George Giannakodakis, the CEO
of Point Data. Mr Giannakodakis provided a presentation demonstrating the capability of the Point

PDC220906 - Planning and Development Committee - 6 September 2022
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Data analytics tool and gave members the opportunity to discuss how this may be used to counteract
and model issues arising from infill development, as well as other applicable uses.

The following was noted during the presentation:

The use of technology and data and how it can assist in making better planning policy
decisions.

Housing prices in Adelaide rose sharply during Covid and is recently showing a small
adjustment back down.

These high prices mean developers are seeking to push the boundaries of the Planning and
Design (P&D) Code.

The ability to model and present climate risk layers, such as flooding and bushfire, for banks
and insurance companies which could also be useful to councils.

Ability to match development sites to specific home designs, then apply this information to
the streetscape to measure traffic, visual, and green benefits, as well as adverse impacts.
Can use criteria from the P&D Code to apply a planning algorithm. This can display which
properties have the potential for redevelopment, including the ability to narrow by dwelling
type (e.g., semi-detached, row, group).

Highlighted the need to account for the market as well community drivers such as
affordability, and supply in desirable areas.

Machine learning also considers surrounding land uses, such as park and recreation
facilities.

The following discussion points were noted:

Infill development is subjective, and there are differing views about what is considered good
versus poor development outcomes.

Could amend the P&D Code to counter the infill and investigate ways to better apply and
enforce the design guidelines.

In denser developments there are ways to increase open and green spaces.

Narrow streets are creating parking and vehicle access issues. Currently don’t have the data
on street widths but can provide modelling and data to support a Council position on certain
types of developments and designs based on street width.

Street parking and how this can change over time with the number of parks available on the
street decreasing. This can be measured; it also would need to take into account other
information such as household size. Given these likely changes over time, data could support
Council in seeking changes requiring more off-street carparking.

Parking permits should be assessed based on the number of carparks available to the dwelling
off-street. We currently only apply permits where there is timed parking.

Some developments are maximising potential and profit over great outcomes. Would like to
encourage good development and data could potentially point out marginal areas.

Clusters of new development can be problematic; this again is subjective as it can be achieved
successfully. A precinct plan approach may assist with achieving better outcomes.

The Code currently doesn’t allow for larger blocks to maximise their ability to provide high
quality infill development or encourage the amalgamation of sites.

There is a challenge achieving affordable and well-designed developments.

Mixed use developments are not occurring in areas where they would work well. It was noted
that this could potentially be restricted by the market and whether people are interested
purchasing such properties.

There is interest in tiny house developments, but the flexibility isn’t there in the regulations.

If Council is interested in testing certain policy planning scenarios, Point data can enable this.

PDC220906 - Planning and Development Committee - 6 September 2022
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Additionally, it was noted that Council Panel Member, Ben Russ, works for Point Data but has not

participated in or engaged in this process in any way.

The Planning and Development Committee participated in the workshop and thanked Mr George
Giannakodakis for his presentation.
4 Confirmation of Minutes

4.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the Planning and Development Committee Meeting held on
5 July 2022

Report Reference PDC220906R4.1

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the minutes of the Planning and Development Committee Meeting held on 5 July 2022 be
taken as read and confirmed.
Carried

5 Business Arising

5.1 Business Arising Statement - Action Items

Report Reference PDC220906R5.1

The following discussion points were noted:

o That the 1 November 2022 Planning and Development meeting be cancelled due to a lack of
items.

o Whilst there are only standing items currently scheduled for 1 November it may be helpful for
potential new Council Members to have a meeting early in their term to enable them to be
across development issues.

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Councillor Masika

That the Planning and Development Committee:
1. Notes the business arising statement, meeting schedule and upcoming items.

2. Recommend to Council that the Planning and Development Committee meeting scheduled
for the 1st of November 2022 be cancelled due to a lack of items.

Carried
6 Confidential Items - Nil

7 Reports for Discussion

7.1 Code Amendments Update
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The Manager Development and Regulatory Services provided a brief update on recent and active
Code Amendments.

The following discussion points were noted:
o Possible changes have been highlighted through the Morphettville masterplan; however
details have not yet been provided.
o The need for stables is being investigated and will impact what form stables will take in the
masterplan.

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Councillor Masika

That the Planning and Development Committee:
1. Notes the report.

Carried

7.2 Southern Suburbs Residential Code Amendment

Report Reference PDC220906R7.2

The Manager Development and Regulatory Services and the Senior Policy Planner gave a brief
overview of the ‘Southern Suburbs Residential Policy — Code Amendment’ and the proposed
community consultation.

The following discussion points were noted:

e The engagement plan is being reviewed with the intent to present it to the new Council as
soon as practicable.

o There are known issues with drainage and stormwater which will need to be addressed as the
Code Amendment progresses.

o The intent is to encourage opportunities for development on flatter land and to deter it on
steeper land where good outcomes are less likely to be realised. This can be achieved by
increasing site area and frontage requirements for sloping land.

o The preference is that no Deemed to Satisfy (DTS) developments are allowed on sloping land
for Group and Row dwellings.

o The potential for applying the same frontage criteria for detached and semi-detached
dwellings.

e That there is clay and reactive soils in some areas.

Councillor Veliskou declared a perceived conflict of interest due to owning a property located within
the Southern Suburbs Residential Policy Area and left the meeting.

7:44pm Councillor Veliskou left the meeting.

o Ideally would like to minimise the likelihood of houses blocking the views of other houses when
developing on sloping land, by encouraging gaps between roofing and certain roofing styles.
However, this would require a change in policy within the Code that is unlikely to be supported
by PLUS. As part of a Code Amendment, the height, frontage and site areas can be amended,
however changes to other policy factors are generally not supported.
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o The zone criteria cannot be changed. To achieve the above it would require adding a new
zone or sub-zone to the suite of zones in the Code. However, a new zone policy might not
even achieve this.

e Council previously proposed five gradients however the State Government required this be
reduced.

e This area was originally proposed as all General Neighbourhood Zone, but several councils
indicated that the P&D Code did not account for sloping land in metro areas and the Hills
Neighbourhood Zoning was then created to address this.

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Councillor Masika

That the Planning and Development Committee:

1. Considers the report; in particular, the spatial changes to the Hills Neighbourhood Zone, the
proposed amendments to the slope-related policy within that zone, and the associated
Community Engagement Plan/process.

2. Recommends that Council endorses the amendments to the Planning and Design
Code proposed within the ‘Southern Suburbs Residential Policy - Code Amendment as
being appropriate for community consultation.

3. Recommends that Council endorses the Community Engagement Plan/process.

Carried

7:58pm Councillor Veliskou re-entered the meeting.

7.3 Tiny Houses

Report Reference PDC220906R7.3

The following discussion points were noted:

e The Code in its current form doesn'’t allow for the clustering of tiny houses on one site. It could
potentially have its place, but the flexibility isn’t there to allow for this type of development at
present.

e There is interest in providing affordable accommodation similar to a cluster of tiny houses,
such as converted shipping containers but as they would each be considered as a dwelling in
their own right it isn’t allowed.

e The code should look to include design criteria for tiny house developments as there are
examples of this type of development being attractive and affordable.

o Potential for a large dwelling with shared facilities and numerous bedrooms. Shared housing
development opportunities could be investigated by the new Council.

o The market will determine what place these alternatives have in the housing sector, and it was
noted they share similarities with long term caravan park sites.

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Councillor Masika
That the Planning and Development Committee:
1. Notes the report.

Carried Unanimously
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Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the following reports be moved en bloc:
o Development Services Activities Update (PDC220906R8.1)
e Land Development Projects Update (PDC220906R8.2)
o North South Corridor Update (PDC220906R8.3)
Carried

8 Reports for Noting

8.1 Development Services Activities Update

Report Reference PDC220906R8.1

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the Planning and Development Committee:

1. Notes the report.
Carried

8.2 Land Development Projects Update

Report Reference PDC220906R8.2

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the Planning and Development Committee:

1. Notes the report.
Carried

8.3 North South Corridor Update

Report Reference PDC220906R8.3

Moved Councillor Hutchinson Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the Planning and Development Committee:
1. Notes the report.

Carried

10 Other Business

Cancellation of 1 November 2022 Committee Meeting
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Mayor Hanna noted that at the Special General Council Meeting held 28 September 2021 the
Committee dates were specified for 2022, confirming that a resolution is needed by Council to
cancel the Planning and Development Meeting scheduled for 1 November 2022,

Parking of Caravans
Clarification was sought regarding restrictions on the parking of a caravan in a public parking bay in
an Oaklands Park street.

ACTION: Manager Development and Regulatory Services to supply the committee with
information regarding caravan parking restrictions.

Improvements/changes to urban infill planning/design
Further information was sought regarding the list of design features discussed in the Code
consultation process two years ago and if these must be included with new dwellings.

The following was noted and discussed:

o During the consultation phase specific design criteria was proposed, such as eaves,
windows facing the street, porticos and articulated facades. The P&D Code was going to
stipulate that a certain number of these criteria must be met. This would be a worthy addition
to the design review.

o The Deemed to Satisfy (DTS) criteria covers this to some degree. Design features that were
implemented and were envisaged to be good design outcomes are applied with DTS
developments however performance assessed developments do not require the same
criteria. This will be fed back as part of the Expert Panel Review of the SA Planning System.

The Committee thanked the Chair Councillor Kendra Clancy.

The Committee noted this will be Senior Policy Planner, David Melhuish’s last Planning and
Development Committee meeting and thanked him for his contributions.

11 Meeting Closure
The meeting was declared closed at 8:15pm.

CONFIRMED THIS 1 DAY OF NOVEMBER 2022

CHAIRPERSON

PDC220906 - Planning and Development Committee - 6 September 2022

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



A MARION

10.2 Confirmation of Minutes of the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee Meeting held on 11
October 2022

Report Reference GC221025R10.2

Originating Officer Business Support Officer - Governance and Council Support —
Cassidy Ryles

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive - Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE
The purpose of this report is to facilitate the receiving and noting of the minutes of the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee meeting held on 11 October 2022.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A summary of items considered by the Committee Members is noted below.

Reports for Discussion

Council Member Report

Independence of Council Authors

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Meeting with the External Auditors in Confidence

Asset Valuations

Business Continuity Program Annual Report 2021-22

Finance, Risk and Audit Committee Annual Report to Council 2021/22
Internal Audit Program — Implementation of Recommendations
Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023

Reports for Noting

Annual HSE Report

Australian Service Excellence Standards — Update
DTP — Quarterly Status Update

Annual Investment Report 2021-22

Debtors Report

Workshop/Presentation Items
o City of Marion 2022 Asset Management Maturity Assessment Results

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Receives and notes the minutes of the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee meeting
held on 11 October 2022.
2. Notes that separate reports will be brought to Council for consideration of any
recommendations from the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee.
ATTACHMENTS

1. FRA C 221011 - Final Minutes [10.2.1 - 13 pages]
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Minutes of the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee
held on Tuesday, 11 October 2022 at 2.00 pm
Council Chamber, Council Administration Centre
245 Sturt Road, Sturt
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Ms Emma Hinchey (Chair)
Ms Nicolle Rantanen

Mr David Papa

Councillor Maggie Duncan

In Attendance

Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

General Manager City Services - Ben Keen

General Manager City Development - Tony Lines

Chief Financial Officer - Ray Barnwell

Manager Office of the CEO - Kate McKenzie

Unit Manager Governance and Council Support - Victoria Moritz
Manager IT Operations - Micheal Bowden

Unit Manager Strategy and Risk - Maddie Frew

Risk Business Partner - Tania Del Torre

Unit Manager -Statutory Finance and Payroll - Andrew Doyle
Tim Muhlhausler — Galpins

Juliano Freitas - Galpins

Guest Speaker
University of Newcastle, Dr Trevor Seymour-Jones

1 Open Meeting
The Chair opened the meeting at 2.00pm.

2 Kaurna Acknowledgement

We acknowledge the Kaurna people, the traditional custodians of this land and pay our respects to
their elders past and present.

3 Elected Member Declaration of Interest (if any)

The Chair asked if any member wished to disclose an interest in relation to any item being
considered at the meeting

The following interests were disclosed:

e NIL
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4 Confirmation of Minutes

Moved Councillor Duncan Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the minutes of the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee Meeting held on 16 August 2022 be
taken as read and confirmed.
Carried Unanimously

5 Business Arising

The Committee noted the report. Clarification was sought on the process around the CEO Credit Card
Statement to confirm the Mayor was required to sign off on the statement and not just review.
Management confirmed the process in place was for the Mayor to physically sign off on this.

The Committee questioned the revised due date relating to Item 2 around the Service Review
Program and sought commentary around overdue items. Management advised the Service Review
Program is progressing with the other two Councils in preparation of this to be presented back to the
Committee. Management also confirmed other revised due dates were not of concern and there was
no risk within these items.

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Mr Papa

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:
1. Notes the business arising statement, meeting schedule and upcoming items.

Carried Unanimously

6 Confidential Items

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Mr Papa

That pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)(e) of the Local Government Act 1999, the Council orders that
all persons present, with the exception of the following persons: Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, General Manager City Development, General Manager City Services, General
Manager Corporate Services, Manager Office of the Chief Executive, Unit Manager Governance and
Council Support, Unit Manager Strategy and Risk, Risk Business Partner, be excluded from the
meeting as the Council receives and considers information relating to Fraud and Corruption 2021-22
Report upon the basis that the Council is satisfied that the requirement for the meeting to be
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed by the need to keep consideration of
the matter confidential given the information relates to matters affecting the security of the council.
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2.04pm the meeting went into confidence

Carried Unanimously

. Seconded Ms Rantanen
Moved Councillor Duncan

In accordance with Section 91(7) and (9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Committee orders
that this report, Fraud and Corruption 2021-22 Report, any appendices and the minutes arising from
this report having been considered in confidence under Section 90(2) and (3)(e) of the Act, except
when required to effect or comply with Council’s resolution(s) regarding this matter, be kept
confidential and not available for public inspection for a period of 12 months upon which a review will
be conducted. This confidentiality order will be reviewed at the General Council Meeting in December
2022.

Carried Unanimously
2.13 pm the meeting came out of confidence

Moved Councillor Duncan Seconded Mr Papa

That pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999, the Council orders that
all persons present, with the exception of the following persons: Chief Executive Officer, General
Manager City Development, General Manager City Services, General Manager Corporate Services,
Manager of the Office of the CEO, Chief Financial Officer, Manager City Activation, Unit Manager
Governance and Council Support, Unit Manager Strategy and Risk and Risk Business Partner, be
excluded from the meeting as the Council receives and considers information relating to Sam
Willoughby BMX Track Claim Progress Update, upon the basis that the Council is satisfied that the
requirement for the meeting to be conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed by
the need to keep consideration of the matter confidential given the information relates to commercial
and financial information.

Carried Unanimously
2.14pm the meeting went into confidence

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Councillor Duncan

In accordance with Section 91(7) and (9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Committee orders
that this report, Sam Willoughby BMX Track Claim Progress Update, any appendices and the minutes
arising from this report having been considered in confidence under Section 90(2) and (3)(b) of the
Act, except when required to effect or comply with Council’s resolution(s) regarding this matter, be
kept confidential and not available for public inspection for a period of 12 months upon which a review
will be conducted. This confidentiality order will be reviewed at the General Council Meeting in
December 2022.

Carried Unanimously
2.29pm the meeting came out of confidence

7 Reports for Discussion
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Moved Councillor Duncan Seconded Ms Rantanen

That pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999, the Committee orders
that all persons present, with the exception of the following persons: Chief Executive Officer, General
Manager City Services, General Manager City Development, Chief Financial Officer, Manager
Engineering, Assets and Environment, Manager Office of the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Unit Manager Governance and Council Support and Governance Officer, be excluded from the
meeting as the Committee receives and considers information relating to an update on the City of
Marion Water Business, upon the basis that the Committee is satisfied that the requirement for the
meeting to be conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed by the need to keep
consideration of the matter confidential given the information relates to matters that may impact
commercial contracts with 3rd parties.

Carried Unanimously

2.29pm the meeting went into confidence

The Committee went into confidence and a brief overview was provided on the following Confidential
Item from the Elected Member Report:

e City of Marion Water Business Update (SGC220823F8.2)

2.30pm the meeting came out of confidence.

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Councillor Duncan

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Notes this report.

Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Notes the statement provided by Council’'s Auditor attesting to their independence in
accordance with the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 for
the 2021-22 financial year (Attachment 2).

2. Notes that the CEO will be signing a statement that Council's external
auditor Galpins maintained their independence in accordance with the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 for the 2021-22 financial year.
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3. Endorses the Chairperson signing a statement that Council's external
auditor Galpins maintained their independence in accordance with the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 for the 2021-22 financial year.

Carried Unanimously

The Chief Financial Officerintroduced the item and provided a summary of the City of Marion’s Annual
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022. Council achieved an Operating
Surplus of $0.542m compared to an operating surplus of $0.256m for 2020-21. The key factors
contributing to the movement in operating surplus are detailed in Attachment 2 (Analytical Review -).
The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been completed with
Council's Auditors indicating they expect to issue an unmodified audit opinion, subject to subsequent
events review up to the date of the audit opinion and receipt of management's signed representation
letters.

The Committee provided the following comments:

e Sought confirmation on the Asset Revaluation movements and the application of unit rate
increases on infrastructure assets revaluation with Management confirming this was applied
with the desktop infrastructure revaluation assessment.

e The Committee queried the plan to lift the renewal ratio. Moving forward, the renewal ratio will
be close to 90 — 100%, however will may pull back in times of focus on new infrastructure.

e Management commented on the CoMPAS which includes $73m - $75m of renewal and
upgrades built in over 10 years. With the CoOMPAS, heightened levels of governance and due
diligence, we should see this increase and will build more predictability into the regime.

e The DTP projects were discussed noting increased operational costs on prior year. The Chief
Financial Officer commented the increase cost in relation to the DTP program is spread over
three years commenced in back half of 2020-21 and in full implementation in 2021-22
impacting the increase in cost on prior year.

e It was noted that there is no additional notes required in the statements in relation to the
impacts of COVID-19 with the organisation operating business as usual now.

e The Committee questioned the description in the report of the Asset Funding Renewal and
thought we had moved towards a using the targeted renewal expenditure in calculating the
ratio. It was confirmed that we use the targeted renewal expenditure as the denominator in
the ratio as stated correctly in the Financial Statements and that the description in the report
itself should be changed to reflect that.

e It was noted the interest rate used for borrowings in the Long-Term Financial Plan is 4.85%
and will be adjusted to cater for interest rate movements since adoption in the next iteration.

e The Committee queried the reduction in the risk incentive and whether this was related to
performance. Management advised this relates to the reimbursement of costs related to risk
related activities. Special distribution schemes can be applied for specific projects it they meet
criteria. Planning is underway for 2023/24 and this can be canvassed in an upcoming meeting
with the scheme.

e It was noted there was an increase in CHSP grant funding and the Committee queried what
this was for. Chief Financial Officer advised this grant was for Emergency Support for Covid
that we had applied for.

e The Committee also noted in the functions note the $1.9m increase in cost for Governance
function. Staff advised this includes a direct allocation for costs associated to the DTP. Rather
than spreading these across many other functions and distorting the comparatives, they have
been allocated as a once off expenses in Governance under organisational excellence.
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Commented on the short-term deposits and queried whether we were exploring longer term
deposits with the average around 90 days. Staff provided reassurance that they are exploring

these longer periods. The shorter period was preferred while rates were low and longer-term
investments is applied on a cashflow requirement basis which some recent deposits being

pushed out to 180 days.

Moved Councillor Duncan Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1.

Recommendsto Council that the audited Annual Financial Statements for the yearended
30 June 2022, as included at Attachments 3-4, be adopted.

Notes Galpins Audit Completion Report, as included at Attachment 5.

Notes the comparative analysis to prior year audited Annual Financial Statements and
original adopted 2021-22 budget (Analytical Review), as included at Attachment 2.

Page 34

Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1.

Pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)(g) of the Local Government Act 1999, orders
that all persons present, be excluded from the meeting, with the exception
of Tim Muhlhausler from Galpins, as the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee meets with
Council's External Auditors, on the basis that the Finance and Audit Committee is
satisfied that the requirement for the meeting to be conducted in a place open to the
public has been outweighed by the need to keep consideration of the matter confidential
given the information relates to commercial information of the Council.

Include the following comments within the minutes:

The committee met with the external financial auditors in camera and discussed the
audit process and that it was a relatively smooth process for their first year. They noted
the work they had performed on the asset valuations and the depreciation charges. They
noted some delays in receiving initial information but advised that staff were very

cooperative overall.

Carried Unanimously

2.49pm the meeting went into confidence
3.27pm the meeting came out of confidence

The Chair sought and was granted leave of the meeting to vary the order of the agenda and consider
the item City of Marion 2022 Asset Management Maturity Assessment Results next on the agenda

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 10.2.1 Page 35

A CIMKRlON

Dr Trevor Seymour-Jones from the University of Newcastle provided a presentation and summary of
the City of Marion’s 2022 Asset Management maturity assessment results. In the 2021 assessment,
Council achieved Core Maturity in all assessment elements, except Data & Systems.

The Committee noted the report and presentation. It was queried whether staff have had a chance to
digest the results, and whether there was an action plan to address the findings. The General Manger
City Services has de-briefed in detail with Dr Seymour-Jones and agrees with the findings. The team
is working to have the connection from the bottom up through the implementation of new systems,
consolidating data, lifecycle processes and testing roles and responsibilities. This will ensure CoM
has the capacity is and can identify any gaps within the framework and being able to enforce this
across the organisation. The results will be included in the audit actions and reported through this.

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Councillor Duncan
That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Notes the report and presentation, providing feedback to support the progress of Asset
Management at the City of Marion.

Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen
That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee,

1. Notes the outcome of the 2021-2022 desktop valuation for all infrastructure assets.

Carried Unanimously

The Manager Office of the CEO provided a brief overview of the item and of the initiatives undertaken
through the BCM Program in 2021—22 which aim to ensure that disruptive events are managed in
accordance with the BCM Framework. It was noted that further work had also progressed with KPMG
on the Business Impact Assessment and the Recovery Strategies Project. There is a lot of work
continuing in this space and current plans for exercises and further work on IT recovery strategies.

The Committee provided the following comments and feedback:
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¢ Noted the findings were moderate in relation to adequate equipment and queried whether this
was an accurate reflection of the risk. Management advised this was on the back of the
Business Continuity Audit, however Management are not hearing of any concerns in relation
to this across the organisation. One of the key areas identified through the team gage results
is in relation to resources and equipment, which is reported on monthly. There is no further
indication of this through these results.

e Suggested including a description of how we have addressed the key observations against
what the key observations are. Management have done a large amount of work on business
recovery and working through the observations, taking on board the comments from the
committee.

¢ The Committee noted there was a lot of effort put into larger physical disaster recovery efforts
given the likelihood they may occur compared to smaller internal scenarios that may occur
and questioned how prepared we would be for these smaller events if they occurred.

e The Committee discussed the criticality of the payroll function and if the recovery time could
be two weeks (rather than one) based on work arounds? Management agreed that potentially
it could.

e It was queried why the Council’s northerly neighbours e.g. City of West Torrens had not been
included within the BCP. Management advised the listed neighbouring councils are in our
zone identified through the Emergency Management Zone set up by the Local Government
Functional Support Group, however acknowledged that if needed, we could engage with
different networks if needed.

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Mr Papa

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:
1. Notes the report and provides feedback on the annual program.
2. Notes the KMPG report outlining the BIA and Recovery Strategy Project
3. Endorses the revised Business Continuity Plan

Carried Unanimously

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Mr Papa

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Endorse the Annual Report to Council for 2021/22 provided in Attachment 1 to this
report, subject to amendments as required, prior to being presented to the General
Council Meeting on 25 October 2022.

Carried Unanimously
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Manager Office of the CEO introduced the item and provided an update on the status of
implementation of recommendations from the Internal Audit (IA) program. It was noted staff had
progressed through the implementation of the outstanding actions and the team was working with
Managers to keep things progressing.

The Committee queried whether we had a new Project Management Officer. Management advised
they are currently undertaking a full review of the Project Management Framework. This includes
defining the four pillars, people, data, process and things across the organisation. General Manger
City Services has taken accountability for this review with the aim of increasing the maturity level
across the organisation. Atthe conclusion of the review senior management will be able to determine
where this function best sits to enable organisational wide disciplines and methodologies to be
implemented.

The Committee raised concern that historically this function has sat with the responsibility of one
person rather than a team and is supportive of Management increasing the resources of the PMO.

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Councillor Duncan
That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:
1.  Notes the status of the Internal Audit Program (Attachment 1).

Carried Unanimously

The Committee noted the report as read and noted the scope for the Volunteer Management. The
Committee queried if the onboarding process for volunteers was included within the scope and if the
audit would look at how volunteer resources are allocated to services and if they are required with
volunteers doing valuable work. It is noted if we over recruit, we may be increasing the risk
unnecessarily. Management confirmed this is part of the considerations, however, will specifically
request this is part of the scope. The Committee commented the scope should deliver a good result.

Moved Ms Rantanen Seconded Councillor Duncan
That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:
1. Notes the progress of the Internal Audit Program.
2. Considers and provides feedback on the:
a. Volunteer Management Check scope (Attachment 1)

Carried Unanimously

8 Reports for Noting
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The Committee noted the report as read and provided the following feedback:

¢ While Council has progressed in making significant improvements in organisational safety
practices and culture. It should be noted that this progress is now being restrained by complex
and overlapping WHS management system processes.

e Future continuous improvement in WHS performance will be contingent on improving
workflow within our management system and focusing on the capacity of the end user to
operate the system.

Staff noted there was a lot to do, however all very doable.

The Committee commented on the near miss reports and the increase of 5% from the previous
year, suggesting although it is good to report on these, this might not be the right indicator. It
was suggested that more training and positive activity would theoretically reduce near misses
/ hazards.

o Staff commented the Health and Safety Plan expires next year, and the revised plan will
consider soft indicators includes how staff are engaged and the level of reporting.

e The Committee queried some of the dates in in Attachment A - WHS Management System
Review, however, staff advised the report was written for the financial year as well as some of
the item being held back pending review of the management system and plan.

e It was noted there are 1062 entries on the risk register. 966 of the entries are overdue for
review. The Committee raised concerns around this number. Staff commented this was a
reflection of how data had been entered into the system, not providing a wholistic view. This
has been reviewed with common entries pulled into one risk, now with 123 entries.

¢ It was noted these recommendations are specifically tracked through the Health and Safety
Committee. The Committee also suggested a completed date could be included as well as a
date raised to assist with the tracking of the recommendations.

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Notes this report and provides feedback on the priorities and organisational engagement

Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:
1. Notes the report.

Carried Unanimously
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The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) introduce the item and provided an update on the progress of the
progress of the Digital Transformation Program (DTP). The CEO also updated the Committee on
recent structural changes with the departure of the General Manager Corporate Services. The CEO
advised that over the last six weeks, the DTP had undergone significant review of the projects to
properly identify system needs and integration.

The review provides better clarity and scheduling and has included the consolidation of budget to
itemise expenditure to date through to June next year. It also includes the review of the impact on
licenses, pressure points and costs over the next three years. It is expected the DTP will run through
to the end of September 2023 and will embed the 12 projects through to December 2023.

The Executive team have commenced work on CoM 5 looking at enhancements and functionality
across projects to capitalise on data analytics. It was there is still a lot of work to do and uncertainty,
however there is a better understanding of where the risks lie, and the lessons learnt.

The Committee made the following comments:

¢ Noted that previously there were going to be quite a few delays and queried whether this was
still the case. Management advised there could still be some delays with HRIS stage 2 and
the Asset Management System where the organisation is not business ready to implement,
however don'’t believe this will impact on the 30 June — September timeframe for next year.

¢ The Committee queried in relation to the recent Optus breach, what we were doing in relation
to security.

e Manager IT Operations provided an update to the Committee on our actions and advised his
team are continuing to build the robustness of the organisations cyber security to reduce any
risk the organisation may be exposed to and to reduce any threat level.

¢ The Committee had concerns relating to CoM 2: HRIS (Human Resources Information System
including Payroll Project). The CEO noted this was more of an integration issue between
payroll and HRIS and Management are working through the options to ensure one integrates
with the other.

e The Committee requested further information on CoM 5: Finance System. The CEO
acknowledged there were significant challenges relating to data for reporting. Senior
Management are working through the identified issues to determine whether the system will
be able to function to the service levels required.

e The Committee also suggested doing some work on benefits realisation to ensure clear focus.

Action: The Committee requested a report be brought back in December 2022 on the Finance
Project identifying any concerns and planned action.

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Councillor Duncan

That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Note the update on the Digital Transformation Program.
Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Councillor Duncan
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That the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee:

1. Notes the Investment Performance Report 2021-22.

Carried Unanimously

Moved Mr Papa Seconded Ms Rantanen

That the Finance and Audit Committee:

1. Note this Report

10 Other Business

The Committee thanked Mr Papa for his significant contribution to the Committee over the last few
years and for sharing his knowledge and experience.

11 Meeting Closure
The meeting was declared closed at 5.09pm.

CONFIRMED THIS 13 DAY OF DECEMBER 2022

CHAIRPERSON
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10.3 Confirmation of Minutes of the Asset and Sustainability Committee Meeting held on
11 October 2022

Report Reference GC221025R10.3

Originating Officer Executive Officer to General Manager City Services — Colleen
Madsen

Corporate Manager - N/A

General Manager General Manager City Services - Ben Keen

REPORT OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this report is to facilitate the receiving and noting of the minutes of the Asset and
Sustainability Committee meeting held on 11 October 2022.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
A summary of items considered by the Committee Members is noted below.

Reports for Discussion
e Parking Management Guidelines

Reports for Noting
o Aged Care Services — Fee Payment Update

Workshop/Presentation Items
e Major Projects Update
¢ SRWRA - Waste Education and the Eco Park

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Receives and notes the minutes of the Asset and Sustainability Committee meeting
held on 11 October 2022.

2. Notes that separate reports will be brought to Council for consideration of any
recommendations from the Asset and Sustainability Committee.

ATTACHMENTS
1. AS C 221011 - Final Minutes [10.3.1 - 11 pages]
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Minutes of the Asset and Sustainability Committee
held on Tuesday, 11 October 2022 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Council Administration Centre
245 Sturt Road, Sturt
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PRESENT
His Worship the Mayor Kris Hanna Councillor lan Crossland (Chair)
Councillor Bruce Hull Councillor Nathan Prior

In Attendance

Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

General Manager City Services - Ben Keen

General Manager City Development - Tony Lines

Chief Financial Officer — Ray Barnwell

Executive Officer to General Manager City Services - Colleen Madsen (minutes)
Manager Engineering, Assets and Environment - Mathew Allen

Manager City Activation — Charmaine Hughes

Unit Manager Engineering - Carl Lundborg

Coordinator Transport — Nathan Saxty

Chief Executive Officer, SRWRA — Chris Adams

Apologies
Councillor Tim Gard

1 Open Meeting

The Chair opened the meeting at 6:33pm.
2 Kaurna Acknowledgement
We acknowledge the Kaurna people, the traditional custodians of this land and pay our respects to

their elders past and present.

3 Elected Member Declaration of Interest (if any)

The Chair asked if any member wished to disclose an interest in relation to any item being
considered at the meeting

The following interests were disclosed:

e Councillor lan Crossland declared a perceived interest in the SRWRA workshop.

4 Confirmation of Minutes

4.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the Asset and Sustainability Committee Meeting held on 2
August 2022

Report Reference ASC221011R4.1
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Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Hull

That the minutes of the Asset and Sustainability Committee Meeting held on 2 August 2022 be
taken as read and confirmed.
Carried unanimously

5 Business Arising

5.1 Business Arising Statement - Action Items

Report Reference ASC221011R5.1

A question was raised by the committee on whether the City of Marion has purchased any Electric
Vehicles. Staff advised that due to several changes to the test agreement with AGL we have pulled
out of the AGL Agreement and are looking at our options depending upon availability of vehicles. A
Fleet Transition Plan is being formulated.

Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Hull

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee:

1. Notes the business arising statement, meeting schedule and upcoming items.

Carried unanimously

6 Workshop / Presentation ltems

6.1 Major Projects Update

Report Reference ASC221011R6.1

Manager City Activation presented the new reporting format which will be used for providing
updates on the Major Projects.

The following Section 48 projects were discussed by the committee:

Coastal Walkway Gullies 5 & 6

Helicopters will be used to bring steel components to the site. Helicopter usage is included within
the budget.

City Activation is continuing to work with the main contractor to understand and tightly manage any
potential implications around lead times and supply costs. These will be provided in the next
Council Member Forum Major Projects update.

Point was noted that the project team is managing this project tightly, taking into account there are
major supply issues globally.
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Administration advised that resolutions of Council which have a budget implication, if there are
challenges of working within that budget envelope as a result of global market conditions, we will
come back to Council to fully brief and appraise the Council of the circumstances and options and
work to stay within the budgets as best we can. There are still challenges at the moment with the
supply chain delays and subsequent costs to alternate product being sourced are adding costs to
projects.

Cove Sports Stage 1
Application has been submitted and is going to CAP in December 2022.
Funding of Stage 1 and Stage 2:
¢ Administration advised that ORSR has confirmed in its grant letter to the CEO in
June that the money has been allocated to Stage 1.
e Further discussion on this can be taken offline.

Marino Hall Community Centre

Application has been submitted and the Section 48 consultant has been engaged.

Going to CAP on 7 December 2022 for planning approval.

Working with the Community Hall Committee Members regarding accommodation during the build.

Cove Sports Stage 1 and Marino Hall will be brought to a Council Member Forum at end of
November 2022 to present the designs and scope.

Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility (SWBMX)

Administration met with the contractors and have negotiated a return to site date of mid-November
2022, weather dependent. City Activation will meet with the contractor in late October 2022 to
ensure that the weather conditions are right to complete the works.

Subject to weather conditions, a 4-6 week curing period will be required. The UCI Accreditation
process will then follow. Administration is working with the clubs to coordinate the relaunch of
SWBMX and decommissioning of the existing Cove track.

A full operations and maintenance manual will be provided to the clubs and their maintenance
obligations for the site will be included in the lease arrangements. Two members from each club will
be trained in the maintenance of the track and the contractor will undertake checks on the track
during the warranty period.

Taken on notice — what is the expected completion date of the new public pump track?
The following Political Interest reports were discussed by the Committee:
Hallett Cove Seaside Pool

Community consultation - 430 responses were received with two thirds of the responses in support
of the project.
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A draft project brief has been created and shared with internal and external stakeholders with

feedback incorporated into the project brief.
Call for tenders to undertake a concept design will go out to tender shortly.

Taken On notice — Does the current Environment Minister support this project or consider it
the last Minister’s project?

Marion Cultural Centre (MCC) Plaza

Administration has released the artist’s brief and submissions are due on 25 October 2022.

70% working detail design to be completed by mid-November 2022. Once that is complete it will go
to tender. Looking to commence on site in March 2023, completion date is approximately
September 2023.

Taken on notice — Question on the development approval dates, does this project need to go
to CAP?

MCC 21st birthday celebration was discussed — administration advised that a draft of activities over
an extended period has been proposed and currently being worked through.

Action: CEO to provide an update to the Committee Members on the MCC 215t birthday
celebrations via email on the draft of activities, including proposed dates.

Glenthorne National Park

A site visit with the Mayor and available Southern Hills Ward Members occurred in August 2022.
DEW requested an extension to December 2022, which has been granted. Progress on the
construction is good and we are hoping for it to be delivered in December 2022, weather and
materials supply dependent.

The Committee also asked the construction end date to be added to the slide.
The following Future Projects were discussed by the Committee:

South Adelaide Basketball Club (SABC) Stadium

Car parking analysis of the site including the ice rink development has been undertaken and the
findings have been received. City Activation is working to review the future car parking strategies
and next steps.

Motion
Moved Mayor Hanna Seconded Councillor Prior

1. That the proposed ice rink project and the proposed golf club redevelopment be added to
the major projects list reported to this committee.
2. Notes this presentation.
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Discussion took place regarding what reports over the next 4-year period should be included in
these updates. Convention has been that if projects are subjected to a Section 48 prudential report,
they came to this major project update but there may be other projects that are of significance and
interest. Administration agreed to provide proposals on which projects could be included in the
further Council Member Forum Major Project update and process.

The Motion was withdrawn by Mayor Hanna.

Glandore Oval

Land and Property and City Activation are collaborating on the delivery of this project.

Grant funding agreements have been completed.

The Committee Members requested that a project brief be provided to set out what we are trying to
achieve. A brief will be provided to the new Council.

General discussion was held regarding the capability of resourcing the number of projects currently
in design.

Moved Mayor Hanna Seconded Councillor Prior

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee:
1. Notes the presentation.

Carried unanimously

6.2 SRWRA - Waste Education and the Eco Park

Report Reference ASC221011R6.2

The Chair introduced Mr Chris Adams Chief Executive Officer of the Southern Regional Waste
Resource Authority (SRWRA) who provided an update to the Committee in relation to SRWRA’s
recently set new strategic projects including a key project of the board being Waste Education and
working with the three constituent councils so that all are on the same page regarding education for
our residents.

Mr Adams provided the Committee with an overview of the SRWRA journey.

Some items that were highlighted are:

e SRWRA sell all of their recycled product lines and they are sold to SA entities.

e SRWRA had a lot of strategic investment in purchasing buffer land before the encroachment
of urban land development. They are looking at opportunities of utilising that buffer land
sympathetic to the planning zone.

¢ Landfill operation is broken in several cells — the supercell is currently being filled and has
13 years of life and the Board has agreed to start scoping the next part of the landfill.

¢ Diversion from landfill commenced operation in 2016.
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¢ In December 2019 LMS Energy commissioned a new gas plant, which is a 3-megawatt
power plant and provides an energy security set up for Adelaide. It is approximately a $12m
facility owned and operated by LMS under contract to SRWRA.

e Largest solar farm on capped landfill in South Australia (600kw).

e Largest processing MRF in South Australia and is the gold standard for Australia and is
producing glass sand to put back into roads, which is a good example of Circular Economy.

e SAGE providing automation of the control system for MRF

e Looking to pro-locate the Circular economy estate next to their MRF, thus reducing transport
lead and creating employment. Included in there would be research, incubators and
accelerators and parcels of land and everything needed to create the fundamentals for the
entrepreneurial domain.

e Wanting to develop an education strategy for the SRWRA site, showcasing SRWRA's
capabilities whilst providing a tangible backdrop for education outcomes.

SRWRA is inviting Council the opportunity of being involved in the Circular Economy Estate and the
Education Strategy by way of:

¢ A senior executive (Manager) to join a high-level working group for each project, led by
SRWRA with 1-2 meetings held in Q3 and Q4 of the 2022/23 financial year. The task will be
to scope the projects and business cases.
e Contribution of resource towards the projects:
o Contribute funding towards two project roles at SRWRA to coordinate and deliver
each of the projects
o Contribute funding towards the development and implementation of the Education
Strategy
o Provide Economic Development Officer support to engage with local businesses that
may be interested in setting up at the Circular Economy Estate
o Fund pre-works that support the development of the Circular Economy Estate e.g.,
= Zone changes and planning studies
Market demand for products
Concept designs and advocacy documentation
Grant application support
Contract and tendering support
Political advocacy

The Education Strategy will be well defined and contained so will be short, sharp and punchy, with
clear, reportable performance measures. Needs to ensure they get the scope right.

An opportunity for the three constituent councils to come to the table to discuss what they and the
community wish to see in this space.

The broader project will be the Eco Park — it will require substantial planning, including changing the
zone. SRWRA wishes to engage with the three constituent councils to gain their expertise in
planning, project management and governance to help bring this all together.

Currently testing the water to see if the City of Marion would be interested before taking this proposal
to the other two councils as it is considered better to get an indication of what councils need/are
interested in first during the planning stages before the projects are invested in.

Consideration for SRWRA be a source of carbon credits is being investigated.

Tony Lines left the meeting at 8:05pm

The Committee Members made the following comments:
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¢ Education Strategy is looked upon favourably, with a suggestion that we could look at pitching
to students at schools to include in their syllabus or models.

e Eco Park / Circular economy — requires further information about this project as it is quite
complex. There is plenty of scope and would be exciting for council to be involved.

e The City of Marion would be supportive of the scoping exercises for both projects and in the
resourcing options.
e This would be a two stage process;
1. Scoping exercise.
2. A proposition that councils could formally consider.

¢ It may be worth organising a joint Forum with Elected Members from all three councils to
give SRWRA an indication of which path to formally put to each council.

e Consideration needs to be given to move forward with caution regarding who is in and who
is out as this has the potential to cause fraction between the constituent Councils.

Ray Barnwell left the meeting at 8:25 pm

Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Mayor Hanna

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee:

1. Notes the presentation and provides feedback to SRWRA on their future strategic priorities.
Carried unanimously

7 Confidential Items - Nil

8 Reports for Noting

8.1 Aged Care Services - Fee Payment Update
Report Reference ASC221011R8.1

Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Hull

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee:
1. Notes the report.
Carried unanimously

9 Reports for Discussion

9.1 Parking Management Guidelines

Report Reference ASC221011R9.1

Manager Engineering, Assets and Environment introduced the item and advised that this session
would address the feedback and questions raised by the Committee at the ASC July 2022 meeting.
A parking management decision tree has been created and this presentation will run through three
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parking examples within the City of Marion and how the decision tree will be utilised to address
these examples.

Unit Manager Engineering provided responses to the questions and requests for further information
that were raised at the 5 July meeting on the following:
¢ Do residents want more v less parking restrictions? A heat map was presented with the
information.
e General trends on motor vehicle ownership - ABS data on general trends on motor vehicle
ownership in households showed an increase in vehicles over the past 5 years, with
approximately 6,590 additional vehicles with CoM households.

CoM uses Arial mapping and dashboard footage when there are parking issues raised.

Coordinator Traffic and Parking introduced the Parking Management Flow Chart template, where
road width is a key factor.

There may be extenuating circumstances where this flow chart will not fit the purpose so those
situations will be taken into consideration.

A kid safe brochure, which was handed out at the meeting has been developed to provide safe
messages at schools.

Parking demand is considered high when there is greater than 85% occupancy — observations are
carried out at various times weekdays/ weekends/ evenings

Street tree planting areas taken into consideration

Feedback

e The flow chart will make it easier to advise residents on decision making process.

e The following box raised some concerns — ‘Can Council verge accommodate paved parking
or indented parking’ — could we include something in there that identifies how these aspects
are considered, possibly something like what was done for the irrigation matrix.

e There have been previous discussions about stormwater and how we can use verges to
reduce stormwater. This procedure seems to be on the opposite side of that argument. The
two activities need to be working in tandem.

e Parking on verges, we go onsite with arborists to consider if trees will be there now or in the
future and this is taken into consideration.

¢ Which is more valuable — stormwater reduction or additional car parking area?

e This box needs to be re-worked — it may need to include ‘Consider amenity of the existing
street trees’.

e Flow chart is a sensible logical piece of work, however there is a risk that it can be
implemented in robotic fashion. It needs to be done with sensitivity.

e The flow chart should address current inconsistencies.

¢ Nothing there to say if there was a new street or a reconsideration of a street to tell what
should be a 2-hour parking for shop or 4-hour parking for train station.

Actions identified in the Transport Plan include the review of train stations and schools over
the next five years so that a proactive approach can be applied to those areas.
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e Consideration to be given on what we consult on.

e Development approvals often come through to the parking team to cast a parking lens over
the development and to look at access to property and parking on the street. Staff try to
recommend off street parking however we are not able enforce the applicant to do that.

¢ In new developments why are we getting narrow parks that need yellow lines down one side
the day they open?

¢ Inthe old planning legislation administration had the opportunity to develop a statement of
requirements. The requirements identify Council standards for stormwater, road design and
road width. The new PDI code requirements include the need for an infrastructure
agreement where we put in the conditions outlined in the old statement of requirements, but
it is by agreement rather than telling them this is what needs to happen.

o Staff advised that we do have a service level for road widths.

¢ We have not had a road width issue with the new Oaklands Green project.

e Should there be developer push back on road widths Members would like to know about it,
either via Ward Briefings or this Committee.

The following three case studies were discussed against the proposed Parking Management Flow
Chart template:

e Radstock Street, Morphettville

e Narkunda Street, Glandore

e Conrad Street, Glengowrie

Consultation

e ltis important to consult city wide on the draft parking guidelines. This can be done via the
communications department staff, the Marion 100 consultation group, business plan for next
year.

¢ Interested in a well-designed survey across the city asking people the question, if these
were the rules would you agree that they be applied in streets even if 50% or more than 1/3
don’t agree with them, maybe ask what percent it should be.

e Closing the loop letter should be part of consultations, including any adverse implications of
the outcomes of the consultation.

Procedural motion

Moved Councillor Hull Seconded Councillor Prior

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee extends the meeting to the end of the case studies.
Carried

Mayor Hanna departed the meeting at 9:47pm

Next steps
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e Consult city wide on parking issues. This can be done via the communications department
staff, the Marion 100 consultation group, business plan for next year.

e Draft Parking Guidelines to be presented to the first available Forum in 2023, including a
consultation plan.

e Guidelines will not apply retrospectively.

e Proposed implementation of the Parking Management Guidelines 1 July 2023 —this will allow
time for consultation and a decision by Council.

Moved Councillor Prior Seconded Councillor Hull

That the Asset and Sustainability Committee:

1. Notes the presentation and provides feedback on the proposed intervention criteria.
2. Notes that a draft Parking Management Guideline will be presented to the new Elected
Member body at the first available Elected Member Forum in 2023.
Carried unanimously

10 Other Business

11 Meeting Closure

The meeting shall conclude on or before 9.30pm unless there is a specific motion adopted at the
meeting to continue beyond that time.

The meeting was declared closed at 9:55.

CONFIRMED THIS 25TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2022

CHAIRPERSON
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11 Confidential Items

11.1 Cover Report - Confirmation of Minutes of the Confidential Finance, Risk and Audit
Committee Meeting held on 11 October 2022

Report Reference GC221025F11.1

Originating Officer Business Support Officer - Governance and Council Support —
Cassidy Ryles

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive - Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REASON FOR CONFIDENTIALITY
Local Government Act (SA) 1999 S 90 (2) 3

(b) information the disclosure of which (i) could reasonably be expected to confer a commercial
advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting, or proposing to conduct, business, or
to prejudice the commercial position of the council; and (ii) would, on balance, be contrary to the
public interest

(e) matters affecting the security of the council, members or employees of the council, or council
property, or the safety of any person

RECOMMENDATION

That pursuant to Section 90(2) and (3)b) and (e) of the Local Government Act 1999, the
Council orders that all persons present, with the exception of the following persons: Chief
Executive Officer, General Manager City Development, General Manager City Services,
General Manager Corporate Services, Manager of the Office of the CEO, Chief Financial
Officer, Manager City Activation, Unit Manager Governance and Council Support, Unit
Manager Strategy and Risk and Risk Business Partner, be excluded from the meeting as the
Council receives and considers information relating to Confirmation of Minutes of the
Confidential Finance, Risk and Audit Committee Meeting held on 11 October 2022, upon the
basis that the Council is satisfied that the requirement for the meeting to be conducted in a
place open to the public has been outweighed by the need to keep consideration of the
matter confidential given the information relates to commercial and financial information and
matters affecting the security of the council.
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12 Corporate Reports for Decision

12.1 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Report Reference GC221025R12.1
Originating Officer Unit Manager Statutory Finance & Payroll — Andrew Doyle

Corporate Manager Chief Financial Officer - Ray Barnwell

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE

The objective of this report is to present to Council the City of Marion’s Annual Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 for adoption. The reports provided include:

1. Representation letter (Attachment 1) - audit of annual financial report for period 1 July 2021
to 30 June 2022. The purpose of this letter is to express an opinion as to whether the
financial report is prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Local
Government Act 1999 and other mandatory reporting requirements in Australia. This letter
will be signed by Tony Harrison, CEO once the financial statements have been adopted by
Council.

2. Analytical Review (Attachment 2) - Comparative analysis to prior year audited financial
statements and comparison to original adopted 2021-22 budget

3. Annual Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2022 — (Attachments 3 to 4).

4. External Auditor (Galpins) Audit Completion Report — (Attachment 5).

These reports were provided for consideration to the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee on 11
October 2022 (FRAC221011R7.3). The Annual Financial Statements to 30 June 2022 have been
fully endorsed by FRAC prior to being brought to Council for adoption.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2021-22 Annual Financial Statements demonstrate Council's continued strong financial
performance, providing a sound basis for long-term objectives set out in the Strategic Plan.

In summary, Council achieved an Operating Surplus of $0.542m compared to an operating surplus
of $0.256m for 2020-21. The key factors contributing to the movement in operating surplus are
detailed in Attachment 2 (Analytical Review - against Adopted Budget 2021-22).

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been completed with
Council's Auditors indicating they expect to issue an unmodified audit opinion, subject to the
satisfactory completion of the following matters:

o A subsequent events review up to the date of the audit opinion

¢ Receipt of management's signed representation letter

This report has been prepared in accordance with section 127 of the Local Government Act 1999
and the Local Government Accounting Regulations.

In accordance with section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 Council's external auditors have
also assessed the internal financial control environment in regard to Council's compliance with all
material aspects of the Act.
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Council's Auditors have indicated that they expect to issue an unmodified audit opinion with regards
to council's internal control environment.

As part of the annual audit process Council's external auditors also perform a number of minor grant
audits, which are required as part of each individual funding agreement.

Next Steps

In conjunction with the adoption of the 2021-22 audited Annual Financial Statements the 1st Budget
Review 2022-23 process will be completed which includes:

Adoption of the 2021-22 Carryovers & Unexpended Grants (noting that the funding relating
to projects which have been re-timed will be brought into the budget when required) as part
of the 2022-23 First Budget Review;

Reconciling and identifying the 2021-22 funding savings achieved against Council's adopted
2021-22 budget.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1.

Adopts the City of Marion audited Annual Financial Statements for the year
ended 30 June 2022. (Attachment 3).

2. Authorises the Mayor and the CEO to sign off on the audited Annual Financial
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 (Attachment 3) and authorises the
CEO to sign off on the Management Representation letter (Attachment 1)

3. Receives the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA) 2021-22
audited Annual Financial Statements (Attachment 4)

4. Notes the comparative analysis to prior year audited Annual Financial
Statements and original adopted 2021-22 budget (Analytical Review), as included
at Attachment 2.

5. Notes Galpins Audit Completion Report, as included at Attachment 5.

GENERAL ANALYSIS

The Statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting
Standards and the Local Government Regulations.

The Local Government Accounting Regulations require that a Council must prepare its accounts
for audit by the second Friday in October and on or before 30 November, supply a copy of the
Audited Financial Statements to each of the following:

¢ The Minister responsible for Local Government
e The Local Government Grants Commission
¢ The Deputy Commonwealth Statistician and Government Statistician

Legal / Legislative / Policy:

Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
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DISCUSSION

Four main statements are prepared as part of the Annual Financial Statements as summarised
below:

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Statement of Comprehensive Income details Council's revenues and expenses for the
reporting period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and reveals an operating surplus (before capital
revenues and contributed assets) of $0.542m for 2021-22 compared to an operating surplus of
$0.256m for 2020-21. The key movements in operating revenue and expenses are noted below
with further analysis detailed in the analytical review (Attachment 2).

Operating Income — prior year comparison

Total Operating income for 2021-22 was $102.422m compared to $97.324m in 2020-21. The
increase of $5.098m (5.2%) includes an increase in grants revenue ($1.923m). Council adopted a
one per cent rate increase in 2021-22 with the increase in rates revenue of $1.7m including
underlying growth of 1% in ratable properties contributing to the increase. Council’s income also
reflects a net gain from its share in SRWRA of $0.882m for 2021-22.

A number of other smaller variances are outlined and further detailed in Attachment 2 (“Analytical
Review — against Prior Year Actual”).

Operating Expenses — prior year comparison

Total Operating expenses for 2021-22 were $101.880m compared to prior year actuals of
$97.068m in 2020-21. The total increase of $4.812m on prior year actual costs is a result of
increases to:

e Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses of 2.609m (6.1%) - the increase primarily relates to
additional operating expenditure on projects including the Digital Transformation project
($1.364m), Food Waste Recycling Program ($543k), The Coastal Walkway - Field River
($247k) and Hugh Johnson Reserve Upgrade ($223k). Other increases include additional
expenditure of Maintenance Agreements ($322k).

e Employee costs increased by $1.896m stemming from Enterprise Agreements annual
increases ($765k), additional Council endorsed positions including Digital Transformation
Program positions ($814k) and additional Grant Funded Positions ($284k).

e Further analysis is detailed in Attachment 2 - (“Analytical Review — against Prior Year
Actual”).

Capital Revenues and Revaluation — prior year comparison

Other key variances reported on the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Grants recognised specifically for New or Upgraded Assets is $6.259m. This amount includes the
final installments of grant funding relating to the completion of three of Council’s multi-year major
projects; Mitchell Park Sports and Community Club ($1.23m), the Sam Willoughby UCI BMX
Facility ($1.28m) and Southern Soccer Facility ($1.03m). In addition, amounts for the Local Roads
and Community Infrastructure grants ($1.24m) and Hugh Johnson Boulevard Reserve ($801k)
along with other minor grants make up this balance.

Another key movement includes Changes in Revaluation Surplus — IPP&E an increase of
$37.042m which reflects the change in the valuation of assets following a desktop revaluation of
infrastructure assets undertaken by independent professional valuers in 2021-22.
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Variances against the 2020-21 Statement of Comprehensive Income are further detailed in
Attachment 2 (“Analytical Review — against Prior Year Actual”).

KEY OPERATING RATIOS

OPERATING SURPLUS 2022 2021 2020
RATIO

Operating Surplus

. 0.53% 0.26% 6.83%
(before capital revenues)

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total operating revenue. The target
set in Council’'s Long Term Financial Plan is to “maintain a financial position at an average of
between 0 and 10% over any five financial years”.

Comment:

The Operating Surplus Ratio remains within the lower end of Council’s targeted bandwidth of 0 —
10%.

RATE REVENUE RATIO 2022 2021 2020
Rate Revenue
Operating Revenue 80% 82% 85%

This ratio expresses rate revenue as a percentage of operating revenue.

Although this ratio is not a prescribed ratio required by the ‘Model Set of Accounts’ it is a valuable
indicator as it highlights Council's reliance on rates as a revenue source and the need for Council
to seek alternative sources of income.

Comment:

Council’s reliance on rate revenue decreased in 2021-22 due to increases in Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions and a minor increase in rate revenue.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Statement of Financial Position provides details of Council's assets, liabilities and equity as at
30 June 2022.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (IPP&E):

Council's IPP&E increased by $68.529m (6.1%) compared to 2020-21. Council constructed
$49.449m of new and renewed assets in 2021-22 offset by depreciation of $16.334m, an
infrastructure revaluation increment of $37.042m and disposals and other minor adjustments of
$1.630m. The table below identifies the key contributors to the movement in Council’s non-current
assets which can mainly be attributed to revaluations of its Infrastructure assets.

2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease)

$000s $000s $000s
Buildings 130,923 111,825 19,098
Infrastructure 684,884 636,496 48,388
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Other variances when comparing 2021-22 against the 2020-21 Statement of Financial Position are
further detailed in Attachment 2 (“Analytical Review — against Prior Year Actual”).

ASSET RENEWAL 2022 2021 2020
FUNDING RATIO

Net Asset Renewals

78% 86% 58%
Targeted Renewal
Expenditure

Net asset renewal expenditure is defined as net capital expenditures on the renewal and
replacement of existing assets and excludes new capital expenditure on the acquisition of
additional assets.

This ratio indicates whether the Council is renewing or replacing existing assets at the rate of
consumption. A long-term average ratio of 100% would indicate that Council is investing
adequately in maintaining its asset base. The annual target is between 90—-110%.

Comment:

Council’s Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP) is set to achieve an average Asset Renewal Funding
Ratio of 100% over the next three years and over the 10-year term of the LTFP.

The ratio of 78% achieved in 2021-22 is below the target of 90% primarily due to a savings in
Roads Reseals expenditure of $167k and retimed renewal expenditure for Car Parks of $200k,
Streetscapes $341k, Vehicle Replacement Program $453k, Coastal Walkway $667k, Property
Renewal $395k and Warriparinga Bridges $452k.

ASSET CONSUMPTION 2022 2021 2020
RATIO

Carrying value

of depreciable assets 73% 74% 76%
Gross value

of depreciable assets

This ratio shows the consumption of the asset stock at a point in time (or the percentage of useful
life remaining). Depreciation represents the reduction in value of the assets each year and
therefore accumulated depreciation is the total reduction in the carrying value of the assets.

Council’s target for this ratio is between 80-100%.
Comment:

A ratio higher than 80% indicates that Council’s overall asset base has on average a relatively high
remaining useful life. A result of between 40% and 80% is considered acceptable.

BORROWINGS

In assessing Council’s financial position, it is appropriate to consider liabilities in relation to
borrowings. Borrowings are required by Council from time to time to finance strategic long-term
assets for the orderly development of the City. With no new borrowings taken out in 2021-22 due to
Council’s strong cash holding position Council’s total borrowings as at the 30 June 2022 were
$3.563m, a net decrease of $0.828m over the level of borrowings in June 2021. Council is in a
strong position to take on the forecast borrowings of $13.9m outlined in Council’'s adopted LTFP
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over the next couple of years .

KEY DEBT RATIOS

The following indicators are used to monitor Council’'s performance in relation to its current level of
debt.

NET FINANCIAL 2022 2021 2020
LIABILITIES RATIO

Net Financial Liabilities
Total Operating Revenue (11%) (34%) (32%)

This ratio indicates the extent to which net financial liabilities of the council can be met by the
council's total operating revenue and is based on the Net Financial Liabilities above.

Comment:

This result reflects Council’'s Financial Assets currently exceed its Financial Liabilities
predominantly as a result Council’s current holding of cash and other financial assets allocated for
unexpended grants and funding for multi-year capital projects and projects carried over or re-timed
to 2022-23 and beyond. Council’s capacity to meet its financial obligations from operating revenues
is strong and it has capacity to meet future requirements identified in its Long Term Financial Plan.

INTEREST COVER 2022 2021 2020
RATIO

Net Interest Expense

0, 0 °
Total Operating Revenue (0.1%) (0.2%) (0.5%)

Net interest costs are defined as total interest expenses less total interest revenues. This ratio
indicates the extent to which Council’s commitment to interest expenses are met by total operating
revenues.

Comment:

Negative ratios have been recorded for the past 7 years reflecting interest revenues being greater
than interest expenses.

DEBT SERVICING 2022 2021 2020
RATIO
Principal + Interest
Total Operating Revenue 1.1% 1.6% 1.7%

This ratio identifies Council’s ability to service its debt obligations from operating revenues, with
target range set at 0 to 5%.

Comment:

The ratio confirms that Council has a low debt holding and is well positioned for future borrowings
outlined in its Long Term Financial Plan. The 1.1% result is well below the upper end of the target
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range of between 0 and 5%.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

The Statement of Changes in Equity reconciles the opening and closing balances of Council's
equity over the reporting period.

The balance of equity represents Council’s net worth of $1,223.8m as reflected in the Statement of
Financial Position.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement details the cash movements for the year ended 30 June 2022 and
reconciles with Note 11 of the Annual Financial Statements.

The Statement indicates a decrease in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments of $26.973m
compared to 30 June 2021. As previously mentioned, a sizable portion of the cash position is
committed to unexpended grants, carryovers and re-timed capital works. Council also retains
significant cash reserves quarantined for ongoing multi-year major projects and long term asset
management objectives.

RESERVE FUNDS

A review of the balances of Council's reserves indicates that they are at a level sufficient to meet
their purpose and intent which are listed in Note 9 Reserves in Attachment 3. Council’s current
Reserve funds are made up of the following:

Grants and Carryovers Reserve: $12.853m

This is made up of grant funded carryover projects and capital works carried over to 2022-23 or re-
timed to future years as required.

Open Space Reserve: $2.512m
It is considered by management that the current balance of this fund is adequate to meet its
intended purpose.

Asset Sustainability Reserve — General $10.151m

This fund is considered by management to be adequate to provide Council with the funding capacity
to manage its long term asset management objectives. Funding in this reserve has been
quarantined to support key infrastructure projects in 2022-23 including the Coastal Walking Trail,
Tarnham Road Reserve redevelopment and MCC Plaza redevelopment. Council also endorsed the
release of funds from this reserve to support a 2% rating strategy in 2022-23.

Asset Sustainability Reserve — Water Reserve $1.153m

This reserve has been established to quarantine revenue received and savings identified from the
sale and use of treated stormwater from the Oaklands Wetland to further develop third party supply
opportunities.

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENT

Council has part ownership in equity accounted investments and is required to include its equity
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share in these in its Annual Financial Statements along with copies of these entities’ Financial
Statements.

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA)

SRWRA provides and operates services for the management of waste and waste facilities on behalf
of its constituent councils — The Cities of Onkaparinga, Marion and Holdfast Bay — ensuring that a
long term Waste Management Strategy exists in the southern region of Adelaide. The City of Marion
has a 30% share in SRWRA.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Letter of Representation [12.1.1 - 4 pages]

Attachment 2 - Analytical Review 2021-2022 [12.1.2 - 3 pages]

Attachment 3 - Annual Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2022 [12.1.3 - 48 pages]
Attachment 4 - SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022 [12.1.4 - 52 pages]

Attachment 5 - Galpins - Audit Completion Report City of Marion [12.1.5 - 17 pages]
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4 October 2022 CITY OF A
C MARION

Mr Tim Muhlhausler

Partner PO Box 21, Oaklands Park
Galpins Accountants Auditors and Business Consultants South Australia 5046
PO Box 4067 245 Sturt Road, Sturt
Norwood South SA 5067 SouthAustralla’5047

T(08) 8375 6600

F (08) 8375 6699

E council@marion.sa.gov.au
Dear Tim,

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial report of the City of Marion
(the Council) for the year ended 30 June 2022 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, Local Government Act
1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

We confirm that (to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves):

A. FINANCIAL REPORT

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter, for
the preparation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Local
Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011; in
particular the financial report presents fairly in accordance therewith.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control for the preparation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011.

3. Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are fully and fairly
described in the financial report.

4. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at
fair value, are reasonable.

5. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards. Such transactions with

related party may include:

e sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets / liabilities/ services, leasing arrangements,
guarantees etc.

e all balances due to or from related party at year end.

6. All events subsequent of the date of the financial report for which Australian Accounting
Standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The City of Marion acknowledges it is part of Kaurna land and recognises the Kaurna people
as the traditional and continuing custodians of the land.

[i facebook.com/CityofMarion , twitter.com/CityofMarion  YOURIII[:] youtube.com/CityofMarion marion.sa.gov.au
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7. There are no identifiable misstatements, both individually and in the aggregate, within the
financial report.

B. OWNERSHIP

1. The Council has good title (or lease interest) in all assets recorded in the accounts.

C. VALUATION

1. We have no plans and intentions that may affect materially the carrying value, or classification, of
Council’s assets and liabilities.

2. The fair value of land and buildings as determined by the external valuer is reasonable.

3. Adequate provisions have been recorded in the accounts for all anticipated losses.

4. Depreciation rates for capital and other assets have been reviewed having regard to such factors
as asset usage and obsolescence. Any adjustment to reflect the most recent assessment of the
useful lives of all capital and other assets has been recognised and disclosed in the financial report.

5. The carrying amount of capital and other assets does not materially differ from its fair value at the
reporting date.

D. Information Provided

1. We have provided you with:

e access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial report such as records, documentation and other matters;

e additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

e unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

2. Alltransactions have been recorded in accounting records and are reflected in the financial report.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial report may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

5. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware
of and that affects the Council and involves:

e management;
e employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

e others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial report.
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6. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, suspected fraud,
affecting the Council’s financial report communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

7. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliances
with laws and regulations including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of outstanding
debts, whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial report.

8. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

9. We have disclosed to you all known unusual commitments or contractual obligations that were
not in the ordinary course of business whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial report.

10. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

E. COMPLETENESS
1. All assets owned or controlled by the Council have been recorded in the accounts.

2. All services rendered prior to the year-end have been recorded in the correct financial year.

3. Inventory does not include items not paid for and for which no liability has been recorded in the
accounts at year-end.

4. All charges to capital assets (and additions under capital leases) during the year represent actual
additions and no expenditure of a capital nature have been charged to expenses during the year.

5. All capital assets sold or dismantled during the year have been properly accounted for in the
accounts.

6. Capital and other assets with a limited life are being depreciated, amortised, or otherwise written
off as a charge to income over their estimated useful lives in a systematic and rational manner.

7. All liabilities of the Council at year-end have been recorded in the accounts (including provisions

for such items as salaries and wages, employee benefits, professional services and long term
debts).
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F. ELECTRONIC PUBLICATION OF FINANCIAL REPORT

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the electronic presentation of the audited financial report
and independent auditor’s report on the internet is identical to the signed hard copy version.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility to clearly differentiate between audited and unaudited
information in the construction of the Council’s website as we understand the risk of potential

misrepresentation.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and internal control to ensure
the security and integrity of the data published on the internet.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility to only publish the independent auditor’s report when the full
financial report is presented on the website.

G. OTHER

1. Minute book provided to you contains complete and authentic minutes of all meetings and
committees held throughout the year to the most recent meetings.

2. We believe that the Council will be able to meet its financial commitments when they fall due.

Yours Sincerely,

Tony Harrison
Chief Executive Officer
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ANALYTICAL REVIEW - against Prior Year Actual ATTACHMENT 2

Favourable/

. 2021/22 2020/21 Variance Variance Analysis
Statement of Comprehensive Income / / (Unfavourable) v
$000's $000's $000's %
Income
Rates Revenues 81,879 80,179 1,700 2.1% F Council adopted a 1% rate rise in addition to movement due to the growth rate in rateable properties of 1.1%.
Statutory Charges 2,348 2,175 173 8.0% F Primarily from an increase in Development Assessment Fees revenue.
User Charges 3,010 2,701 309 11.4% F Primarily relates to an increase in Rental income from new lease agreements executed in 2021-22.
The increase in grant funding reflects the receipt of $2.6m (75%) of the 2022-23 Grants Commission allocation in
Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 11,742 9,819 1,923 19.6% F advance in 2021-22 along with $1.19m for the Coastal Walking Trail renewal and $562k grant funding for the Food
Waste recycling program.
Investment Income 365 503 (138)  (27.4%) U A decrease in investment income due to a significant reduction in surplus cash holdings in 2021/22.
Reimbursements 690 872 (182)  (20.9%) U A decrease in Risk Incentive Program funding ($98k) and Private Infrastructure works ($62k).
Increase in donations and contributions income relating to Relisiant South Climate Partnership ($154k), Open Space
Other | 1,506 902 604 67.0% F - ) ’
erincome ° Develepor Contributions ($78k), Cross Council Labour Recovery ($38k) and Insurance Recoveries ($36k).
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Businesses 882 173 709 409.8% [F Movement in equity accounted investments - refer Note 19 and SRWRA Annual Financial Statements.
Total Income 102,422 97,324 5,098 5.2%
Expenses
Includes annual increases from Enterprise Agreements ($765k), Council endorsed positions including Digital
Employee Cost: 40,134 38,238 1,896 4.96% u y . - .
RIS e ° Transformation Program positions ($814k) and additional Grant Funded Positions ($284k).
Increase in costs for Contractors, primarily relating Digital Transformation Projects ($1,364k), Food Waste Recycling
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 45,141 42,532 2,609 6.1% U Program ($543k), The Coastal Walkway - Field River ($247k), Hugh Johnson Reserve Upgrade ($223k) and an
increase in Maintenance Agreements ($322k).
. o . Increase in depreciation expense due to new assets and Asset Renewal Program mainly related to Footpaths
D tion, Amortisation & | t 16,334 15,963 371 2.3% u . -~
EICEEIETE (e S LR ° ($150k), Plant and equipment ($110k), Other assets ($55k) and Buildings ($38k).
Finance Costs 271 335 (64)  (19.1%) F No new borrowings were taken out resulting in a decrease in interest expense.
Total Expenses 101,880 97,068 4,812 5.0%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 542 256 286 111.7%
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (1,384) (2,102) 718 (34.2%) F Asset disposal differences including disposal of remaining assets at Mitchell Park Sports Club in 2020/21.
With the completion of the Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility, Southern Soccer Facility and Mitchell Park
. - Sports and Community Club council brought to account the remaining $3.5m of capital grant funds ($7.4m in 2020-
Al ts R d S fically for N U ded Asset: 6,259 9,542 3,283 34.4% u . ) ) .
mounts Recelved speciiically for Rew or Upgraded Assets ( b ) 21). Council also recognised $1.24m for Phase 2 of the Local Roads and Community Infrastructure ($796k in 2020-
21) along with $801k for the Hugh Johnson Boulevard Reserve.
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,396 2,001 (605)  (30.2%) u Relates to a decrease in Infrastructure assets received relating to the Tonsley redevelopment.
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 6,813 9,697 (2,884)  (29.7%)
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in Revaluation Surplus - IPP&E 37,042 (21,408) 58,450 (273.0%) F Beflects change in thfe valuation of assets following a desktop revaluation of infrastructure assets undertaken by
independent professional valuers in 2021/22.
Share of Other Comprehensive Income - Equity Accounted Council Business 346 0 346 0.0% F Relates to Councils share of SRWRA Asset Revaluation in 2021/22.
Total Other Comprehensive Income 37,388 (21,408) 58,796  (274.6%)
Total Comprehensive Income 44,201 (11,711) 55,912  (477.4%)
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ANALYTICAL REVIEW - against Prior Year Actual ATTACHMENT 2
Statement of Financial Position 2021/22 2020/21 Variance Variance Analysis
$000's $000's $000's %
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 24,639 16,712 7,927 47.4% Increase in short term deposits and bills.
. Movements relate to General Debtors of $1.732m which decreased $1.583m from 2020/21 and Accrued Revenues
Trade & Other Receivables 5,279 8,110 (2,831) (34.9%) of $0.072m, which decreased by $1.076m.
Other Financial Assets 2,400 37,300 (34,900)  (93.6%) Relates to a decrease of funds invested in term deposits with over 90 day terms at 30 June.
Inventories 500 311 189 60.8%
Total Current Assets 32,818 62,433 (29,615) (47.4%)

Non-Current Assets

Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses 7,855 6,627 1,228 18.5% Movement in equity accounted investments - refer Note 19 and SRWRA Annual Financial Statements.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 1,198,015 1,129,486 68,529 6.1% Movements in valuation of infrastructure assets and asset acquisitions, disposals and depreciation.

Other Non-Current Assets 6,659 10,328 (3,669)  (35.5%) Delcrease in Work In Progress balance relates primarily to the completion of Major projects that had commenced
prior to 30 June 2021.

Total Non-Current Assets 1,212,529 1,146,441 66,088 5.8%

TOTAL ASSETS 1,245,347 1,208,874 36,473 3.0%

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 11,029 17,721 (6,692)  (37.8%) Reflects the decrease in creditors balance as at 30 June 2022.

Current borrowings (current loan principle component) decreasing as existing loans are being paid down. No new

BoLCcines e £2 ® B loans established in 2021/22.

Provisions 6,346 6,430 (84) (1.3%) Decrease in Employee Provisions ($0.084m).
Lease Liabilities 10 15 (5) - Reduction in lease liability due to leases ending.
Total Current Liabilities 18,261 24,993 (6,732)  (26.9%)

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 2,687 3,564 877)  (24.6%) Reduction in total borrowings in line with scheduled repayments of existing loans - no new borrowings taken out

during 2021/22.

Provisions 594 702 (108)  (15.4%) Decrease in Employee Provisions ($0.108m).

Lease Liabilities 0 11 (11) - Reduction in lease liability due to leases ending or nearing end dates.

Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,281 4,277 (996) (23.3%)

TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,542 29,270 (7,728)  (26.4%)

Net Assets 1,223,805 1,179,604 44,201 3.7%

EQUITY

Accumulated Surplus 427,628 403,189 24,439 6.1% Refer Statement of Comprehensive Income & Statement of Change in Equity (movement in comprehensive income
net of reserve transfers).

Asset Revaluation Reserves 769,508 732,120 37,388 5.1% Beflects change in thg valuation of assets following a desktop revaluation of infrastructure assets undertaken by
independent professional valuers in 2021/22.

Other Reserves 26,669 44,295 (17,626)  (39.8%) Decrease in amounts held in Council's Accounting Reserves.

Total Council Equity 1,223,805 1,179,604 44,201 3.7%
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ANALYTICAL REVIEW - against Adopted Budget ATTACHMENT 2

Original . . Favourable/ .
. 2021/22 Variance Variance Analysis
Statement of Comprehensive Income Budget (Unfavourable) """
$000's $000's $000's %
Income
Rates Revenues 81,879 81,693 186 0.2% F Primarily relates to lower than forecast Rate Rebates ($94k).
Statutory Charges 2,348 2,106 242 11.5% F Increase in Parking Fines ($141k) Development Assesment Fees Revenue ($90k).
User Charges 3,010 2,827 183 6.5% F Increase in Rental Income for new ageements executed in 2021/22 financial year, not originally budgeted for.
Primarily relates to additional funding for CHSP of $1.11m, additional Grant Commision Funding received in advance $1.61m, Coastal Walking Trail
Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 11,742 6,726 5,016 74.6% F Funding recognised in 2021-22 of $1.19m, Food Waste Recycling Program $562k and a number of smaller operating grants successfully attracted
during the 2021-22 year.
Investment Income 365 347 18 5.2% F Actual interest revenue reflects an increase in official interest rate on cash holdings for the last two months of the year.
Reimbursements 690 664 26 3.9% F °
Other Income 1,506 1,096 410 37.4% F Donations and Contributions income is greater than budgeted ($374k) in addition to a higher than forecast Cross Council Labour Recovery
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Businesses 882 365 517 141.6% F Movement in equity accounted investments - refer Note 19 and SRWRA Annual Financial Statements.
Total Income 102,422 95,824 6,598 6.9%
Expenses
Employee Costs 40,134 39,912 222 0.6% u Primarily relates to an increase in unbudgeted Grant Funded positions ($284k).
Primarily relates to elements of budgeted capital projects reclassified to operating including Alawoona Avenue Streetscapes ($967k), Sam Willoughb
. International BMX facility ($945k), Diagonal Road Streetscapes ($449k), Sturt Road Streescapes ($311k), Capella Drive Reserve ($307k), Sturt Road
Materials, Contracts & Other E: 45,141 35,456 9,685 27.3% ) . . . " :
aterials, Lontracts er Expenses N Streetscape ($250k), Coastal Walkway ($248k) along with a number of other minor variances. A total of $4.220m of expenditure was carried over
from 2020/21. $2.807m of this was for Digital Tranformation projects and $573k for the Food Waste Recycling Program.
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 16,334 16,000 334 2.1% u Increase in depreciation expense for AASB 16 Leases ($129k) and a number of new assets being depreciated or the first time ($260k) .
Finance Costs 271 254 17 6.7% u Reflects interest expense on AASB 16 Leases not budgeted for.
Total Expenses 101,880 91,621 10,259 11.2%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 542 4,203 (3,661) (87.1%) u
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (1,384) 0 (1,384) 0.0% u Infrastructure and Open Space Equipment disposals during 2021/22.
Grant funding originally budgeted in 2020-21 including Mitchell Park Sports and Community Club $1.00m, Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 6,259 4,577 1,682 36.7% F $905k and Southern Soccer Facility $1.03m, was recognised in 2021-22. Anticpated grant funding of $1.5m for Marion Golf Park Club did not
materialise in 2021-22.
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,396 0 1,396 0.0% F Reflects contributed assets relating to the Tonsley redevelopment and a number of minor increases in infrastructure assets.
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 6,813 8,780 (1,967)  (22.4%) u
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in Revaluation Surplus - IPP&E 37,042 0 37,042 0.0% U Movement in Infrastructure assets due to desktop valuation carried out by independent valuer in 2021/22.
Share of Other Comprehensive Income - Equity Accounted Council Business 346 0 346 0.0% E Unbudgeted movement in SRWRA asset valuation.
Total Other Comprehensive Income 37,388 [1] 37,388 0.0%
Total Comprehensive Income 44,201 8,780 35,421 403.4% F
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Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.
In our opinion:

» the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

« the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at 30 June 2022 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

« internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council’s financial records are
complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

« the financial statements accurately reflect the Council’s accounting and other records.

Tony Harrison Kris Hanna
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
Date: Date:

Page 3 of 48
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City of Marion

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000

Income

Rates Revenues

Statutory Charges

User Charges

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions

Investment Income

Reimbursements

Other income

Net Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses
Total Income

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment
Finance Costs

Total Expenses
Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

Physical Resources Received Free of Charge
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets

Net Surplus / (Deficit)

Other Comprehensive Income

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to
operating result

Changes in Revaluation Surplus - |,PP&E

Changes in Revaluation Surplus - Equity Accounted Council Businesses
Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

(1) Transferred to Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes

2a
2b
2c
29
2d
2e
2f
19(a)

3a
3b
3c
3d

2i

29

9a

Page 72

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2022 2021
81,879 80,179
2,348 2,175
3,010 2,701
11,742 9,819
365 503

690 872
1,506 902
882 173
102,422 97,324
40,134 38,238
45,141 42,532
16,334 15,963
271 335
101,880 97,068
542 256
1,396 2,001
(1,384) (2,102)
6,259 9,542
6,813 9,697
37,042 (21,408)
346 -
37,388 (21,408)
44,201 (11,711)
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Statement of Financial Position
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$'000 Notes 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 5a 24,639 16,712
Trade & Other Receivables 5b 5,279 8,110
Other Financial Assets 5¢ 2,400 37,300
Inventories 5d 500 311
Subtotal 32,818 62,433
Total current assets 32,818 62,433
Non-current assets
Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses 6a 7,855 6,627
Other Non-Current Assets 6b 6,659 10,328
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 7a(i) 1,198,015 1,129,486
Total non-current assets 1,212,529 1,146,441
TOTAL ASSETS 1,245,347 1,208,874
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 8a 11,029 17,721
Borrowings 8b 876 827
Provisions 8c 6,346 6,430
Lease Liabilities 8d 10 15
Subtotal 18,261 24,993
Total Current Liabilities 18,261 24,993
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 8b 2,687 3,564
Provisions 8c 594 702
Lease Liabilities 8d - 11
Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,281 4,277
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,542 29,270
Net Assets 1,223,805 1,179,604
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 427,628 403,189
Asset revaluation reserves 9a 769,508 732,120
Other reserves 9b 26,669 44,295
Total Council Equity 1,223,805 1,179,604
Total Equity 1,223,805 1,179,604
The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Asset

Accumulated revaluation Other Total
$'000 Notes surplus reserve reserves equity
2022
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 403,189 732,120 44,295 1,179,604
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 6,813 - - 6,813
Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain (Loss) on Revaluation of |,PP&E 7a - 37,042 - 37,042
- Share of Gain (Loss) on Revaluation - Equity
Accounted Council Businesses - 346 - 346
Other comprehensive income — 37,388 - 37,388
Total comprehensive income 6,813 37,388 - 44,201
Transfers between Reserves 17,626 - (17,626) -
Balance at the end of period 427,628 769,508 26,669 1,223,805
2021
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 396,604 753,528 41,183 1,191,315
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 9,697 - - 9,697
Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain (Loss) on Revaluation of |,PP&E 7a - (21,408) - (21,408)
Other comprehensive income — (21,408) - (21,408)
Total comprehensive income 9,697 (21,408) - (11,711)
Transfers between Reserves (3,112) - 3,112 -
Balance at the end of period 403,189 732,120 44,295 1,179,604

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Marion

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Rates Receipts

Statutory Charges

User Charges

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (operating purpose)
Investment Receipts

Reimbursements

Other Receipts

Payments

Finance Payments

Payments to Employees

Payments for Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Net cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Receipts

Net Disposal of Investment Securities

Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets
Sale of Replaced Assets

Sale of Surplus Assets

Payments

Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets

Net Purchase of Investment Securities

Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments
Repayments of Borrowings
Repayment of Finance Lease Liabilities

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period

Additional Information:
plus: Investments on hand — end of year

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Page 75
Notes 2022 2021
82,059 80,535
2,369 2,193
3,131 2,852
10,156 12,681
365 503
748 939
12,804 4,105
(271) (335)
(41,046) (38,172)
(56,484) (47,072)
11b 13,831 18,229
34,900 -
4,153 5,983
266 385
97 416
(9,959) (7,530)
(34,416) (16,315)
- (900)
(4,959) (17,961)
(828) (1,244)
(117) (143)
(945) (1,387)
7,927 (1,119)
16,712 17,831
e 24,639 16,712
50 2,400 37,300
27,039 54,012
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Page 76

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements

Note

0 N ok WON -~

- a ©
- O

12(a)
12(b)
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

Details

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Income

Expenses

Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Liabilities

Reserves

Assets Subject to Restrictions

Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

Functions

Components of Functions

Financial Instruments

Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments
Financial Indicators

Uniform Presentation of Finances

Leases

Superannuation

Interests in Other Entities

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations
Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Related Party Transactions
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16
19
20
21
22
23
26
27
29
30
31
32
34
37
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39
40
42
43
44
45
45
46
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by Council in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of Preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost convention in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 dated 30 May 2022

1.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council’s accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of these Notes.

1.3 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($°000).
1.4 Estimates and assumptions

COVID-19 is not expected to have a significant financial impact on Council operations with the Council. It is expected limited
financial impacts will flow into the 2022/23 financial year and these have been largely taken into account during the development
of the budget process for 2022/23. The budget assumptions for 2022/23 assume that no further harsher restrictions are put in
place by the government. However, Council has determined that there is no material uncertainty that casts doubt on Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

(2) The Local Government Reporting Entity

City of Marion is incorporated under the South Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its principal place of business
at 245 Sturt Road, Sturt. These financial statements include the Council’s direct operations and all entities through which
Council controls resources to carry on its functions. In the process of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all transactions
and balances between activity areas and controlled entities have been eliminated.

Other entities in which Council has an interest but does not control are reported in Note 19.

(3) Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income is recognised when the Council
obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever
first occurs.

Where grants, contributions and donations recognised as incomes during the reporting period were obtained on the condition
that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were undischarged as at
the reporting date, the amounts subject to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in these notes. Also disclosed is the
amount of grants, contributions and receivables recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period which were obtained in
respect of the Council's operations for the current reporting period.

continued on next page ... Page 9 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In recent years the payment of untied financial assistance grants has varied from the annual allocation as shown in the table

below:

Cash Annual
Payment . Difference

. Allocation

Received

2019/20 $2,980,238 $3,452,091 - $471,853
2020/21 $3,046,589 $2,995,722 $50,867
2021/22 $4,601,320 $3,124,230 $1,477,790

Because these grants are untied, the Australian Accounting Standards require that payments be recognised upon receipt.
Accordingly, the operating results of these periods have been distorted compared to those that would have been reported had
the grants been paid in the year to which they were allocated.

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 15 has also been calculated after adjusting for the distortions resulting from
the differences between the actual grants received and the grants entitlements allocated.

Construction Contracts

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third party reimburses
Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting period. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as “payments received in advance”.

For works undertaken on a fixed price contract basis, revenues are recognised over time using the input method, with costs
incurred compared to total expected costs used as a measure of progress. When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

(4) Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council’s option with an insignificant risk of changes
in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determined in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999. Other receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition, except for trade receivables from a contract with
a customer, which are measured at the transaction price. A detailed statement of the accounting policies applied to financial
instruments forms part of Note 13.

(5) Inventories
Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after

adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of business undertakings have been valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

(6) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and depreciated as soon as the
asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. The cost of non-current

continued on next page ... Page 10 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead.

6.2 Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds materiality
thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard

is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life.

Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during the year are given below. No capitalisation threshold is applied to the
acquisition of land or interests in land.

Category Individual
Threshold
Infrastructure $10,000]
Land n/a|
Land Improvements $5,000,
Buildings $10,000]
Furniture and Fittings $3,000]
Equipment $3,000]
Other $3,000
Thresholds are also applied to Aggregated Assets in determining whether the value is considered material.
Aggregate
Category Threshold
Infrastructure
Reserve Lighting $250,000
Reserve Pathways $500,000
Buildings
Bus Shelters $1,000,000
Shelters/Gazebos $250,000
Fencing $500,000
Furniture and Fittings $25,000]
Equipment
Irrigation $1,000,000
LED Lighting $1,000,000
Other
BBQs $250,000
Reserve Furniture $500,000
Drink Fountains $50,000]
Reserve Bollards $250,000
Reserve Bins $100,000
City Band Instruments $100,000
Council Artwork $100,000

6.3 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset classes including land, buildings and
associated structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties, and of existing valuations, methods and valuers
are provided at Note 7.

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their

useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects the consumption of the service potential
embodied in those assets.

continued on next page ... Page 11 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are listed below. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been
estimated based on the best information available to Council, but appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of these
assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

Short Lifel Long Life
Years| Years
Furniture & Equipment
Office Equipment 3 to 10 n/a
Office Furniture 15 n/a|
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 3 to 15 n/a
Other Plant & Equipment 7 to 25 n/al
LED Lighting 50 n/a
Irrigation — Equipment 10 n/al
Irrigation - Pipework 60 n/a
Buildings
Sub Structure n/a| 80 to 200
Super Structure 40 to 80 n/al
Roofing 40) n/a
Services 40 to 50 n/a|
Fitout 30) n/a|
Infrastructure
Sealed Roads — Surface 25 to 40 n/a|
Road Base 60 to 100 200
Road Formation 200 n/a|
Kerb 70 to 105 200
Footpath — Bitumen/Rubber 20 to 40 60 to 100
Footpath — Concrete 50 to 85| n/al
Footpath — Paved 50 to 85| n/a|
Other Road Structures 20 to 100} 40 to 80
Traffic Signs 15 to 20 n/a|
Bridges 80 to 140 200
Stormwater Pipes Concrete 100 to 175 200
Stormwater Pipes PVC 60 to 100 n/al
Stormwater Pipes Ribloc 60 to 100 200}
Junction Boxes 100 to 175 200
Pollutant Traps 100 to 175 200
Box Culverts 100 to 175 200
Headwalls 100 to 175 200}
Drainage Pits 100 to 175 200
Other Infrastructure
Wetland Assets 15 to 100} 250
Car Parks 25 to 40 n/a|
Lighting 15 to 25 n/a|
Recreation Pathways 30 to 40| n/a|
Sports Floodlights 25| n/a|
Other Assets
Playground Equipment 20 n/a
Reserve Furniture 25| n/a|
Band Instruments 30) n/a|
Civic Art Structures 15 to 80 n/a|
continued on next page ... Page 12 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

6.5 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the future economic
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher of the present value of future cash inflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amount as stands
to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being recognised as an expense.

6.6 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised in accordance with
AASB 123 “Borrowing Costs”. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised as an expense or as part of the carrying amount of
qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the amount (if any) of interest revenue offset against borrowing costs in Note 2.

(7) Payables

7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities when
the goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days from the date of invoice. No interest is payable
on these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the
amount is refunded as the case may be.

(8) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows associated with
servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates, and is recorded as part of “Payables”.

(9) Employee Benefits

9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or settled within
12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts) measured in accordance with

AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

9.2 Superannuation
The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Hostplus Superannuation Fund.
The Fund has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Council also makes contributions to other

superannuation schemes selected by employees under the "choice of fund" legislation. Details of the accounting policies
applied and Council’s involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 18.

continued on next page ... Page 13 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(10) Leases

The Council asseses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.That is, the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Council as a Lessee

Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of -use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

Council recognises the right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of the costs to be incurred to restore
the leased asset. Right-of-use assets are depreciatated on a straight line basis over lease term.

The right-of-use asset is also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, Council recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of the lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of the lease payments the council uses the interest
rate implicit in the lease.

ii) Short term leases and leases of low value assets

Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to it's short term leases (i.e. a lease term less than 12 months
from commencement date). Council also applies the low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that do not meet the
underlying asset capitalisation threshold. These leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term.

(11) Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Council participates in cooperative arrangements with other Councils for the provision of services and facilities. Council’s
interests in cooperative arrangements, which are only recognised if material, are accounted for in accordance with AASB 128
and set out in detail in Note 19.

(12) GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Interpretation 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

* Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

« Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.
» Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.

* Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

(13) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

The Council applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. New standards and amendments relevant to the Council are listed below. The Council has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to AASB 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

In 2020, the AASB issued AASB 2020-4, Amendments to AASs - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The amendments
provide relief to lessees from applying AASB 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in
lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS
16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, in 2021 the AASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30

continued on next page ... Page 14 of 48
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

June 2022. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. This amendment had no
impact on the financial statements of the Council.

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, these
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be included in the financial statements on their effective date. Where

the standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note.

The following list identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative statements that could be applicable to Councils.

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

+  AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other
Amendments

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
* AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-6)
* AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Polcies and Definition of
Acccounting Estimates ( amended by AASB 2021-6)

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

» AASB 2014-10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amended by
AASB 2015-10, AASB 2017-5 and AASB 2021-7))

(14) Comparative Figures

To ensure comparability with the current reporting period’s figures, some comparative period line items and amounts may
have been reclassified or individually reported for the first time within these financial statements and/or the notes.

(15) Disclaimer

Nothing contained within these statements may be taken to be an admission of any liability to any person under any
circumstance.
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Note 2. Income

$'000 2022 2021

(a) Rates Revenues

General Rates

General Rates 81,912 79,924
Less: Mandatory Rebates (2,316) (1,959)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs (35) (25)
Total General Rates 79,561 77,940
Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Regional Landscape Levy 2,057 1,995
Total Other Rates (Including Service Charges) 2,057 1,995
Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 261 244
Total Other Charges 261 244
Total Rates 81,879 80,179

(b) Statutory Charges

Planning and Development Fees 978 930
Animal Registration Fees & Fines 599 575
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees 771 670
Total Statutory Charges 2,348 2,175

(c) User Charges

Hall & Equipment Hire 345 307
Sales - General 593 828
Sundry 881 853
Admission Fees 560 382
Rental Income 631 331
Total User Charges 3,010 2,701

(d) Investment Income

Interest on Investments

- Local Government Finance Authority 365 499
- Banks & Other — 4
Total Investment Income 365 503
continued on next page ... Page 16 of 48
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Note 2. Income (continued)
$'000 2022 2021

(e) Reimbursements

Private Works 286 357
Other 404 515
Total Reimbursements 690 872

(f) Other income

Sundry 272 39
Donations & Contributions income 459 161
Labour Recovery 656 618
Insurance & Other Recoupments - Infrastructure, IPP&E 119 84
Total Other income 1,506 902

(g) Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility 1,280 2,602
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Phase 2 1,239 796
Southern Soccer Facility 1,029 1,278
Mitchell Park Sports and Community Club 1,230 3,520
Hugh Johnson Boulevard Reserve 801 -
Other Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 680 1,346
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 6,259 9,542
Individually Significant Item - Financial Assistance Grants 4,601 3,047
Home and Community Care Grants 2,633 1,714
Coastal Walking Trail Renewal 1,193 -
Birch Crescent Streetscape - 1,825
Roads to Recovery 976 976
Food Waste Recycling Program 563 -
Family and Community Development 278 272
Library Services 278 317
Smart Cities & Suburbs - 618
Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 1,220 1,050
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 11,742 9,819
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 18,001 19,361

The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12.

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 8,030 10,786
State Government 9,765 8,002
Other 206 573
Total 18,001 19,361
(ii) Individually Significant ltems

Grants Commission - Financial Assistance Grant recognised as income 4,601 3,047
continued on next page ... Page 17 of 48

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 12.1.3 Page 86

City of Marion

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 2. Income (continued)

2022: In April 2022, Council received part payment for the 2022/23 Grants Commission Financial Assistance Grants. This
payment was adjusted for minor reconciling amounts relating to the 2021/22 Grants Commission payment received in May
2021.

2021: In May 2021, Council received part payment for the 2021/22 Grants Commission Financial Assistance Grants. This
payment was adjusted for minor reconciling amounts relating to the 2020/21 Grants Commission payment received in June
2020.

$'000 2022 2021
(h) Conditions over Grants & Contributions

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended
for specified purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in
accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 8,186 7,167

Less:

Expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting

periods

Other (7,831) (659)
Subtotal (7,831) (659)

Plus:

Amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period but not yet expended in
accordance with the conditions

Other 3,836 1,678
Subtotal 3,836 1,678
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 4,191 8,186

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to conditions in the current reporting
period (3,995) 1,019

(i) Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Roads, Bridges & Footpaths 1,396 2,001
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,396 2,001
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Note 3. Expenses
$'000 Notes 2022 2021

(a) Employee costs

Salaries and Wages 32,841 32,086
Employee Leave Expense 4,004 3,007
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions 18 3,213 3,027
Workers' Compensation Insurance 944 803
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (868) (685)
Total Operating Employee Costs 40,134 38,238
Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period) 387 370

(b) Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 28 39
Bad and Doubtful Debts 95 8
Elected Members' Expenses 370 365
Operating Lease Rentals - Cancellable Leases 290 317
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 783 729
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 23,551 21,118
Maintenance 4,187 4,141
Parts, Accessories & Consumables 4,720 4,116
Infrastructure Contributions 2,491 2,616
Sundry 1,564 2,373
Levies Paid to Government - Regional Landscape Levy 2,057 1,996
Levies - Other 136 226
Energy 1,478 1,445
Professional Services 1,741 1,430
Insurance 669 586
Memberships & Subscriptions 437 367
Legal Expenses 359 300
Printing & Postage 276 276
Bank Fees & Charges 184 202
Library Materials 184 198
Telecommunication Charges 174 176
Fringe Benefits Tax 113 162
Advertising 37 75
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses 44,358 41,803
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 45,141 42,532
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Note 3. Expenses (continued)

$'000 2022 2021

(c) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation

Buildings & Other Structures 3,746 3,708
Infrastructure 8,992 8,858
- Other 1,193 1,178
Right-of-use Assets 130 124
Plant & Equipment 1,416 1,307
Furniture & Fittings 84 79
Intangible Assets 54 45
Other Assets 719 664
Subtotal 16,334 15,963
Total Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 16,334 15,963

(d) Finance Costs

Interest on Loans 271 335
Total Finance Costs 271 335

Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$'000 2022 2021

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from Disposal 266 385
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (1,676) (2,465)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal (1,410) (2,080)
(ii) Assets Surplus to Requirements

Proceeds from Disposal 97 416
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (71) (438)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 26 (22)
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets (1,384) (2,102)
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Note 5. Current Assets

$'000 2022 2021

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand at Bank 839 1,112
Short Term Deposits & Bills, etc. 23,800 15,600
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 24,639 16,712

(b) Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other 1,710 1,897
Rates Postponed for State Seniors 174 167
Accrued Revenues 72 1,148
Debtors - General 1,732 3,315
GST Recoupment 800 1,051
Prepayments 791 532
Total Trade & Other Receivables 5,279 8,110

(c) Other Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets (Term Deposits with over 90 days to maturity) 2,400 37,300
Total Other Financial Assets 2,400 37,300

Amounts included in other financial assets that are not expected to be received within
12 months of reporting date are disclosed in Note 13.

(d) Inventories

Stores & Materials 500 311
Total Inventories 500 311
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Note 6. Non-Current Assets

$'000 Notes 2022 2021

(a) Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority 19(a)i 7,855 6,627
Total Equity Accounted Investments in Council
Businesses 7,855 6,627

(b) Other Non-Current Assets

Other
Capital Works-in-Progress 6,659 10,328
Total Other Non-Current Assets 6,659 10,328
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(a(i)) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

as at 30/06/21 Asset movements during the reporting period as at 30/06/22
Revaluation ~ Revaluation
Asset Decrements  Increments
Fair Additions Asset WDV of Depreciation to Equity to Equity
Value Accumulated Carrying New / Additions Asset Expense Adjustments (ARR) (Note (ARR) (Note Accumulated Carrying
$'000 Level At Fair Value At Cost  Depreciation amount Upgrade Renewals Disposals (Note 3c) & Transfers 9) 9) At Fair Value At Cost  Depreciation amount
Land 3 353,132 - - 353,132 110 - - - - - - 353,242 - - 353,242
Buildings & Other Structures 3 183,357 - (71,532) 111,825 21,702 1,205 (64) (3,746) - - - 205,947 - (75,024) 130,923
Infrastructure 3 778,153 - (176,252) 601,901 6,386 5,855 (878) (8,992) - - 37,042 844,563 - (203,249) 641,314
- Other 3 48,752 - (14,157) 34,595 9,853 794 (479) (1,193) - - - 58,371 - (14,801) 43,570
Right-of-Use Assets - 658 (637) 21 - - - (130) 117 - - - 775 (767) 8
Plant & Equipment - 25,207 (9,894) 15,313 673 1,802 (262) (1,416) - - - - 27,273 (11,164) 16,109
Furniture & Fittings - 1,407 (674) 733 320 91 - (84) - - - - 1,819 (758) 1,061
Intangible Assets - 1,043 (931) 112 24 75 - (54) - - - 1,141 - (985) 156
Other Assets 3 16,279 - (4,425) 11,854 559 - (64) (719) - - - 16,710 - (5,078) 11,632
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment 1,379,673 28,315 (278,502) 1,129,486 39,627 9,822  (1,747) (16,334) 117 - 37,042 1,479,974 29,867 (311,826) 1,198,015
Comparatives 1,345,157 61,129  (256,478) 1,149,808 12,994 7,011 (2,903) (15,963) (56) (21,408) - 1,379,673 28,315  (278,502) 1,129,486
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

(b) Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level" in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Refer to Note 7a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.
Information on Valuations

Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation
inputs. They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly or indirectly observable adjustments for
specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions on use or disposal, shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, but include
adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset that are not directly or indirectly
observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which are so great that the valuation
is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

There is no known market for buildings, infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated current
replacement cost. This method involves:

» The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for
materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, or
on industry construction guides where these are more appropriate.

* The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates of
residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficient construction techniques

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established deemed
cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of recognition of non-material
asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the difference
represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: accumulated
depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value. In the case of land, current
replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use

All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement

The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013 as
shown by the valuation dates by individual asset classes below.

Fair value hierarchy level 2 valuations: Land is shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs.
They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly or indirectly observable adjustments for specific
advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of valuations of buildings, infrastructure and other assets: There is no known market for
these assets and they are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for materials
and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, or on industry
construction guides where these are more appropriate.

The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates of residual
value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficient construction techniques.
Land & Land Improvements
Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recognition, land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports. A comprehensive revaluation was carried out by independent valuation for

the reporting period, 30 June 2018.

Freehold land and land over which Council has control, but does not have title, is recognised on the cost basis. No capitalisation
threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

Land improvements, including bulk earthworks with an assessed unlimited useful life, are recognised on the cost basis.
Additions are recognised at cost.

Estimated future costs of reinstatement of land, capitalised in accordance with AASB 116.16(c), are reviewed annually (see
Note 1) and depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the relevant asset. Currently there are no assets that require
this treatment.

Buildings & Other Structures

A comprehensive revaluation was carried out by independent valuation for the reporting period, 30 June 2018.

Infrastructure

A desktop revaluation of infrastructure assets (roads, footpaths, kerbs, drains, bridges, traffic devices and traffic signs) was
carried out by independent valuation for this reporting period, 30 June 2022.

A comprehensive revaluation was carried out by independent valuation for the reporting period, 30 June 2018 for other
infrastructure assets such as car parks, lighting, walking trails and reserve pathways

All acquisitions made after the respective dates of valuation are recorded at cost.
Plant, Equipment & Equipment

These assets are recognised on the cost basis.

All other Assets

A comprehensive revaluation was carried out by independent valuation for the reporting period, 30 June 2018.
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Note 8. Liabilities

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current Non Current Current Non Current
(a) Trade and Other Payables
Goods & Services 5,652 - 8,010 —
Payments Received in Advance - - 23 -
- Grants, Subsidies, Contributions - Operating 974 — 2,863 -
- Grants & Contributions - Capital 3,217 - 5,323 -
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitlements 1,041 - 1,313 -
Accrued Expenses - Other 83 - 130 -
Other 62 - 59 -
Total Trade and Other Payables 11,029 - 17,721 -
(b) Borrowings
Loans 876 2,687 827 3,564
Total Borrowings 876 2,687 827 3,564
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over
the future revenues of the Council
(c) Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 6,346 594 6,430 702
Total Provisions 6,346 594 6,430 702
(d) Lease Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 10 - 15 11
Total Other Liabilities 10 - 15 11
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Note 9. Reserves

Page 95

as at 30/06/21

as at 30/06/22

Opening Increments Closing
$'000 Balance (Decrements) Transfers Impairments Balance
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land 250,696 - - - 250,696
Buildings & Other Structures 84,875 - - - 84,875
Infrastructure 2,890 1,165 - - 4,055
- Stormwater Drainage 80,343 15,681 - - 96,024
- Other 298 - - - 298
- Roads, Bridges, Footpaths 307,578 20,196 - - 327,774
Other Assets 5,073 - - - 5,073
JV's / Associates - Other Comprehensive Income 367 346 - - 713
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 732,120 37,388 - - 769,508
Comparatives 753,528 (21,408) - - 732,120

as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/22

Opening Tfrs to Tfrs from Other Closing
$'000 Balance Reserve Reserve Movements Balance
(b) Other Reserves
Open Space Reserve 2,441 135 (64) - 2,512
Grants/Carry Forward Projects Reserve 23,085 4,206 (14,438) - 12,853
Asset Sustainability Reserve 17,910 1,117 (8,876) - 10,151
Water Reserve 859 294 - - 1,153
Total Other Reserves 44,295 5,752 (23,378) - 26,669
Comparatives 41,183 24,808 (21,696) - 44,295

continued on next page ...
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Note 9. Reserves (continued)

Purposes of Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserves

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non current
assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Open Space Reserve

Purpose - this reserve has been established to account for the following:

|. set aside open space contributions provided by developers in accordance with the Planning,Development and Infrastructure
Act 2016 (conditions may apply)

1. separate net proceeds associated with Road Closures.

IIl. net proceeds associated with disposal of minor land holdings

IV. funds received from the ‘Urban Trees Fund’

Use of Fund - monies can be applied to the development of Open Space facilities as approved by Council and in accordance
with the Open Space Policy. Interest revenues earned on contributions provided by developers are transferred to the Fund.

Grants and Carryovers Reserve

Purpose - this reserve was created for:

Grants received in advance - occasionally a funding body has provided untied Grant funds relating to the following financial
year(s) in advance. When this has occurred, it has been necessary to transfer these funds to this reserve so that they can be

matched against the expenditures planned to be incurred in the next financial year.

Carryovers - typically represents unspent capital and service improvements budgets carried forward to the following financial
year.

Use of Fund - monies are utilised in accordance with the original purpose.

Asset Sustainability Reserve

Purpose - this is a reserve fund established to:

I. Primary Purpose — Provide Council with the ability to access sufficient funds to enable it to respond to a major infrastructure
failure or fund an infrastructure gap identified in periodic asset audits.

1. Assist Council fund its Long Term Asset Management objectives.

IIl. Provide a means by which to spread the cost of intergenerational assets thereby reducing the need for borrowings

IV. Provide a means by which Council can strategically plan to maintain its asset base within a long term Financial framework.

The Asset Sustainability Reserve will be funded from planned surpluses identified in the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP).

Use of Fund - Reserve transfers will be controlled by specific Council resolutions or identified as part of the approved annual
Strategic Plan and Budget.

Water Reserve

Purpose - this reserve is established to quarantine revenue received and savings identified from the sale and use of treated
stormwater from Oaklands Wetland to further develop third party supply opportunities.

Use of Fund - Reserve transfers require approval at Executive level.
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Note 10. Assets Subject to Restrictions

$'000 2022 2021

The uses of the following assets are restricted, wholly or partially, by legislation or
other externally imposed requirements. The assets are required to be utilised for the
purposes for which control was transferred to Council, or for which the revenues were
originally obtained.

Cash & Financial Assets

Grant funds received in advance 4,191 8,186

Total Cash & Financial Assets 4,191 8,186

Total Assets Subject to Externally Imposed Restrictions 4,191 8,186
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Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows
$'000 Notes 2022 2021

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of
value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in
the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets 5 24,639 16,712
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 24,639 16,712

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from

Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 6,813 9,697

Non-Cash Items in Income Statements

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 16,334 15,963

Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Increase)/Decrease (882) (173)

Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions (1,396) (2,001)

Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (6,259) (9,542)

Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 1,384 2,102
15,994 16,046

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (189) 20

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 2,831 (2,110)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (16) 7

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables (4,597) 4,049

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits (192) 217

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 13,831 18,229

$'000 Notes 2022 2021

(c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:

Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2i 1,396 2,001

Amounts recognised in Income Statement 1,396 2,001

Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 1,396 2,001

(d) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of

credit:

Corporate Credit Cards 125 125

LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 11,000 11,000

Council has immediate access to a short-term cash advance debenture facility at variable interest rate borrowings from the
Local Government Finance Authority of SA.
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Note 12(a). Functions

Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 12(b).

TOTAL ASSETS HELD

OPERATING GRANTS INCLUDED (CURRENT &
INCOME EXPENSES SURPLUS (DEFICIT) IN INCOME NON-CURRENT)
$'000 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Functions/Activities
Development Assessment 1,179 1,099 4,573 4,375 (3,394) (3,276) - - - -
Crime Prevention 3 5 393 363 (390) (358) - - - -
Community Support & Development 5417 4,677 15,548 14,669 (10,131) (9,992) 2,821 2,381 150,515 130,348
Public & Environment Health 157 120 1,184 929 (1,027) (809) 553 78 - -
Community Safety Inspection 1,411 1,277 2,235 1,869 (824) (592) - - - -
Public Infrastructure 3,435 2,961 20,847 20,446 (17,412) (17,485) 4,832 2,092 700,382 661,170
Open Space 1,120 2,026 18,335 19,069 (17,215) (17,043) 198 1,463 298,674 293,244
Public Conveniences 10 8 664 633 (654) (625) - - 3,170 3,304
Strategic Projects 52 131 1,788 1,966 (1,736 (1,835 - 50 52 66
Asset Management — — — - - - - - 15,236 15,349
Neighbourhood Centres 340 401 1,560 1,675 (1,220) (1,274) 285 357 7,648 7,487
Cultural Development 254 336 3,600 3,306 (3,346) (2,970) 13 93 14,308 14,472
Libraries 589 602 8,614 7,731 (8,025) (7,129) 362 317 13,938 13,935
Waste & Recycling 110 757 10,269 9,945 (10,159) (9,188) - 573 - -
Trees - - 2,471 2,092 (2,471) (2,092) 20 - - -
Economic Development 90 100 1,120 1,194 (1,030) (1,094) - 60 - -
Governance - - 5,961 4,062 (5,961) (4,062) - - - -
Service Quality 1 2 163 108 (162) (106) - - 742 411
Treasury 87,372 82,649 2,555 2,636 84,817 80,013 2,658 2,355 40,682 69,088
Total Functions/Activities 101,540 97,151 101,880 97,068 (340) 83 11,742 9,819 1,245,347 1,208,874

Revenues and expenses exclude net gain (loss) on disposal or revaluation of assets, net gain (loss) from joint ventures & associated entities, amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assets and physical resources received free of
charge.
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Note 12(b). Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT
Building and planning services which ensure that houses are safely constructed and designed and developed in a manner
which is sympathetic to the local neighbourhood

CRIME PREVENTION
Services such as graffiti removal and working with other agencies to improve the safety and amenity of the community

COMMUNITY SUPPORT & DEVELOPMENT
Services such as home and community care, youth services, support for volunteers and community transport providing
direct support to groups within the community

PUBLIC & ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Services such as food safety and public health inspections, immunisation and enforcement of certain environmental
regulations as well as Planning, information, advice and demonstration to promote environmentally sensitive practices by
both Council and the community

COMMUNITY SAFETY INSPECTION
Services include dog and cat control, pest control, parking control and the enforcement of by-laws to ensure that the
community is safe and orderly

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

Includes the design, development and maintenance of footpaths, streets, drainage and kerb and water table, as well as
street signs, traffic control devices and line-marking ensuring that local neighbourhoods are safe and accessible with good
amenity

OPEN SPACE
Parks, reserves, ovals and streetscape development and maintenance providing well maintained public spaces for use by all
members of the community

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES
Services such as provision and maintenance of public toilets in close proximity to highly frequented reserves and other open
space areas

STRATEGIC PROJECTS
Delivery of Major Projects across the city aimed at providing improved services and facilities for the Community

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Management and maintenance of Council properties enabling them to be utilised by members of the community for various
purposes such as meetings, social activities and programs

NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRES
Providing opportunities for learning and social activities for all ages and interests

CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT

Supporting community involvement in arts and cultural activity and expression, celebrating diversity, indigenous people and
those from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. This includes the Marion Cultural Centre and Living Kaurna
Cultural Centre providing cultural and artistic experiences for the community

LIBRARIES
Three libraries and a delivery service providing opportunities for learning and social activities for all ages and interests

WASTE & RECYCLING
Services including domestic kerbside collection, hard rubbish collection, street sweeping and general litter collection to
maintain cleanliness and amenity

TREES

Provision of street trees and revegetation programs to improve amenity and promote, where possible, the use of indigenous
plants
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Note 12(b). Components of Functions (continued)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Planning and support for existing and potential businesses to assist businesses to adapt to changing circumstance and
provide an employment base for the Marion community

ORGANISATION OF EXCELLENCE
To lead in the delivery of the Community Vision, the organisation must maintain its sustainability. This underpins our Corporate
Vision of “An Organisation of Excellence”. To achieve this, the following essential support services are funded in the budget.

Governance

Elected Member Support
Provision of services which enable Elected Members to undertake their role in making decisions for the Council and community,
including Council meetings, elections and council receptions.

Strategic, corporate and sustainability planning and policy development

To ensure that Council is progressing towards achieving the Community Vision 2040 and its strategic social, cultural, and
economic and environmental sustainability goals in a transparent and accountable manner, working with our Local, State, and
Commonwealth Government partners

Risk management policy, development and internal audit
Activities to ensure that Council is continuously improving its management systems

External relations, communication and community engagement
Enables the community to be appropriately and adequately informed about the activities and decisions of the Council.

Service Quality

Customer Experience

In particular the Customer Service Centre, which enables Council staff to liaise with the community to address issues and
concerns directly with Council, as well as provide the community with information and referral to other services provided in
the region.

Information Technology
Provides support to Council staff for their technological needs to enable them to contribute towards delivery of the Community
Vision as well as access by the community to Council information and services through the internet and email

Information Management
Enables Council to keep adequate and appropriate records of activities and decisions

TREASURY
Including budgeting, rating, accounts management and payroll, which ensure sound and transparent financial management
which enables Council to provide adequate services and facilities and appropriately address community needs
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Note 13. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments
Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost; interest is recognised when earned.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 0.43% and 2.17% (2021: 0.30% and 0.55%). Short term deposits have an
average maturity of 92 days and an average interest rate of 0.41% (2021: 110 days and 1.55%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables - Rates & Associated Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 2% (2021: 2%). Council is not materially exposed to any individual
debtor, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Fees & Other Charges

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:

Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Other Levels of Government

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice

of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy:

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Council.

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable over 10 to 15 years; interest is charged at fixed rates between 5.8%
and 6.85% (2021: 5.8% and 6.85%).

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Leases

Accounting Policy:
Accounted for in accordance with AASB 16 as stated in Note 17.

Total

Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$'000 <1 year & <5 years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
Financial Assets and
Liabilities
2022
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 24,639 - - 24,639 24,639
Receivables 5,279 - - 5,279 5,279
Other Financial Assets 2,400 - - 2,400 2,400
Total Financial Assets 32,318 — - 32,318 32,318
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5,783 - - 5,783 5,783
Borrowings 1,081 - - 1,081 876
Non-Current Borrowings - 2,325 830 3,155 2,687
Total Financial Liabilities 6,864 2,325 830 10,019 9,346
2021
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,712 - - 16,712 16,712
Receivables 8,110 - - 8,110 8,110
Other Financial Assets 37,300 - - 37,300 37,300
Total Financial Assets 62,122 - - 62,122 62,122
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

Total
Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$'000 <1 year & <5 years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
Financial Liabilities
Payables 8,222 - - 8,222 8,222
Borrowings 1,081 - - 1,081 827
Non-Current Borrowings - 2,991 1,244 4,235 3,564
Total Financial Liabilities 9,303 2,991 1,244 13,538 12,613
The following interest rates were applicable to Council's Borrowings at balance date:
2022 2021
Weighted Avg Carrying Weighted Avg Carrying
$'000 Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Fixed Interest Rates 6.09% 3,563 6.08% 4,391
3563 4391

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for the
financial assets of the Council.
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum credit
risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any impairment. All Council investments are made with
the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in
relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material
exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of Council's
financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither market risk nor

currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In accordance with
the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of maturity dates. Council also has
available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has a

balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistically
in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner.

Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Council uses an allowance matrix to measure expected credit losses for receivables from individual customers, which comprise
alarge number of small balances. As rates and annual charges are secured over subject land no allowance for such receivables
is made. The following table provides information about Council’s ECLs from receivables (excluding secured rates and charges,
GST and other amounts held in trust). Impairment analysis is performed each reporting date. ECLS are based on credit history
adjusted for forward looking estimates and economic conditions.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses:

Note 14. Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments
$'000 2022 2021
Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:

Buildings 1,255 10,490

Infrastructure 2,655 2,493

Plant & Equipment 2,093 1,749

Other 581 1,366
6,584 16,098

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 6,584 16,098
6,584 16,098
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Note 15. Financial Indicators

Indicator
2022

Financial Indicators overview

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with Information
paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators prepared as part of the LGA
Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government Association of South
Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus

0,
Total Operating Income 0.5%

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total operating
revenue.

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities
Total Operating Income

(11)%

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets
(excluding equity accounted investments in Council businesses). These are
expressed as a percentage of total operating revenue.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus
Total Operating Income

(0.9)%

Adjustments to Ratios

In recent years the Commonwealth Government has made advance payments
prior to 30th June from future year allocations of financial assistance grants, as
explained in Note 1. These Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion in
key ratios for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison.

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities
Total Operating Income

(8)%

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Asset Renewals

0,
Targeted Renewal Expenditure (Depreciation Expense 2020 and prior) 78%

Asset renewals expenditure is defined as capital expenditure on the renewal and
replacement of existing assets relative to the optimal level planned, and excludes
new capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.
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Indicators
2021 2020
0.3% 6.8%
(34)% (32)%
0.2% 7.2%
(32)% (32)%
86% 58%
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Note 16. Uniform Presentation of Finances
$'000

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment
activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework
basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' of financial
information, which enables meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances.

Income
less Expenses
Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

Net Outlays on Existing Assets

Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets
add back Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets

Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets

add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets
add back Proceeds from Sale of Surplus Assets

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year
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2022 2021
102,422 97,324
(101,880) (97,068)
542 256
(9,959) (7,530)
16,334 15,963
266 385
6,641 8,818
(34,416) (16,315)
4,153 5,983
97 416
(30,166) (9,916)
(22,983) (842)
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Note 17. Leases

(i) Council as a lessee
Terms and conditions of leases

Computer and Office Equipment

Council has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for various items of computer and office equipment.
No contingent rentals were paid during the current or previous reporting periods.

No lease imposes any additional restrictions on Council in relation to additional debt or further leasing.

Leases in relation to computer and office equipment permit Council, at expiry of the lease, to elect to re-lease, return or acquire
the equipment leased.

No lease contains any escalation clause.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised within Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment and the movements during the period:

(a) Right of use assets

$'000 Ready to use Total
2022

Opening balance 21 21
Adjustments to right-of-use assets due to re-measurement of lease liability 117 117
Depreciation charge (130) (130)

Impairment of right-of-use assets - —
Reclassification to Software as a Service - -

Balance at 30 June 8 8
2021

Opening balance 201 201
Adjustments to right-of-use assets due to re-measurement of lease liability (4) (4)
Depreciation charge (124) (124)
Impairment of right-of-use assets - -
Reclassification to Software as a Service (52 (52)
Balance at 30 June 21 21

(b) Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the
movements during the period:

$ '000 2022 2021
Balance at 1 July 26 217
Accretion of interest 19 12
Payments (152) (144)
Reclassification to Software as a Service - (55)
Re-measurement of Lease liability 117 (4)
Balance at 30 June 10 26

Classified as:
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Note 17. Leases (continued)

$ '000 2022 2021
Current 10 15
Non Current - 11

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is included in Note 13.

Council had total cash outflows for leases of $441,587
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-of-Use Assets 130 124
Interest expense on lease liabilities 19 12
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 260 288
Other 30 29
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 439 453
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Note 18. Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Hostplus (formerly Statewide Super).
There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South
Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the
Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the
Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions
are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannuation guarantee legislation (10% in
2021/22; 9.50% in 2020/21). No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees
are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’'s
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer contributions
to Salarylink as determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3%
(6.3% in 2020/21) of “superannuation” salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3.7% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink members to their
Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, assets
accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they
accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are pooled and
are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local government sector
and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers.
As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willie Towers
Watson as at 30 June 2021. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the
expected Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes to Council’s
contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes
Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”

legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are
represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the Council.
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities

All joint ventures and associates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that comply with the SA
Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Council's Share of Net Income Council's Share of Net Assets
$ '000 2022 2021 2022 2021
Council's Share of Net Income
Joint Ventures 882 173 7,855 6,627
Total Council's Share of Net Income 882 173 7,855 6,627

((a)i) Joint Ventures, Associates and Joint Operations

(a) Carrying Amounts

$'000 Principal Activity 2022 2021
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA) Waste and

Recycling 7,855 6,627
Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures & Associates 7,855 6,627

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA)
The Southern Region Waste Resource Authority was established under Section 43 of the Local Government Act to provide
and operate services for the management of waste and waste facilities under its control on behalf of its constituent councils.

The SRWRA owns and operates the Southern Region Waste Disposal Depot on behalf of the Cities of Holdfast Bay, Marion
and Onkaparinga.

The City of Marion has an equal voting right and a 30% interest in the assets and liabilities of SRWRA. For the year ended 30
June 2022, the net assets of SRWRA total $26,185,000. The City of Marion interest, totalling $7,855,000 is disclosed below.

In 2006 the decision was taken to equity account for this investment due to a change in the operations of the business. Initial
balances were brought to account through accumulated surplus.

(b) Relevant Interests
Interest in Ownership Proportion of
Operating Result Share of Equity Voting Power
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA) 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 33.00% 33.00%
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

(c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

Southern Region Waste
Resource Authority (SRWRA)

$'000 2022 2021
Opening Balance 6,627 6,454
Share in Operating Result 882 173
Adjustments to Equity - Share of Asset Revaluation 346 _
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate 7,855 6,627

(d) Joint Operations Expenditure Commitments

Expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as

liabilities:

$'000 2022 2021

(i) Capital Expenditures Payable

Committed Projects 79 1,250
79 1,250

Note 20. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations

Council does not have any Non-Current Assets Held for Sale or any Discontinued Operations.
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Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but knowledge is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. Land under roads

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recognised in the reports. Land acquired
for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure.

2. Potential insurance losses

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and other facilities
accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Council that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to deductable
"insurance excesses", the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average historical net cost

(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to Council may have existed at
reporting date.

3. Bank guarantees

Council currently has no guaranteed loans or other banking facilities advanced to community organisations and sporting bodies
at reporting date.

4. Legal expenses

Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Planning, Development and infrastructure Act 2016 (as
amended). Pursuant to that Act, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal. It is normal
practice that parties bear their own legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council had notice of 9 appeals against planning
decisions made prior to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs cannot be
known until the appeals are determined.

5. Legal Matter

Proceedings have been filed in the Supreme Court against 61 Councils in South Australia, including City of Marion. The claim
alleges unpaid consultancy fees. A joint defence is being coordinated by the Local Government Association of SA as agent

for the Councils. The amount claimed has not been recognised on the basis that an outflow of economic resources to settle
it is not viewed as probable at this stage.

Note 22. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2022, up to and including the date when the financial statements are
"authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropriate "authorised for issue" date relating to
these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Council is unaware of any material or significant "non adjusting events" that should be disclosed.
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Note 23. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel
Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors, CEO and certain prescribed officers under
section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999. In all, 17 persons were paid the following total compensation:

$'000 2022 2021

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Salaries, Allowances & Other Short-Term Employee Benefits 1,212 1,283
Post-Employment Benefits 80 83
Total 1,292 1,366

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of Council have
not been included above.

Receipts from Key Management Personnel comprise:

Other than amounts paid as ratepayers or residents (e.g. rates, swimming pool entry
fees, etc.), Council received no receipts from Key Management Personnel.
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Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Marion for the year ended 30
June 2022, the Council’s Auditor, Galpins has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

‘ A’/t(x(a 0

Emma Hinchey
EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER /
FINANCE RISK AND AUDIT € EE

TonyfHarrison
CHI

oue | | //o} A022.
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Galpins

Accountants, Auditors
& Business Consultants

N

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS™
AUSTRALIA + NEW ZEALAND

Mount Gambier

233 Commercial Street West

PO Box 246, Mount Gambier SA 5290
P: (08) 8725 3068

F: (08) 8724 9553

E: admin(dgalpins.com.au

Stirling

Unit 4, 3-5 Mount Barker Road
PO Box 727, Stirling SA 5152
P: (08) 8339 1255

F: (08) 8339 1266

E: stirlingdgalpins.com.au

Norwood

3 Kensington Road, Norwood SA 5067
PO Box 4067, Norwood South SA 5067
P: (08) 8332 3433

E: norwood(@galpins.com.au

W: www.galpins.com.au

Galpins Trading Pty Ltd
ABN: 89 656 702 886

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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CITY OF MARION

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Auditor

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Marion for the year ended 30
June 2022, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES
110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards), Part 4A,
published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

// >
7

Tim Muhlhausler CA, Registered Company Auditor
Partner

Date: 03 October 2022
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Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
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SRWRA is a regional subsidiary established by the Cities
of Onkaparinga, Marion and Holdfast Bay, pursuant to
Section 43 of the Local Government Act, 1999.

Under our Charter, SRWRA is responsible for
providing and operating waste management services
on behalf of our Constituent Councils.

Our core business activity is the management of
our recycling facilities and landfill. We partner with
industry experts and pride ourselves in employing
innovative resource recovery approaches to support
the circular economy.

We are one of the State’s major landfill operations
currently receiving over 100,000 tonnes of waste annually
with approximately 65,000 tonnes going to landfill.

Our joint venture operation with Integrated Waste
Services (IWS) has continued to develop through the
jointly owned Southern Recycling Centre (SRC) which is
realising a significant reduction of waste to landfill. The
processing of kerbside municipal waste tonnage has
increased with the contracting of new customers. The
SRC is also preparing for the receipt of Regional Waste.

Our joint venture operation with Re.Cycle (Adelaide),
a subsidiary of Re.Group, has completed the

first year of operation through the jointly owned
Southern Materials Recovery Facility (SMRF). The
SMREF, which is the largest in South Australia, is a
state-of-the-art facility that provides processing of
kerbside commingled recycling and produces the
highest product purity levels in Australia.

SRWRA CONSTITUENT JOINT VENTURE
COUNCILS PARTNERS

awmmna () 1ws
"\ \ |

MARION ReGroup

”
HOLDFAST BAY
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Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
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Australia has developed a National Waste
Policy Action Plan that creates ambitious
targets and actions to guide investment and
national efforts to 2030 and beyond. Amongst
these targets is that by 2030 we should achieve
an 80% average recovery rate from all waste
streams and we should halve the amount

of organic waste that is sent to landfill. This
Action Plan complements and supports the
implementation of better waste management
plans by state and territory governments, local
government, business and industry.

Historically, SRWRA has operated a landfill,
and while there will always be a place for well-
run landfills to dispose of residual streams
that cannot be recycled, we have continued
to invest to ensure we play our small partin
progressing towards these national targets
through the development of an integrated
waste management precinct.

Through our joint venture with IWS, who
have been servicing South Australia’s waste
management needs for more than 50 years,
the Southern Recycling Centre continues to
invest in the diversion of organic waste from
landfill. This is one of only two operations in
the State that extracts the organic fraction
from municipal waste and diverts this from
landfill, over the past twelve months we have
processed more than 59,200 tonnes and
diverted around 35% of this away from landfill.

_ SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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CHAIRPERSON'S
MESSAGE

Our Materials Recovery Facility, operated
under a joint venture arrangement with
Re.Group who are the only Australian
company that designs, builds, owns and
operates recycling systems, was commissioned
in July 2021 and officially opened in November
2021 as one of the most advanced recycling
facilities in Australia. We are grateful to the
Commonwealth and State governments for
their financial contribution towards the cost of
this important infrastructure.

This is a significant new business for SRWRA.
Since our opening we have processed 23,300
tonnes of commingled recyclables from the
household ‘yellow bin’, with more than 68% of
this being diverted from landfill to contribute
towards creating a more resilient recycling
industry in Australia. This recovery effectively
extends the life of materials turning them into
products such as Cardboard, Mixed Paper,
Ferrous metals, Non-ferrous metals, HDPE,
PET Plastics and Glass.
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| am pleased to advise that, despite the
challenges of operating a significant new
business we have been able to maintain
highly competitive waste disposal costs for
municipal waste and recyclables, reporting an
overall Operating Surplus of $0.534 million
(after adjusting for the accounting impact

of grant funding) for the year ended 30 June
2022. These surplus funds will of course
provide for any future post closure costs and
be available for reinvestment in future waste
management activities.

We are fortunate to have a dedicated team
at SRWRA who manage all aspects of our
operation very well and on behalf of the
Board | would like to take this opportunity
to acknowledge their contribution to the
success of SRWRA. | also extend my thanks
and appreciation to the Board and the
Audit Committee for their vision, dedication
and commitment to ensuring that SRWRA
continues to deliver sustainable waste
management solutions for our Constituent
Councils and the southern region of Adelaide.

| commend to you the Annual Report

for FY2022 which demonstrates that the
Authority continues to meet the objectives
outlined in its Charter.

Mark Booth
CHAIRPERSON

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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SRWRA's integrated site provides processing
facilities for both the kerbside waste and
recycling bins, a landfill, green energy precinct
and a recycled water storage dam that supports
McLaren Vale. The integration of our site is
unique in Australia and ensures we are leaders
in delivering innovative and sustainable waste
management solutions for the benefit of our
southern Adelaide communities.

The Southern Recycling Centre had a strong
12 months, growing its customer base whilst
playing a significant role in the diversion of
waste from landfill.

The Southern Materials Recovery Facility has
completed its first year of operation and is
setting the benchmark for product purity in
Australia. This facility is the largest and most
technically advanced facility of its type in
South Australia.

SRWRA's green energy precinct continues

to thrive with the generation of power from
South Australia’s largest solar farm on capped
landfill (600kW) and a 3MW biogas plant

that coverts methane from the landfill into
electricity, removing a harmful greenhouse gas
in the process.

_ SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S MESSAGE

The Authority has continued to provide a cost-
effective waste management solution for its
Constituent Councils and their communities.
The Authority is in a strong financial position
with net assets of $26.2 million.

Over the last 12 months, the Authority invested
in the education of schoolchildren within our
communities through the Les Perry Memorial
Grants Program. This year, 14 schools from
our three Constituent Council areas took part
in the Les Perry Memorial Grants Program

and received a total of $9,656 in grant funding
to support learning about environmentally
responsible waste management.

COVID-19 continues to have an impact on

our operation with new work practices now
the norm for all staff. The commitment and
‘can do’ attitude of the SRWRA staff has
ensured the site continues to operate for the
benefit of our Constituent Councils and their
communities. | congratulate our team on their
strong contribution and express my sincere
appreciation of their efforts.
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SRWRA is fortunate to have a highly committed
and capable Board and Audit Committee,

led, on both accounts, by highly experienced
Chairs. The time commitment required of the
Board and Audit Committee is increasing as
SRWRA grows and increases in complexity. |
would like to recognise the strong contribution
of the Board and Audit Committee in SRWRA's
ongoing success.

I look forward to the next 12 months as we
continue to deliver innovative and sustainable
waste management solutions for the benefit
of our southern Adelaide communities and
the environment.

Chris Adams
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT

AS AT JUNE 30™ 2022

CHAIRPERSON
Mark Booth

MEMBERS
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n SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Ky
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

General Purpose Financial Report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Annual Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Financial Statements

I have been authorised by Southern Region Waste Resource Authority to certify the financial statements in
their final form. In our opinion:

- the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards.

- the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Authority's financial position at 30 June 2022 and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year.

- internal controls implemented by the Authority provide a reasonable assurance that the Authority's
financial records are complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year.

- the financial statements accurately reflect the Authority's accounting and other records.

Chris Adams

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 19 September 2022

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022
2022 2021
Notes  $'000 $'000
Income
User charges 2 10,534 11,774
Investment income 2 656 487
Other 2 2,309 454
Net gain - equity accounted Joint Venture 13 2,988 1,032
Total Income 16,487 13,747
Expenses
Employee costs 3 951 1,131
Finance costs 1 -
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 11,671 11,176
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 3 936 1,002
Total Expenses 13,559 13,309
Operating Surplus 2,928 438
Asset disposal & fair value adjustments 3 13 140
Amounts received specifically for new/upgraded assets - -
Net Surplus 2,941 578
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in revaluation surplus - property, plant & equipment 1,153 -
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,153 -
Total Comprehensive Income 4,094 578
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
2

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

Page 129

Assets Notes
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4
Trade & other receivables 4
Loan - Related Party 11,13

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets

Equity accounted joint venture 13
Property, plant & equipment 5
Total Non-current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade & other payables 6
Provisions 6

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 6
Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus

Asset revaluation reserve

Total Equity

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022

2022 2021
$'000 $'000

5,828 4,643
2,501 3,008
400 1,500
8,729 9,151
8,808 5,801
25,693 25,745
34,501 31,546
43,230 40,697
3,203 4,752
119 128
3,322 4,880
13,723 13,726
13,723 13,726
17,045 18,606
26,185 22,091
23,810 20,869
2,375 1,222
26,185 22,091
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Asset
Accumulated i i
Revaluation Total Equity
Surplus
Reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at start of period - 1 July 2020 20,291 1,222 21,513
Net Surplus/ (Deficit) for Year 578 - 578
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment - - -
Transfers between reserves - - -
Distributions to Member Councils - - -
Balance at end of period - 30 June 2021 20,869 1,222 22,091
Balance at start of period - 1 July 2021 20,869 1,222 22,091
Net Surplus/ (Deficit) for Year 2,941 - 2,941
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment - 1,153 1,153
Transfers between reserves - - -
Distributions to Member Councils - - -
Balance at end of period - 30 June 2022 23,810 2,375 26,185
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the atfached Notes
4
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Notes $'000 $'000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating receipts from customers 13,334 11,450
Investment receipts 656 487
Operating payments to suppliers & employees (12,228) (9,920)
Finance payments (1) -
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 7 1,761 2,017
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Amounts specifically for new or upgraded assets - -
Sale of replaced assets 3 57 244
Distributions from equity accounted Joint Ventures 13 700 600
Contributions to equity accounted Joint Ventures 13 (703) (513)
Expenditure on equity accounted contributed assets 13 - (5,679)
Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets 5 - (634)
Expenditure on new/upgraded assets 5 (1,730) (6,898)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities (1,676) (12,880)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment Related Party Loans 1,500 -
Payment ot Related Pary Loans (400)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities 1,100 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held 1,185 (10,863)
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 4 4,643 15,506
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 4 5,828 4,643

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), Urgent Issues Group
Interpretations (UIGs) and relevant South Australian legislation.

The Authority is a Local Government Authority Section 43 Regional Subsidiary under the control of City of
Onkaparinga, City of Marion and the City of Holdfast Bay.

Each Constituent Council hold the following equitable interest in the Authority:
- City of Onkaparinga 55%
- City of Marion 30%
- City of Holdfast Bay 15%

1.2 Historical Cost Convention
Except where stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
historical cost convention.

1.3  Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the Authority’s
accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of
this Note.

1.4 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($°000).

2  The Local Government Reporting Entity

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority operates as a regional subsidiary pursuant to Section 43 of the
SA Local Government Act 1999 and Section 25 of the Local Government Implementation Act 1999, and
has its principal place of business at 112 Bakewell Dr, Seaford Heights SA 5169.

3  Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income is recognised
when the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due
constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever first occurs.

4  Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the Authority’s option with an
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1 (cont.) - Significant Accounting Policies

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the
receipt of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of
the accounting policies applied to financial instruments forms part of Note 9.

5 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for use”.

5.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as
consideration plus costs incidental o the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees
and all other costs incurred. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined
as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Authority includes
the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead.

Capital works still in progress at balance date are recognised as other non-current assets and transferred to
infrastructure, property, plant & equipment when completed ready for use.

5.2  Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by Authority for each type of asset. In determining (and in
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life.
No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

Capitalisation threshold applied of $1,000 for all asset classes. Any purchases greater than this amount are
capitalised and depreciated on the Authority’s asset register.

5.3 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of the service potential
embodied in those assefts.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis. Major depreciation periods for each class are shown
below. Depreciation of Landfill Construction and Future Capping, Rehabilitation and Restoration costs are
amortised proportionately to the rate of filling based upon the projected remaining airspace of landfill cells
as at the beginning of the reporting period. The Authority annually assesses the remaining airspace of
landfill cells and accordingly, depreciation and amortisation rates are adjusted to reflect these estimates.
Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been estimated based on the best information available
to the Authority, but appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of these assets are not available,
and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimated.

Plant, Furniture & Equipment 3-10years

Buildings 30 -50 years

Waste Facility 10 - 15 years

Landfill construction Amortised proportionately to rate of filling
Future capping costs Amortised proportionately to rate of filing
Future rehabilitation and restoration costs Amortised proportionately to rate of filling

7
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1 (cont.) - Significant Accounting Policies

6 Payables

6.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due fo external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

7  Employee Benefits

7.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid
or seftled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based
oncosts) measured in accordance with AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

The Authority recognises all presently entitled liabilities as current liabilities regardless of whether it is
expected to be paid within the preceding 12 months of reporting date.

7.2  Superannuation
The Authority makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Hostplus
(formerly Statewide Super). The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently.

Accumulation Fund Members

Accumulation fund members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis.
Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in accordance
with Superannuation Guarantee Legislation 10% in 2021/22 (9.5% in 2020/21).

No further liability accrues to the employer as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are
represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Defined benefit scheme is where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. The Authority makes
employer contributions as determined by the scheme’s Trustee based on advice from the Scheme’s
Actuarial. The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund’s actuary, Louise Campbell,
FIAA, of Willis Towers Watson as at 30 June 2021.

The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the expected
Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes fo the

Authority’s contribution rates at some future time.

The Authority also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the
‘choice of fund’ legislation.

All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the
employee are represented by their share of the new assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches
to the Authority.

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1 (cont.) - Significant Accounting Policies

8  Provisions for Landfill Capping, Rehabilitation and Restoration Costs

The Authority’s provision for landfill capping, post closure rehabilitation costs and restoration costs are
calculated based on the net present value of the future cash outflows expected to be incurred to
remediate the landfill which will include the costs of capping, rehabilitating and restoring the landfill site.

The measurement of the provisions requires significant estimates and assumptions such as discount rate,
inflation rate, assessment of the requirements of the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) or other
government authorities, the timing, extent and costs of activities required and the area of the landfill to be
remediated, which is determined by volumetric aerial surveys.

These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided.
Expenditure relating to ongoing rehabilitation and restoration will reduce any provision previously
established.

The Authority monitors the remaining airspace, the airspace consumption efficiency (compaction) ratio,
the discount rate and the inflation rate used to calculate the net present value of the future landing
capping, rehabilitation and restoration costs on an annual basis and makes adjustments to the liability as
required to ensure an accurate projected cost of the liability is showing in the balance sheet.

A complete review of all future capping, rehabilitation and restoration costs including a review of all the
key assumptions and estimates in relation to the measurement of these costs is performed on a regular
basis with the assistance of external consultants o ensure all projected costs have been independently
verified.

The dates of the last review of the key assumptions and estimates in relation to the measurement of the
future capping, rehabilitation and restoration costs are shown below:

Costs Effective Date Independent Assessor
Capping costs 30 June 2019 Golder Associates
Restoration costs 30 June 2018 Golder Associates
Rehabilitation costs 30 June 2016 Katalyse Pty Ltd

9  Inventory
Inventory held by the Authority reflect materials stored on site which have either been purchased or gifted
which will be used for future Cell and Capping construction works to be undertaken in future years.

10 GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”. Receivables and
Creditors include GST receivable and payable. Except in relation to input faxed activities, revenues and
operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable. Non-current assets and capital expenditures
include GST net of any recoupment.

Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.
11 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of
equivalent information in accordance with AIFRS.

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1 (cont.) - Significant Accounting Policies

12 New Accounting Standards

No new accounting standards were applied by the Authority during the financial year. The Authority has
not elected to early adopt any new accounting standards, interpretations or amendments which are not
yet effective.

13 Valuation of Land and Building Assets

Building assets held by the Authority were valued by Opteon (South Australia) Pty Ltd with an effective
valuation date of 30 June 2014 applied for financial reporting purposes. Assets were valued to their market
value based on highest and best use. All purchases made post 30 June 2014 have been recorded at cost.
Since 1 July 2019, The Authority has undertaken significant building construction works which represent 65%
of the recorded “At Cost” balance of assets recorded in Note 5 as at 30 June 2022.

Land assets held by the Authority were valued by AssetVal with an effective valuation date of 30 June 2022
applied for financial reporting purposes. Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales
fransactions of similar property types, a Market approach by way of Direct Comparison or Income methods
were ufilised.

Some parcels of land are subject to restrictions as to use and sale and the value of these land assets has
been determined after considering suitable market evidence and making necessary adjustment to
account for these restrictions.

14 Valuation of Landfill Assets
Landfill assets comprise the acquisition of landfills, cell development costs, landfill improvements costs and
the assets related to future landfill capping, rehabilitation and restoration costs.

Assets related to future landfill capping, rehabilitation and restoration costs are valued based on the net
present value of the future cash outflows expected to remediate the landfill which will include the costs of
capping, rehabilitating and restoring the landfill asset. The assumptions used to estimate these costs and
details of their regular review are described in item 8 — Provision for Landfill Capping, Rehabilitation and
Restoration Costs.

All landfill assets are amortised proportionately fo the rate of filling as described in Note 1.5.3 Depreciation
of Non-Current Assets.

15 Equity Accounted Joint Ventures
The Authority accounts for its interest in Joint Ventures applying the equity method per AASB 128. The value
of investments held in Joint Venture entities are held at cost.

16 COVID-19
Given the nature of the business activities undertaken by the Authority, there has been no restrictions

imposed on waste processing operations of the Authority due o government enforced restrictions
infroduced as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic event.

10
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Note 2 - Income
User Charges
Landfill Operations 10,534 11,774
10,534 11,774
Investment Income
Interest on investments 34 102
Rental income 622 385
656 487
Other Income
Other income 353 171
Joint Venture cost reimbursement * 1,956 283
2,309 454
Note 3 - Expenses
Employee Costs
Salaries and Wages 829 1,092
Employee leave expense (13) (25)
Superannuation 99 98
Workers' Compensation Insurance 36 47
Less: Capitalised and distributed costs - 81
951 1,131
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration 39 21
Board Expenses 52 36
Contractors 403 397
Fuels & oils 199 128
Equipment hire 28 10
Maintenance 292 450
Legal 52 160
Levies - EPA 8,137 9,570
Professional services 166 26
Joint Venture costs* 1,956 108
Sundry 347 270
11,671 11,176

* Expenses recorded for the Southern Materials Recycling Facility relate to leasehold improvements
undertaken on the recycling shed premises by the Authority which were reimbursed by the Joint
Venture and recorded as income in Note2. The leasehold improvements are recognised as an asset
by the Joint Venture.

11

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 12.1.4

SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Page 138

Note 3 - Expenses (cont)

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
Buildings & Structures 314 184
Plant & Equipment 310 408
Office Equipment 6 8
Super Cell 156 205
Super Cell Capping 132 174
Post Closure Rehabilitation 15 19
Future Restoration Costs 3 4
Work in Progress - -
936 1,002
Asset Disposals
Proceeds from disposal 57 244
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold (44) (104)
Gain (Loss) on disposal 13 140
Note 4 - Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand and at Bank 2,575 4,519
Short-term deposits 3,253 124
5,828 4,643
Trade & Other Receivables
Debtors - general 2,394 3,008
Accrued Revenues 13 -
Prepayments 49 -
Sundry Debtors 45 -
2,501 3,008
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

14

Note 5 - Property, Plant & Equipment

2021 Movement in Property, Plant & Equipment during the Financial Year 2022
$'000 $'000
Oﬂuﬂmo m@:méo\_»waa__/_o%w\cvmaam Disposals Revaluation >Q%. MHMMQ / Depreciation OMH_VHMQ
Replacement

Land 5,205 - - (23) 1,153 = - 6,335
Buildings & Structures 5,415 - - = - 5,831 (314) 10,932
Plant & Equipment 2,220 - - - - 134 (310) 2,044
Office Equipment 31 - - @1 - - 6) 4
Super Cell 3,371 17 - - - (156) 3,232
Super Cell Capping 2,856 - - - - - (132) 2,724
Post Closure Rehabilitation 325 - - = - = (15) 310
Future Restoration Costs 59 - - = - = 3 56
Work in Progress 6,263 - 1,713 - - (7,920) - 56
25,745 - 1,730 (44) 1,153 (1,955) (936) 25,693
2021 $'000 19,319 634 12,577 (104) - (5,679) (1,002) 25,745

*A transfer of Work in Progress totalling $1.955 million to operating expenses occurred during the financial year as improvements to the recycling shed
were agreed to be taken on by the Joint Venture as a leasehold improvement. A disclosure has been included in Note 3 to show the total cost of the

project and the funds reimbursed by the Joint Venture to the Authority for works undertaken.
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Note 6 - Liabilities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade & Other Payables
Goods & services 3,186 - 4,752 -
Payments received in advance 17 - - -
3,203 - 4,752 -
Provisions
Annual Leave 58 - 70 -
Long Service Leave 61 5 58 8
Super Cell Capping - 7,980 - 7,980
Post Closure Rehabilitation - 4,064 - 4,064
Future Restoration Costs - 1,674 - 1,674
119 13,723 128 13,726
Reconciliation of Movement in Landfill & Super Cell Post Closure Fumre_
) o Restoration Total
Restoration Provisions Capping Rehabilitation Costs
Opening Balance 7,980 4,064 1,674 13,718
Additional Amounts Recognised/
(Derecognised) - - - -
Payments - - - -
Unwinding of Present Value Discounts - -
Closing Balance 7,980 4,064 1,674 13,718

An independent review and update of key assumptions and estimates included in the calculation of
landfill capping and post closure liabilities is planned to be conducted in 2022/23. As part of the review
and update to the liabilities, consideration will be given o key assumptions relating to the estimated
remaining filling life and available capping techniques/technology. Details relating to the previous
review of the landfill liabilities has been disclosed in Note 1.8.

15
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Note 7 - Cash Flow Reconciliation

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position

as follows:
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Total cash & equivalent assets 5,828 4,643
Less: Short-term borrowings - -
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 5,828 4,643

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from Operating Activities

Net Surplus (Deficit) 2,941 578
Non-cash items in Income Statement
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 936 1,002
Transfer of Work in Progress 1,955 -
Equity adjustment - Joint Venture 16) -
Net (Gain) Loss on equity accounted joint ventures (2,988) (1.032)
Net (Gain) Loss on disposal of assets (13) (140)
2,815 408
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net (increase) decrease in receivables 507 (778)
Net increase (decrease) in frade & other payables (1,549) 2,411
Net increase (decrease) in other provisions 12) 24)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 1,761 2,017

(c) Financing Arrangements

Corporate Credit Cards 20 18
Cash Advance Debenture (CAD) Facility* 500 -

*The CAD facility is held with the Local Government Finance Authority (LGFA) and the Authority
has no drawdown of funds from the facility as at reporting date.

16
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Note 8 - Financial Instruments
Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Accounting Policy: Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; Interest is
Call, Short Term recognised when earned.
Deposits Terms & conditions: Deposits on Call do not have a maturity period and have an
average interest rates of 0.5% - 1.05% (2021: 0.3%).
Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables - Gate Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful
Fees & Associated debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed annually)

Charges when collection in full is no longer probable.
Carrying amount: approximates fair value (affer deduction of any allowance).

Liabilities - Creditors Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future
and Accruals for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Authority.

Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised
market for the financial assets of the Authority.

Risk Exposure
Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted.

The maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Authority is the carrying amount, net of any provision
for doubtful debfts. All investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and Bank
SA. There is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices. All of the Authority's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not fraded on
any market, and hence neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Authority will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial
liabilities. In accordance with the model Treasury Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a
range of maturity dates based on cash inflows. The Authority also has available a range of bank
overdraft and short-term draw down facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. Most of the Authority's financial instruments are aft fixed rates. Any such variations in future cash
flows will not be material in effect on either the Authority's incomes or expenditures.

17
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Note 8 - Financial Instruments

Liquidity Analysis
Maturity Non-
2022 <1year >1year > 5years interest Total
< 5years bearing

Financial Assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amortised Cost

Cash Assets 5,828 - - - 5,828

Receivables - - - 2,501 2,501

Total 5,828 - - 2,501 8,329
Financial Liabilities

Payables - - - 3,203 3,203

Borrowings - - - - -

Total - - - 3,203 3,203

Maturity Non-
2021 <1year > 1 year > 5years interest Total
< 5years bearing

Financial Assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amortised Cost

Cash Assets 4,643 - - - 4,643

Receivables - - - 3,008 3,008

Total 4,643 - - 3,008 7,651
Financial Liabilities

Payables - - - 4,752 4,752

Borrowings - - - - -

Total - - - 4,752 4,752
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Note 9 - Commitments for Expenditure

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Capital Commitments
Capital expenditure committed at reporting date but which is not recognised in the financial

statements as liabilities are as follows:

Committed Projects 79 1,250
79 1,250

Note 10 - Events Occurring After Reporting Date

There were no events that occurred after reporting date that requires to be disclosed.

Note 11 - Disclosure of Related Party Transactions

The Key Management Personnel include the Chair of the Board, Chief Executive and other officers
prescribed under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999. In all, 6 persons were paid the

following total compensation:

Salaries, allowances & other short term benefits 402 404
Total 402 404

Transactions with Related Parties:
The following transactions occurred with Related Parties:

Sale of Amounts
G ade ° d Outstanding Description of Services
Related Party Entity °0 s an from Related  Provided to Related
Services . "
($'000) Parties Parties
($'000)

Provision of waste
City of Onkaparinga (Member Council) 7,913 466 )

disposal services

Provision of waste
City of Holdfast Bay (Memiber Council) 1,446 115 '

disposal services

Provision of waste
City of Marion (Member Council) 3,526 313 '

disposal services

Provision of waste
Southern Materials Recycling Facility (Joint Venture) 3,309 362 i

disposal services

Provision of waste
Southern Recycling Centre (Joint venture) 6,327 593

disposal services

Amounts recorded as outstanding from Related Parties are recorded in Trade and other receivables in
Note 4. Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of the Authority and accordingly
have significant influence on the financial and operating decisions of the Authority. No one Member
Council individually has control of those policies.

In addition to the waste disposal services above, SRWRA undertook $1.956 million of works to upgrade
the Material Recovery Facility by the Southern Materials Recycling Facility Joint Venture. The income

and expenses relating to this activity have been disclosed in Note 2 and 3. 19

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 12.1.4 Page 146

SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Note 12 - Uniform Presentation of Finances

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Income 16,487 13,747
Expenses (13,559) (13,309)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,928 438
Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on renewal and replacement of Existing (634)
Assets
D iation, Amortisation, | i tand M tin Landfill
eprego ion, Amortisation, Impairment and Movement in Landfi 936 1,002
Provisions
Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 57 244
993 612

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (1,730 (6,898)
Amounts received specifically for New and Upgraded Assets - -

Proceeds from Sale of Surplus Assets

(1,730) (6,898)

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year 2,191 (5,848)

20
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Note 13 - Equity Accounting Joint Ventures
Southern Recycling Centre (SRC)

The Authority has entfered into a joint venture arrangement with Integrated Waste Services to
operate the Southern Recycling Centre located on the Authority's landfill site.

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
The Authority's respective interests are:
- interest in operating result: 50.00% 50.00%
- ownership of equity 49.99% 49.99%
- the proportion of voting power 50.00% 50.00%
Movement in Investment in Joint Operation:
Opening Balance 1,164 677
New Capital Contributions - -
Share in Operating Result 1,140 1,087
Equity Adjustment 16 -
Distributions Received (700) (600)
Share in Equity of Joint Operation 1,620 1,164

Expenditure Commitments
There were no expenditure commitments at reporting date that required to be
recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities at reporting date that required to be recognised in
the financial statements.

21
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Note 13 (cont.) - Equity Accounting Joint Ventures

Southern Materials Recycling Facility (SMRF)

The Authority has entered into a joint venture arrangement with Re.Cycle (Adelaide) Pty Ltd to
operate the Southern Material Recovery Facility located on the Authority's landfill site.

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
The Authority's respective interests are:
- interest in operating result: 50.00% 50.00%
- ownership of equity 50.00% 50.00%
- the proportion of voting power 50.00% 50.00%
Movement in Investment in Joint Operation:
Opening Balance 4,637 -
Capital Contributions (cash contribution) 703 513
Capital Contributions (transfer of plant assets) - 5,679
Capital Contribution (conversion o loan) - (1,500)
Share in Operating Result 1,848 (55)
Share in Equity of Joint Operation 7,188 4,637

The Authority applies AASB 1058 when recognising income from Granfts in line with the
applicable treatment applied by not-for-profit entitles. The Joint Venture recognises grant
income on a different basis which has resulted in an inconsistent application of accounting
policy between the entities on the timing of recognising income from grant revenues. As a
result of this different application in accounting standards and policy on grant revenue
recognition, this has resulted in an adjustment to the Share in Operating Result of $2.327 million
(increase) in the current financial year.

The Authority has an outstanding receivable loan with the Southern Materials Recovery Facility
totalling $0.4 million (FY21: $1.5 million) as at the reporting date.

Expenditure Commitments

The Joint Venture has a $3.956 million capital commitment as at reporting date relating to the
construction of plant and equipment which is expected to be completed in the 2022/23
period.

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities at reporting date that required to be recognised in the
financial statements.

22
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Note 14 - Fair Value Measurements

The Authority measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after initial
recognition:

Land assets.

The Authority does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any
assets or liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information according to
the relevant level in the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy categorises fair value measurements
into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that a significant input can be
categorised into. The levels are outlined below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measurements based on Measurements based on inputs Measurements based on
quoted prices (unadjusted) in  other than quoted prices unobservable inputs for the
active markets for identical included in Level 1 that are asset or liability.
assets or liabilities that the entityobservable for the asset or
can access at the liability, either directly or
measurement date. indirectly.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not tfraded in an active market is determined using
one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible,
the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are
observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not
based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques

The Authority selects valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and
relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being
measured. The valuation techniques selected by the association are consistent with one or
more of the following valuation approaches:

- Market approach: uses prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions involving identical or similar assets or liabilities.

- Income approach: converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a
single current (i.e. discounted) value.

- Cost approach: reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service
capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a
valuation tfechnique, the Authority gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed
using market data (such as publicly available information on actual fransactions) and reflect
the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability
are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data are not available and
therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are
considered unobservable.

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 12.1.4

SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Page 150

Note 14 (cont.) - Fair Value Measurements

Note
2022
Recurring fair value measurements
Property, Plant & Equipment and Landfill
Assets
- Land 5
- Buildings 5
- Super Cell Capping 5
- Post Closure
Rehabilitation 5
- Future Restoration
Costs 5
Total financial assets recognised at fair
value
2021

Recurring fair value measurements

Property, Plant & Equipment and Landfill

Assets
- Land 5
- Buildings
- Super Cell Capping 5
- Post Closure
Rehabilitation 5
- Future Restoration
Costs 5
Total financial assets recognised at fair
value
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $

6,335 - 6,335

560 - 560

- 5,426 5,426

- 6,143 6,143

- 4,228 4,228

6,895 15,797 22,692

3,450 1,755 5,205

560 - 560

- 5,426 5,426

- 6,143 6,143

- 4,228 4,228

4,010 17,552 21,562

24
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Note 14 (cont.) - Fair Value Measurements
(b) Disclosed fair value measurements
The following tables provide the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed
fair value measurements are categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used.
Fair Value .
. Valuation
Hierarchy . Inputs Used
Technique
Level
There has been no change 2 Market Value Observable sales of similar properties — both
in the valuation technique(s) vacant land and land with improvements
used to calculate the fair
values disclosed in the
financial statements.
There has been no change 3 Cost Approach Landfill assets unobservable inputs. The
in the valuation technique(s) measure of these costs requires significant
used to calculate the fair estimates and assumptions such as: discount
values disclosed in the rate, inflation rate, assessment of EPA
financial statements. requirements, the timing, extent and costs of
the required activities and the estimated
remaining airspace of the landfill.
There has been no change 3 Market Value Land assets unobservable inputs. Some
in the valuation technique(s) parcels of land are subject to restrictions as
used to determine the value to use and sale and the value of these land
of parcels of land where assets has been determined after
there are restrictions as to considering suitable market evidence and
use and sale of these assets. making necessary adjustments to account
for these restrictions. These adjustments are
usually unobservable inputs that are likely to
have a significant effect on valuation.
25
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Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

Audit Committee - Auditor Independence

Presiding Member Certification

|, Greg Connor, the person occupying the position of Presiding Member of
the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority's Audit Committee, do
hereby certify (for the purposes of Regulation 21 (3) of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011), that the auditor
of the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority, Galpins, has not been
engaged by the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority to provide
services to the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority outside the
scope of the audit functions under the Local Government Act 1999.

! ) 4

2131 Lo7
Dated

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority Audit Committee
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Accountants, Auditors
& Business Consultants
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS™
AUSTRALIA + NEW ZEALAND

Mount Gambier

233 Commercial Street West

PO Box 246, Mount Gambier SA 5290
P: (08) 8725 3068

F: (08) 8724 9553

E: admin@galpins.com.au

Stirling

Unit 4, 3-5 Mount Barker Road
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P: (08) 8339 1255

F: (08) 8339 1266

E: stirling@galpins.com.au

Norwood

3 Kensington Road, Norwood SA 5067
PO Box 4067, Norwood South SA 5067
P: (08) 8332 3433

E: norwood(@galpins.com.au

W: www.galpins.com.au

Galpins Trading Pty Ltd
ABN: 89 656 702 886

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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SOUTHERN REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the Southern Region Waste Resource
Authority for the year ended 30 June 2022, | have maintained my independence in accordance
with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
Independence Standards), Part 4A, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local

Government (Financial Management) Regulation 2011.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

A /s
: Y i ‘Z'.’T ]

Tim Muhlhausler CA, Registered Company Auditor

Director

21 September 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of SRWRA (the Authority), which
comprises the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the statement by the Executive Officer and the Chairman.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the Authority as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance and its
cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Australia Accounting Standards,
Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and for such internal control as Authority determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Authority is responsible for assessing the authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends
to liquidate the Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit of the financial report in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the financial report in order to design
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

r il

Tim Muhlhausler ca, Registered Company Auditor

Director

21 September 2022
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROLS OF THE SOUTHERN
REGION WASTE RESOURCE AUTHORITY

To the members of the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
Opinion

We have audited the compliance of SRWRA (the Authority) with the requirements of
Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls
established by the Authority to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of
liabilities for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 have been conducted properly and in
accordance with the law.

In our opinion, SRWRA has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation to internal controls established by the Authority in relation
to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property
and incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
transactions of the Authority have been conducted properly and in accordance with law for
the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on
Assurance Engagement ASAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagement on Controls, issued
by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all
material respects, the Authority has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act
1999 in relation only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2021 to 30
June 2022. ASAE 3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of
the Australian professional accounting bodies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

The Authority’s Responsibility for Internal Control

The Authority is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls, in accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 to
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of
property and incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly and in accordance with
law.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating
to assurance engagements, and applied Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms
that Performs Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other Financial Information, and
Other Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act
1999 in relation only to the internal controls established by the Authority to ensure that financial transactions relating
to receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities, based
on our procedures. Our engagement has been conducted in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on
Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Information and
ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagements on Controls, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in
order to state whether, in all material respects, the Authority has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government
Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. ASAE 3000
also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements for the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are suitably
designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance
with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating ineffectively as it is
not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of
the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods is subject to the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate.

Limitations of Use

This report has been prepared for the members of the Authority in accordance with section 129 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation to the internal controls specified above. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility

for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Authority, or for any purpose
other than that for which it was prepared.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

7 A

Tim Muhlhausler ca, Registered Company Auditor

Director

21 September 2022
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SP\WR)(

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
Board Chairperson - Auditor Independence

I, Mark Booth, the person occupying the position of Chairperson of the
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority's Board, do hereby certify (for
the purposes of Regulation 22 (3) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011), that the auditor of the Southern Region
Waste Resource Authority, Galpins, has not been engaged by the
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority to provide services to the
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority outside of the scope of the
audit functions under the Local Government Act 1999

—

Mark Booth
Chairperson

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

24/ 08/ 2022...

Date

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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CITY OF
ONKAPARINGA

Chief Executive Officer's Certificate of Compliance
Auditor Independence
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

[, Julia Grant, the person for the time being occupying the position of Acting Chief Executive Officer
of the City of Onkaparinga, being a Constituent Council of the Southern Region Waste Resource
Authority, do hereby certify (for the purposes of Regulation 22 (3) of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011), that the auditor of the subsidiary, Galpins, has not
been engaged by the subsidiary to provide services to the subsidiary outside of the scope of the
audit functions under the Local Government Act 1999.

S _,7L ...................................... 24/08/2022.
Acting CHief Executive Officer Dated
City of Onkaparinga

CITY OF ONKAPARINGA
PO Box 1, Noarlunga Centre SA 5168 | (08) 8384 0666 | onkaparingacity.com ABN 97 047 258 128
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CITY OF A
MARION

PO Box 21, Oaklands Park
South Australia 5046

245 Sturt Road, Sturt
South Australia 5047

T(08) 8375 6600
F (08) 8375 6699
E council@marion.sa.gov.au

Chief Executive Officer's Cerificate of Compliance
Auditor Independence
Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

I, Tony Harrison, the person for the fime being occupying the position of Chief Executive
Officer of the City of Marion, being a Constituent Council of the Southem Region

Waste Resource Authority, do hereby certify (for the purposes of Regulation 22 (3) of
the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011), that the auditor of
the subsidiary, Galpins, has not been engaged by the subsidiary to provide services to
the subsidiary outside of the scope of the audit functions under the Local Government
Act 1999.

Dated

The City of Marion acknowledges it is part of Kaurna land and recognises the Kaurna people
as the traditional and continuing custodians of the land.

n facebook.com/CityofMarion ’ twitter.com/CityofMarion  YOUWIII5] youtube.com/CityofMarion marion.sa.gov.au

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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19 August 2022
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holdfast.sa.gov.au

Brighton Civic Centre 24 Jetty Road, Brighton 5A 5048
PO Box 19 Brighton SA 5048

P 08 8229 9999 F 08 8298 4561

Glenelg Customer Service Centre and Library
2 Colley Terrace, Glenelg SA 5045

Chief Executive Officer's Certificate of Compliance

Auditor Independence

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

I, Roberto Bria, the person for the time being occupying the position of Chief Executive
Officer of the City of Holdfast Bay, being a Constituent Council of the Southern Region Waste
Resource Authority, do hereby certify (for the purposes of Regulation 22 (3) of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011), that the auditor of the subsidiary,
Galpins, has not been engaged by the subsidiary to provide services to the subsidiary outside
of the scope of the audit functions under the Local Government Act 1999.

Chief/Executive Officer
City of Holdfast Bay

19,5/29.
Dated
® ® @ g
°® ® ®e,
@ v
® e ® o900 g ®
Y L ] ©
L] @
L @ L|
@ @ p ©
- & W ® [} e
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MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS
BOARD MEMBERS WHILST MEMBER ATTENDED
CHAIRPERSON Mark Booth 8 7
CITY OF ONKAPARINGA Kirk Richardson 8 8
CITY OF ONKAPARINGA Richard Peat 8 7
CITY OF MARION Sorana Dinmore 8 7
CITY OF MARION lan Crossland 8 5
CITY OF HOLDFAST BAY Roberto Bria 8 7
CITY OF HOLDFAST BAY John Smedley 8 4

DEPUTY BOARD MEMBERS

Please Note: Deputy Members are only required to attend a Meeting when the Member is an apology

CITY OF ONKAPARINGA Heidi Greaves 8 0
CITY OF ONKAPARINGA Jessica Tucker 3 2
CITY OF MARION Bruce Hull 8 0
CITY OF MARION Ray Barnwell 8 8
CITY OF HOLDFAST BAY Clare Lindop 8 2

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS
WHILST MEMBER ATTENDED

Please Note: Deputy Members are only required to attend a Meeting when the Member is an apology

PRESIDING MEMBER Greg Connor 6 6
Sam Spadavecchia 6 6
Emma Hinchey 6 6
Mark Booth 6 6
John Smedley 6 0

Deputy SRWRA Representative
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST
BUSINESS PLAN

Each year SRWRA prepares an Annual Business Plan that is submitted to the Constituent Councils
detailing its aims and objectives.

AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND KEY MEASURES STATUS

RESOURCE RECOVERY OBJECTIVES

Commence operation of Material Recovery Facility Complete
Review the first 12 months of performance of the Solar Farm Complete
Identify and assess the feasibility of advanced waste treatment opportunities Complete
Explore options to treat organics and greens In progress
Identify potential markets/business opportunities for recovered products Ongoing

Identify and support potential markets/business

. Completed
opportunities for recovered resources

RESOURCE RECOVERY KEY MEASURES

Diversion of incoming waste material from landfill >32% to increase by 1% per year  Achieved 36%

Future landfill airspace = 30 years Achieved 30 years
Carbon emission offset >100,000 tonnes per year Achieved 118,115t
Deliver agreed projects on time and on budget 91%

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS OBJECTIVES

Establish and maintain consistent communication with stakeholders and

Completed
communities to ensure SRWRA's role and capabilities are understood P
Provide information to Constituent Councils to support them with
. - ‘ o Completed
waste avoidance and positive waste behaviours and initiatives
Identify industry initiatives and outcomes that are locally
. . . Completed
relevant and provide to Constituent Councils
Hold Joint Venture Committee meetings in accordance with agreed schedule Completed

m SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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Senator Andrew McLachlan CSC

Erin Thompson
MAYOR, CITY OF ONKAPARINGA

Amanda Wilson
MAYOR, CITY OF HOLDFAST BAY

Tony Harrison
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CITY OF MARION

AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND KEY MEASURES STATUS

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS KEY MEASURES

One presentation to Elected Members in each Constituent Council per annum Completed

Bi-monthly communication with Constituent Councils Completed

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE OBJECTIVES

Update LEMP to reflect new EPA Licence which is renewed by 31 July 2021 Completed
Review and update Governance Manual Completed
Review and update Policies and Procedures Completed
Implement 2021 Risk Evaluation Action Plan (WHS&IM) Completed
Implementation and review of Risk Management Registers In Progress
Future landfill rehabiliratipn and capping is assessed In Progress
and funded over the lifetime of the site

Deliver operating surplus Achieved
Review fill plan and program supercell construction Achieved
Establish strategic and operational KPI's Achieved
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE MEASURES

Maintain EPA Licence Achieved
Reduction in the number of lost time injuries from the previous year Achieved
Achieve or surpass operating surplus budget Achieved
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WORK HEALTH
AND SAFETY

LOST TIME INJURIES

At SRWRA safety is part of our culture, a value considered with each
decision made by management and staff. SRWRA is committed to
providing a healthy and safe work environment that minimises the
risk of injury or iliness arising from work activities.

SRWRA recorded one lost time injury (LTI) in 2021-2022 which is
consistent with the previous twelve months when one lost time
injury was also recorded.

ANNUAL LOST TIME INJURIES
(Lost time injuries represent one complete shift or more of lost time)

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021 - 2022
0 1 1
INJURY MANAGEMENT

SRWRA received no worker compensation claims during 2021-2022.
This is a decrease in claims lodged compared to the previous year,
which had one compensation claim lodged.

SRWRA Annual Report 2021-2022
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PROCUREMENT

SRWRA is committed to a fair, transparent and accountable process
when acquiring goods and services, consistent with Section 49 of the
Local Government Act 1999.

Each year goods and services are procured to support the delivery
of the Annual Business Plan and Budget. The SRWRA Board has
adopted the Procurement Policy to govern all procurement activities,
excluding the purchase and disposal of land and other assets owned
by the Authority.

In certain circumstances, the Authority may, after approval from its
Board, waive application of this Policy and pursue a method which
will bring the best outcome for the SRWRA. The Authority must
record its reasons in writing for waiving application of this Policy.

ANNUAL PROCUREMENT PERFORMANCE

NUMBER OF PROCUREMENT NUMBER OF PROCUREMENT
EVENTS POLICY WAIVERS

470 3

Key reasons for the granting of Procurement Policy waivers in the
last 12 months include:

® the best value for money outcome for SRWRA

¢ the limited size of the market and the
number of credible suppliers

® engagement of expert in financial and management
accounting requirements due to complexity of
operational and statutory requirements.
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SKWP\A\(

Southern Region Waste Resource Authority

SRWRA CONSTITUENT
COUNCILS

CaYOF o
ONK PARIN A

. A

MARION

——

HOLDFAST BAY

SRWRA
112 Bakewell Drive
Seaford Heights SA 5169

T 0883270304

E info@srwra.com.au

W srwra.com.au/contact
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Galpins
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2021/22 Audit Completion Report
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Galpins City of Marion
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City of Marion

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To the members of the audit committee of City of Marion

We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the financial year ended 30 June
2022. The purpose of this document is to summarise the key accounting and audit matters
that have arisen during the engagement and our audit conclusions.

We intend to issue the following opinions (subject to the satisfactory completion of the items
described in section 1 — Status of our Audit Work of this document):

Intended opinions Type of opinion

Opinion on the Financial Statements

Unmodified

Proposed Auditor’s Report
Refer to Appendix 1 of this report.

Controls Opinion

Unmodified

Refer to Appendix 2 of this report.

We have included in this report the following information to ensure that councillors,
management and audit committee members are aware of all significant matters relating to

the audit.

Matters Sections

Status of our audit work Section 1
Key Audit Matters Section 2
Internal Controls Opinion and Recommendations Section 3
Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements Section 4
Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report Appendix 1
Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Controls Appendix 2

We have also signed the statement by auditor regarding our independence, and confirmed
that for the audit of the year ended 30 June 2022 we have maintained our independence in
accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including Independence Standards), Part 4A, published by the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

Yours faithfully

7 Ay

Tim Muhlhausler ca Registered Company Auditor

Date: 3 October 2022

2021/22 Audit Completion Report

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Galpins City of Marion

1. Status of Our Audit Work

Below is a summary of the status of audit activities and key documents related to the
completion of our final audit.

Activities/Documents Responsibility Status
Final draft of the financial report Management Completed
Final audit visit Audit Completed
Final substantive procedures Audit Completed
Audit verification of the final draft of the financial Audit Completed
report

Final draft of the financial report after audit verification | Management Completed
Audit Completion Report Audit Completed
Final audited financial statements from the Council’s Management Completed
subsidiaries

Signed certification of auditor independence Management Note 1
Final financial report after considerations from the Management Note 1
audit committee

Signed certification of financial statements Management Note 1
Signed management representation letter Management Note 1
Final Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Audit Note 2
Controls

Final Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Audit Note 2
Report

Note 1 To be provided after the audit committee meeting.

Note 2 To be provided by audit on receipt of both the:
final financial report containing the signed certification of financial statements and the signed
certification of auditor independence, and
signed management representation letter.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report 4
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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2. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report. We address these matters in the context of our
audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

2.1 Valuation of Infrastructure assets

How the matter was addressed

Page 173

Why the matter is significant
Infrastructure assets are valued at fair value. The
fair values of these assets were based on
depreciated current replacement costs which is
comprised by the gross replacement cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Council values the gross replacement cost using the
estimated average cost (unit cost) at which it could
construct a substitute asset of comparable quality in
the normal course of business. There was inherent
subjectivity involved in making judgments in relation
to assumptions used to estimate unit rates which
also involved determining the:
= components of assets that are replaced at
different times in the asset lifecycle
= costs required to replace these components
using current prices for materials, labour, and
plant costs
= indices for measuring subsequent changes in
unit rates.

The useful lives of assets and the measurement of
accumulated depreciation are determined by
external valuers. Significant judgement is used to
determine the different useful lives for different
components of assets and to calculate the
depreciation that would have accumulated since
original construction using these estimated useful
lives.

The significant professional judgments used to
estimate the gross replacement cost and the
accumulated depreciation are also relevant to the
calculation of the annual depreciation expense of
these assets.

Our audit included but was not limited to the following
activities:

= reconciled closing balances to the asset registers

= reconciled the movements in note 7 to the asset
register

= reviewed the basis for valuation used by external
valuers

= assessed the competence of external valuers (experts)
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

= reviewed the fair value hierarchy provided in note 7
for each category of asset

= reconciled the useful lives used to calculate the
accumulated depreciation and the depreciation for
the period to the revaluation reports

= reviewed the useful lives mentioned above for
different components and compared them to other
local government entities

= performed a recalculation of depreciation

= reviewed the methodology used by Council to
perform componentisation of infrastructure assets
and compared the methodology used to Council’s
actual asset management practices and to other local
government entities

= reconciled the unit rates used for different
components of infrastructure assets to the unit rates
provided in the valuer’s report

= reviewed the unit rates mentioned above and
compared them to different local government entities

= assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
report.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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2.2 Valuation of Land and Buildings

Page 174

Why the matter is significant

Land and buildings are valued at fair value. The basis
of valuation to be used for these assets depends on
a number of factors such as the nature of the asset,
purpose of their use, the highest and best use of the
asset, potential restrictions to the disposal of these
assets among other factors.

Valuation of land depends on whether the land is
classified as Crown land or community land.
Community land and Crown land are valued using
unobservable (level 3) inputs as the allowance for
the restriction on sale (requiring Ministerial consent)
is usually an unobservable input, and is likely to
have a significant effect on valuation.

Land, where Council has an unfettered right to sell
them, is usually valued at current market value
based on their highest and best use. Level 2 inputs
are primarily used for land during the valuation
process.

Valuation of buildings depends on the nature of
these assets. Some Council buildings have no active
market due to the specialised nature of the assets
and the services they provide. For such buildings fair
value is usually determined on the basis of
replacement with a new building having similar
service potential. Valuation techniques used to
measure fair value of these buildings include
significant unobservable inputs (level 3).

For buildings that have an active market, buildings
are assessed on market value principles which is
deemed to be their fair value based on level 2
inputs. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is sales transactions of comparable
properties within the City, adjusted for any
pertinent differences.

The significant professional judgments used to
estimate the value of buildings are also relevant to
the calculation of the annual depreciation expense
of these assets.

How the matter was addressed
Our audit included but was not limited to the following
activities:
= reconciled closing balances to the asset registers
= reconciled the movements in note 7 to the asset
registers
= reviewed the basis for valuation used by external
valuers
= assessed the competence of external valuers (experts)
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
= analysed the nature of the land building assets and
concluded whether the fair value hierarchy provided
in note 7 for each category of asset was reasonable
= reconciled the useful lives used to calculate the
accumulated depreciation and the depreciation for
the period to the revaluation reports
= reviewed the useful lives mentioned above for
different components and compared them to other
local government entities
= performed a recalculation of depreciation; and
= assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
report.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report
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2.3 Accounting treatment of capitalisation of assets

Why the matter is significant

How the matter was addressed

Page 175

Councils are asset intensive and highly dependent
on multiple assets to deliver services to customers.
Hence, there is a high volume of transactions and
significant amounts involved in relation to
capitalisation of assets.

Due to the unique characteristics of Council’s assets
a number of considerations are taken into account
when an expenditure is capitalised which include:
= whether Council is incurring capital
expenditure on physical resources that are
controlled by Council. Control is the most
difficult of the characteristics of an asset
to be defined as the concept goes beyond
the legal ownership;
= Inclusions and exclusions of costs at initial
recognition of an asset in accordance with
AASB 116;
= Costinvolved in dismantling and removing
the asset and/or restoring the site under
AASB 137;
= Borrowing costs to be capitalised into the
cost of IPPE where the asset is a
“qualifying asset” as per AASB 123; and
= accounting for subsequent costs and
defining the nature of these costs as being
capital or maintenance expenditure.

Our audit included but was not limited to the following
activities:

. performed analytical procedures to define
whether the amounts capitalised for the FY was
in accordance with our expectation and our
understanding of the entity;

= reviewed internal controls in place for
capitalisation of assets;

=  selected a sample of additions and performed an
assessment of the nature of the addition and
concluded whether the addition was recognised
in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards;

=  reviewed the WIP schedule and selected a
sample of transfers out to ensure that the asset
was appropriately valued and capitalised in the
right account; and

= reviewed the WIP schedule in order to identify
projects that should have been capitalised but
were not.

2.4 Management Override of Controls

Why the matter is significant How the matter was addressed

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of management’s ability to
manipulate accounting records and prepare a
fraudulent report by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to
the unpredictable way in which such override could
occur, the risk of material misstatement due to
fraud is a significant risk.

Our audit included but was not limited to the following
activities:
= tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded
in the general ledger
= reviewed accounting estimates for biases
= performed final analytical procedures to conclude as
to whether the financial report is consistent with our
understanding of the entity
= requested written representation from Management
= reviewed IT access controls rights processes in place
= reviewed processes in place to ensure independent
reviews of exception reports generated by Council
= reviewed processes in place to ensure independent
reviews of audit trails of changes to master files.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report
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2.5 Other High Risk Areas

The other high risk areas described in this section are account balances and/or audit areas that
are not subject to a high degree of professional judgement, however we assessed their inherent
risks as being high due to the materiality of the account balances, the high volume of
transactions involved and other reasons outlined below:

Account balance
Rates and charges

Why the risk is High

- largest revenue item

- often used as a reference point
for analysing expenditure
decisions

- politically sensitive —
reputational risk involved if rates
are raised incorrectly.

Overall audit response

- walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

- comparison of total capital values from the
VG report to the total capital value
recorded in the rates system

- reconciliation of the rates modelling to the
rates system and to the general ledger

- recalculation of rates for a sample of rate
payers.

Employee costs

- one of the largest expense items

- high volume of transactions /
data — subject to error

- errors impact individuals
financially.

- walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

- inspection of employee files (contracts,
awards, EBs)

- inspection of timesheets

- recalculation of a sample of individual
payments.

Materials, Contracts &
Other expenses

- one of the largest expense items

- high volume of transactions,
inherently higher risk of error

- fraud risk area (procurement,
payments and credit cards)

- procurement and contracting are
key focus areas for ICAC and the
Auditor-General’s Department.

- walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

- inspection of supporting documents
(contracts, invoices, purchase orders,
subsequent payments, etc) for a sample of
expenses.

Cash and cash
equivalents

- material balance

- fraud risk

-if there is any instance of errors
and/or fraud it will be indicative
of broader errors

- poor attitude to cash controls
may be indicative of overall
culture related to the entity’s
controls environment

- public money

- walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

- bank confirmation

- inspection of bank statements

- verification of outstanding reconciling
items

- reperformance of bank reconciliations.

Trade and other payables

- one of the largest liabilities

- material balance

- opportunity for understatements

- if there is a poor use of accrual
basis of accounting it may be
indicative of poor culture

- payments represent an
opportunity for fraud.

- walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

- reconciliation between subsidiary ledgers
and the general ledger

- inspection of subsequent payments for a
sample of creditors

- inspection of a sample of subsequent
payments for completeness test.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report
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2.6 Intended Opinion on the Financial Report

We have completed our final risk of material misstatements assessment and concluded that the
audit procedures performed were sufficient to reduce the audit risk to an acceptable level. We
have evaluated the results of our audit testing and determined that no further adjustments to
the financial statements are required.

In our opinion, subject to the satisfactory completion of the items described in section 1 of this
report, the financial report prepared by Council presents fairly, in all material respects, the
Council’s financial position as at the end of the current financial year and its financial
performance for the year ended on that date (refer to our proposed Independent Auditor’s
Report on the Financial Report included in Appendix 1 of this report).

2021/22 Audit Completion Report 9
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3. Internal Controls Opinion and Recommendations

We have performed an extensive review of the Council’s financial controls for the purpose of
forming our control opinion as required by section 129 of the Local Government Act 1999
based on council’s obligations under s125 of that Act.

Our controls opinion is restricted per s129 of the Act to the application of s125 as it relates to
financial internal controls, specifically the controls exercised by the Council during the relevant
financial year in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition
and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

A summary of the results of our review is provided in the table below:

Operating B
Business cycles :;?g:’; Effectively LI AL
M

General Ledger 1]
Fixed Assets 16 14 2
Purchasing & Procurement/Contracting 10 8

Accounts Payable 13 13

Rates / Rates Rebates 10 10 B
Receipting 5 5 B
Payroll 19 18 B
Credit Cards 5 4

Banking 5 5 [
Debtors [

5

Overall the Council demonstrated a high level of compliance with the implementation of an
internal control framework consistent with the principles within the Better Practice Model.

During our interim audit visit we found that the majority of key internal controls reviewed were
in place and were operating effectively (92 out 100 core controls reviewed). Risks were rated
based on an assessment of the risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act
1999 as described in Appendix 3 — Risk Ratings.

An interim audit management letter was issued and presented to the audit committee
containing our overall assessment of the council’s internal controls and all the controls
weaknesses identified during our review of the Council’s financial controls.

Council has an action plan in place to address most of the findings related to the controls that
were not operating effectively as indicated in Management responses to our interim
management letter issued in July 2022.

In our opinion, subject to the satisfactory completion of the items described in section 1 of this
report, the Council has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls established by the Council in relation to
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report 10
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4. Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements

There are no immaterial uncorrected misstatements to be reported.
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5. Contact Details

Tim Muhlhausler ca, & comm, 6rad pip. (ican),

Registered Company Auditor, MIIA (Aust), Registered SMSF Auditor
Partner

¢ (08)83323433
X (08) 8332 3466

Galpins

o \‘Jwv.{g.;lplns com.au

@ 3 Kensington Road Norwood SA 5067
PO Box 4067 Norwood South SA 5067

JLI liano Freitas CA, B Acc, Registered Company Auditor

Audit Manager

¢ (08) 83323433
= [08) 8332 3466
@ www.qgalpins.com.au

Galpins

3 Kensington Road Norwood SA 5067
PO Box 4067 Norwood South SA 5067
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Appendix 1 - Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on
the Financial Report

To the members of City of Marion

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of City of Marion (the Council), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the Council Certificate of City of Marion.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance and its cash
flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Australia Accounting Standards, Local
Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that
are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and for such internal control as Council determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, Council is responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Council either intends to liquidate the Council or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance
are responsible for overseeing the Council’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole
is free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

2021/22 Audit Completion Report 13
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are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit of the financial report in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the financial report
in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler ca Registered Company Auditor

Partner

Date:
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Appendix 2 — Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on
the Internal Controls

To the members of City of Marion
Independent Assurance Report on the Internal Controls of City of Marion

Opinion

We have audited the compliance of City of Marion (the Council) with the requirements of
Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls
established by the Council to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of
liabilities for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 have been conducted properly and in
accordance with the law.

In our opinion, City of Marion has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation to internal controls established by the Council in relation
to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the
Council have been conducted properly and in accordance with law for the period 1 July 2021 to
30 June 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on
Assurance Engagement ASAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagement on Controls, issued by
the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material
respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation
only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. ASAE
3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the Australian
professional accounting bodies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

The Council’s Responsibility for Internal Controls

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls, in accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 to ensure that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to
assurance engagements, and applied Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that
Performs Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other Financial Information, and Other
Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.

2021/22 Audit Completion Report 15
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance with Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls established by the Council
to ensure that financial transactions relating to receipt, expenditure and investment of money,
acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly
and in accordance with the law, based on our procedures. Our engagement has been conducted
in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000
Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Information and ASAE 3150
Assurance Engagements on Controls, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board, in order to state whether, in all material respects, the Council has complied with Section
125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls specified above
for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. ASAE 3000 also requires us to comply with the
relevant ethical requirements for the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if
the controls are suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be
achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not
be detected.

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls
operating ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests
performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls
to future periods is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate.

Limitation of Use

This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with section 129
of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to the internal controls specified above. We
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users
other than the members of the Council, or for any purpose other than that for which it was
prepared.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler ca Registered Company Auditor
Partner

Date:
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Appendix 3 — Risk Ratings

The audit findings identified during our interim audit documented in our interim management
letter and in section 3 of this report were rated as follows:

Category Description

Potential
Material
Weaknesses

The issue described could lead to a material weakness in the council’s internal
controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act.

The issue described does not represent a material weakness due to the
existence of compensating controls. However, the failure of the
compensating controls or the existence of any other moderate weakness
within the same business cycle may lead to a material weakness in the
council’s internal controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local
Government Act.
The issue described is a low risk weakness due to the existence of
compensating controls and/or the failure or absence of the internal controls
Low Risk does not impact significantly on the council’s financial risk. However, multiple
\WEEIGESTSES low-level risk weakness within the same business cycle may lead to a material
weakness in the council’s internal controls and non-compliance with s125 of
the Local Government Act.

Better
Practice
Weaknesses

The issue described has been included in this report as an opportunity for
better practice.
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12.2 City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022
Report Reference GC221025R12.2

Originating Officer Governance Officer — Karrie McCann

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive - Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this report is to present the City of Marion Annual Report (the Report) and Annual
Report Summary for the 2021 - 2022 financial year. The Report will include the 2021 -2022, audited
financial statements for the City of Marion and the Southern Region Waste Resource Authority
which will be considered by Council as a separate agenda item at this meeting.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2021 — 2022 Annual Report is a comprehensive council document which includes information
prescribed by legislation, combined with general information about our key focus themes within the
City of Marion. The Report reflects achievements measured against our strategic projects, services,
and programs that council aimed to deliver throughout the financial year in accordance with the
Annual Business Plan for the corresponding year.

RECOMMENDATION
That:

1. Council adopts the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022 (Attachment 1) subject
to the following amendments:

i. Inclusion of Welcome from the Mayor (after the conclusion of the election)
ii.

2. Council adopts the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022 Summary (Attachment 2)

subject to the following amendments:
i.
ii.

3. The final City of Marion Financial Statements 2021 - 2022 being considered in report
GC221025R12.1 be included within the published version of the City of Marion Annual
Report 2021 - 2022.

4. The final Southern Region Waste Resource Authority audited financial statements
being considered in report GC221025R12.1 be included within the published version
of the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022.

5. Administration distributes copies of the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022 in
accordance with legislative requirements.

6. Administration distributes copies of the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022 and
Summary to members of the community via the City of Marion Libraries,
Neighbourhood, Community Centres and link on the City of Marion website.

7. The Chief Executive Officer is delegated to make minor amendments to the Report, as
required, following Council adoption and prior to final publication.
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Council must prepare and adopt an Annual Report on or before 30 November each year. The
City of Marion Annual Report 2021-2022 (Attachment 1) includes information prescribed by
legislation, combined with general information about achievements relating to key focus
themes within the City of Marion.

The Annual Report includes:
o Details of Council's performance, operations and achievements
e The audited City of Marion Annual Financial Statements
e The audited Southern Region Waste Resource Authority Annual Financial Statements and
Annual Report

The Local Government reform and the Statutes Amendment Act (Local Government Review)
Act 2021 have altered some information that is required within the Annual Report this year and
in subsequent years. As a result, and in comparison to previous years, some new information
has been included and some information has been presented in specific formats or brought to
the forefront in the main body of the report.

The Local Government (General) Regulations 2013 (Regulation 10) determines the distribution
timeframe of 31 December and the distribution list each year. The report will be distributed to
each Council member along with various other bodies and will be published on the City of
Marion website by this time.

Additionally, Council has created a summary document (Attachment 2) to further highlight key
information from the full Annual Report. It is also a means of further distribution for our
residents as several copies will be available via Marion Libraries, Neighbourhood and
Community Centres. The summary document will also be available on the City of Marion
website alongside the full Annual Report.

CARETAKER

Advice has been provided to all Councils from the Local Government Association, that the
‘Mayoral Welcome’ should not be presented during the caretaker period if the current Mayor is
re-standing. This is to ensure additional communication and an unfair advantage is provided
to sitting Mayors. Given that there are multiple Mayoral candidates for the City of Marion in the
upcoming Local Government Election, the ‘Welcome from the Mayor’ has been removed and
will be included in the final publication of the Report. This will be following the scrutiny and
count which commences on Saturday 12 November 2022. It will also ensure that Caretaker
Period has concluded.

BUDGET INFORMATION

The costs for producing and printing the City of Marion Annual Report 2021 - 2022 (complete with
annual financial statements from City of Marion and Southern Region Waste Authority) and the City
of Marion Annual Report 2021-2022 Summary will be within Council's budget of $1,500.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Annual Report 2021 - 2022 [12.2.1 - 25 pages]
2. Annual Report Summary 2021 - 2022 [12.2.2 - 2 pages]
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KAURNA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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This Kaurna acknowledgement was prepared in consultation with
traditional custodians.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

The City of Marion acknowledges we are situated on the traditional lands
of the Kaurna people and recognises the Kaurna people as the traditional
custodians of the land.

OUR VISION FOR RECONCILIATION

Our Reconciliation Action Plan 2020 - 2023 details actions that the City of
Marion leads, promotes and facilitates to achieve significant, tangible and
meaningful reconciliation outcomes within our community.

Our reconciliation vision is for strong relationships built on trust, respect,
integrity, inclusion and equity for all members of our community.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022
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WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR

Information to be inserted following the adoption of this report.

WHAT IS OUR ANNUAL REPORT?

The Annual Report is a comprehensive council document which includes
information prescribed by legislation, combined with general information about
our key focus themes within the City of Marion. The Annual Report for

2021 -2022 is a reflection of achievements measured against our strategic
projects, services and programs that council aimed to deliver throughout

the financial year in accordance with the Annual Business Plan for the
corresponding year.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CEO

The 2021 - 2022 financial year has been one of managing the transition from an environment of closed borders
and social distancing restrictions to open borders and the relaxing of COVID-19 rules and regulations. It has been
challenging for our diverse workforce as we have faced the same shortages experienced by every industry as we
continued providing high quality services and programs.

We supported vulnerable residents by delivering more than 19,560 frozen meals and facilitating 7,625 transportation
trips for shopping and medical appointments.

We had nearly 291,350 physical and online visits to our three library sites and more than 648,000 items borrowed.

Our volunteer numbers have continued to increase with just over 50 new people volunteering with the City of Marion
and and a total of 350 volunteers supporting the community through a range of activities.

Economically, the City of Marion continues to be in a strong position as we manage our $91.6m budget. The 1 per
cent average rate increase in 2021 - 2022 was below the Reserve Bank inflation rate at the time. The City of Marion
manages more than $1b in assets and we invested $54.6m in capital works including community and sporting
facilities and playgrounds.

There were several multi million dollar projects completed throughout the 2021 - 2022 financial year including
Mitchell Park Sports and Community Centre, the Southern Soccer Facility at Trott Park, the Sam Whilloughby
International BMX facility at O’Halloran Hill and the upgraded boardwalk at the Field River Section of the Coastal
Walkway at Hallett Cove.

In addition, more than a dozen playground and reserve upgrades valued at nearly $5.7m have been completed. We
have delivered new sports lighting upgrades at four sports clubs and spent $2.83m on our footpaths and $5.556m on
our roads and kerbs.

As we continue focusing on improving the environment, we’ve reduced our corporate operations carbon emissions
from our 2015 - 2016 baseline of 5,617 tonnes (CO2e) to 3,234 tonnes (CO2e).

Council planted more than 4,000 street trees this year as part of its plan to plant 30,000 trees by 2028 and we planted
15,000 local native seedlings on public land.

The City of Marion continues to operate a recycled water business with some 200 million litres of stormwater captured,
cleaned, and stored at Oaklands Wetland.

We delivered 39,902 kitchen caddies free of charge to City of Marion households as part of our Food Waste Recycling
Program. In just over six months this initiative has diverted 1,144 tonnes of food scraps from landfill, cut annual
greenhouse gas emissions by 2,174 tonnes (CO2e) and saved ratepayers $162,334 in rubbish disposal costs.

Finally, thank you to our community for your vote of confidence in our organisation, delivering us an 82 per cent
approval rating in our recent community satisfaction survey.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

OUR PURPOSE, VISION AND VALUES

OUR PURPOSE
(Why we exist)

To improve our residents’ quality
of life; continuously, smartly
and efficiently.

OUR COMMUNITY VISION

(What we want to become)

A community that is Liveable,
Valuing Nature, Engaged,
Prosperous, Innovative

and Connected.

The six themes of our Community
Vision represent the shared values
and aspirations guiding how our
city develops, towards 2040. These
outcomes are important for this
community now and into the future.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

OUR VALUES

With the community and safety at
the forefront of everything we do,
we value:

Respect - Treating everyone as
we want to be treated, where all
contributions are valued

Integrity - Fostering trust and
honesty in all of our interactions

By 2040 our city will be well planned,
safe and welcoming, with high
quality and environmentally sensitive
housing, and where cultural diversity,
arts, heritage and healthy lifestyles
are celebrated.

Achievement - Enhancing our
knowledge and performance to
reach our shared goals, while
being dedicated to supporting
one another

Innovation - Encouraging new
ideas, and learning from our
experience to do things better

PROSPEROUS

By 2040 our city will be a diverse
and clean economy that attracts
investment and jobs, and creates
exports in sustainable business
precincts while providing access to
education and skills development.

VALUING NATURE

By 2040 our city will be deeply
connected with nature to enhance
people’s lives, while minimising the
impact on the climate, and protecting
the natural environment.

INNOVATIVE

By 2040 our city will be a leader in
embracing and developing new ideas
and technology to create a vibrant
community with opportunities for all.

ENGAGED

By 2040 our city will be a community
where people are engaged,
empowered to make decisions,

and work together to build strong
neighbourhoods.

CONNECTED

By 2040 our city will be linked by

a quality road, footpath and public
transport network that brings people
together socially, and harnesses
technology to enable them to access
services and facilities.

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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CITY OF MARION FAST FACTS

Location:

Land area:

Estimated resident population:
Population density per sqm:
Residents born overseas:
Landmarks:

Gross regional product:
Leading employment sectors:

Council members:

Wards:

Operating expenditure:

Revenue:

Number of rateable properties:

Average residential rate:

Rate increase from 2020 - 2021:

Library items loaned:

Website visits:

Volunteers:

Volunteer hours:

Value of volunteer contributing hours:
Street and reserve trees planted:
Development applications:

Value of development applications:
Distance of Stormwater network (drains):
Culverts and Box Drains:

Distance of Roads:

Distance of Footpaths and Shared Paths:

South- Western Suburbs of Adelaide
56.17kms?

95,650

1,703

21.9%

Cove Civic Centre,

Living Kuarna Culture Centre,
Glenthorne National Park,

Hallet Cove Conservation Park,
Marion Coastal Wlakway,

Marion Cultural Centre,

Marion Outdoor Pool,

Morphettville Racecourse,

Oaklands Wetlands and Recreation Plaza,
SA Aquatic and Leisure Centre,
Tonsley Innovation District,
Westfield, Marion Shopping Centre
$3.814b

Retail and Trade,

Health Care and Social Assistance,
Education and Training ]
Other Ak
b )

13

6

$101.88m O
$102.422

44,462

$1,500 <:>
$24.82

648,033

487,721 visitors view and 1,712,921 page views
364

36,848

$1,844,093 (ABS hourly rate $46.62)
4,641

1,961

$240.9m

254km

6km

492km

839km

a La e

O 5
O
O
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STRATEGIC PLANS

The City of Marion’s 10-Year Strategic Plan 2019 - 2029
and 4-Year Business Plan July 2019 - 2023 have provided
directions for strategic decision-making. In 2021 - 2022
work areas within Council commenced, progressed and/
or delivered a significant number of projects including:

Opened the new Mitchell Park Sports and
Community Centres

Completed upgrades to 11 reserves

Completing a $3m major street upgrade at Diagonal
Road and Sturt Road, along the Westfield
Marion Corridor

Opened the Southern Soccer Facility
Opened the Capella Reserve Skate Park at Hallett Cove

Planted approximately 4,300 street trees to cool
the city

30 YEAR COMMUNITY VISION
TOWARDS 2040

LIVEABLE VALUING NATURE INNOVATIVE
PROSPEROUS CONNECTED ENGAGED

STRATEGIC PLANS
STRATEGIC PLAN
WORKFORCE PLAN
ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN
LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT PLAN

BUSINESS PLAN
JULY 2019-JUNE 2023

ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN

PERFORMANCE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

e Trialed a new ‘verge incentive fund’ to assist residents
with the costs of landscaping on verges

¢ Rolled out kitchen caddies to 40,000 households to
reduce waste to landfill

¢ |Installed new sports lighting at four sports clubs

e Supported vulnerable residents by delivering 22,511
frozen meals

¢ Committed to the future development of the Marion
Cultural Centre Plaza upgrade.

Several of these initiatives were supported by Federal
and State Government funding.

These initiatives will help us to deliver the Community
Vision for a city that is Liveable, Valuing Nature,
Engaged, Prosperous, Innovative and Connected.

A shared Community Vision
Innovating a future for the
city and its residents

A suite of plans that focus
Council’s contributions to
the Community Vision

Council’s delivery program
over its term

Team level planning to ensure
community and Council’s
priorities are delivered

Identifies how Council’s
work is resourced and paid
for each year

Individual delivery and
development plans

Page 9
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RESERVE IMPROVEMENTS

The City of Marion has a clear vision regarding
maintenance, upgrades and promoting our reserves
and play spaces. Throughout the 2021 - 2022 financial
year Capella Drive Reserve - Stage 2 and Hugh Johnson
Boulevard Reserve were developed. In addition, council
is currently working on construction of four reserve
upgrades, design and consultation on seven additional
reserves and nine open space plan builds.

Capella Drive Reserve
The following redevelopment took place:

¢ Completion of Stage 2

e $3million redevelopment

e New playground equipment, slide, swing, flying fox,
pump track and fitness equipment

¢ Stage one of project included an expanded car park
and the new-look skatepark and opened in early
December 2021.

Hugh Johnson Boulevard Reserve
The following redevelopment took place:

¢ Upgraded reserve includes two new playgrounds,
a pump track, fitness equipment, pond and creek
reinstatement and associated works

¢ Reserve drawcards include a challenging adventure
area, a climbing wall and the tallest tunnel slide in
Marion! There is an ‘Enchanted Forest” nature play
area, plus animal sculptures and a magic cauldron.

MITCHELL PARK SPORTS AND
COMMUNITY CENTRE

On 26 June 2022, our multi-million dollar, multi
-functional sport, community centre, and dog club was
officially opened with a traditional Welcome to Country
and community celebration. The day was action packed
with sporting games, come and try sessions, live music
including Nova radio, face painting and community
workshops. The facility provides the following for
community use:

¢ Two indoor courts for basketball, netball, volleyball
e Facilities for football, tennis, rugby, and cricket

¢ Afitness area, change rooms, kiosk, and expanded
car parking

¢ Aneighbourhood centre delivering a range of
community programs

¢ Dog obedience club facilities and car parking
e Public art installations
¢ Function spaces with kitchen and bar facilities.
This expanded centre will create jobs and local business

opportunities, while providing a home for up to 1,000
players of local sporting clubs.

COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS

The City of Marion prioritises the importance of positive
and rewarding community interactions for our residents.
The Community Connections Unit including Libraries,
Neighbourhood Centres and Positive Ageing and Inclusion
engaged with 356,118 community members across

our sites, facilitated 648,033 individual library resource
borrowings, delivered a variety of 558 different programs
equating to a total of 11,871 sessions, which attracted
25,834 program attendees. Each Community interaction
has a positive effect on wellbeing and makes a difference
in the daily lives of so many of our residents. We are
proud to deliver such meaningful programs.

PUBLIC HEALTH

City of Marion’s public health outcomes are driven by our
Community Vision themes and the State Public Health Plan
priorities. Council provides a number of services such as:

e Environmental Health inspections

e Community programs

e Walking and cycling infrastructure

e Immunisation programs

* Response service for public health concerns

e Volunteer Programs.

YOUTH COLLECTIVE COMMITTEE (YCC)

The YCCis a group of 10 young people, aged between13
and 25 who are from a cross section of backgrounds and
live within the City of Marion. Their purpose is to explore
ideas about how to bridge the gap between council and
the youth of Marion. Their focus is on making a difference
in areas such as:

¢ Safety and security

e Mental health

e Environment

e Arts and music

 Education

¢ Age relevant technology.

The YCC have also coordinated events such an Esports
Tournament and Battle of the Bands.

Page 11
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VALUING NATURE

By 2040 our city will be deeply connected with nature to enhance
peoples’ lives, while minimising the impact on the climate and
protecting the natural environment

V. BERY, Al e M 7V S N i J L ’ - /
a6 R N AN A L
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TREE PLANTING INITIATIVES

In the final year of implementation of the actions relating
to the Tree Management Framework, 4,641 street and
reserve trees were planted. This planting was undertaken
broadly across our council area with suburb planting
occuring in Ascot Park, Plympton Park, Glengowrie,
O’Halloran Hill and Warradale. Planting consisted of a
number of different native and exotic species including
Coral Gums, SA Blue Gums, Yellow Bloodwoods, Chinese
Pistacia, Maples and Pyrus trees. The number of trees
planted exceeded the council endorsed target of 4,300
trees per financial year and continues to roll out our seven
year planting plan to focus planting in suburbs which
have been identified as having low existing tree canopy
and exposure to high urban heat.

A new Urban Tree Asset Management Plan is being
drafted to replace the Tree Management Framework to
guide tree management over the next decade.

ENVIRONMENT EDUCATION PROGRAMS

At the City of Marion, we deliver ongoing educational
programs designed to share information with the
community on responsibly disposing of recyclable,
organic and general waste. This includes working
proactively with organisers and caterers for council-run
events to ensure single-use plastics are not being used.
Volunteer bin buddies are also supported at major
council-run events to assist in guiding attendees in the
appropriate use of waste and recycling systems.

An independent audit of waste systems within council
offices and facilities was delivered with a range of
recommendations to be implemented in 2023.

COMMUNITY GARDENS

We continue to support the four community gardens at
Glandore, Oaklands Park, Marino and Trott Park. We are
happy to welcome two new community groups who are
both in the process of preparing the community
garden applications:

¢ Cove Community Garden Group; and
* Greenfingers Community Garden Group.

FOOD WASTE RECYCLING PROGRAM

Kitchen caddies were distributed to 39,902 households
in a bid to reduce the amount of waste going to landfill.
By diverting food waste, the project is expected to save
council approximately $200,000 in landfill disposal costs
each year. The project was funded with support from
Green Industries SA.

Compostable dog tidy bags are also now used in
dispensers across the council area.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

CARBON EMMISSIONS REDUCTION

Under our Carbon Neutral Plan, we have a target to be
carbon neutral for council operations by 2030. Council has
continued to implement energy efficiency measures and
move to renewable energy sources. An inventory of carbon
emissions generated from council’s operational activities
continues to be maintained to monitor progress towards
the goal of being carbon neutral for council operations by
2030 goal. Current progress is shown below.

PROGRESS TOWARDS BEING CARBON
NEUTRAL BY 2030

City of Marion: Projected and Actual Annual Emissions
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ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE

DESIGN (ESD)

In September 2021, two new ESD Guidelines were

adopted with the view to embedding them in our internal

project and facility management systems and processes:
e New Buildings, Structures and Refurbishments; and
e Sustainable Building Maintenance Guide.

A key project outcome has been approval to replace
some of the gas water boilers at the Marion Outdoor Pool
with electric water heaters. A review of solar capacity at
the site is also underway.

VALUING MARION’S NATURE PROGRAM

The program provides opportunities for the community
to connect with nature and learn about the natural
environments in the City of Marion. Recent
events included:

e Habitat Gardening

e Growing Greens and Herbs

¢ (oastal Gardening

* Gazania Free Gardens native plant swap

e Council is also supporting the ‘Grow it Local’
campaign which aims to get more people growing,
sharing and eating locally grown foods.
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COMMUNITY EVENTS AND PROJECTS

The City of Marion hosts a number of diverse community
events and projects every year, the following events and
projects are an example of what was delivered during
2021-2022:

Marion 100:

A cross section of 100 City of Marion residents
participated in the Marion 100 Community Summit. The
summit was held to seek ideas and hear the voices within
our community to assist in guiding Council on key priorities
at the time and into the future. Two summits were held in
the 2021 - 2022 financial year which included a focus on
the upcoming 2022 - 2023 Council Budget.

Australia Day Awards:

There are many people that help to make the City of
Marion a great place. This event at the Tonsley Innovation
Centre celebrated the nominees and winners of

each category.

e (itizen of the year
* Young Person of the year
e Best Event of the year.

The Marion City band and Coast FM helped to make the
day one to remember.

Anzac Eve Youth Vigil:

50 Young cadets stood guard throughout the night at the
Marion RSL Club on Anzac eve. The vigil preserves the
memory of the ANZACS for present and future generations
and was the 14" Youth vigil supported by the

City of Marion.

CULTURAL ARTS AND EVENTS

2021 - 2022 saw the return of City of Marion events
with many reaching capacity attendance with keen
audience participation.

Nexus Arts Orchestra: An intercultural ensemble of
global artists entranced audiences with a completely
original line up and instruments. Their performance
was uplifting and prompted much celebration from the
amazing crowd.

Interfaith Forum in the Spirit of Harmony: The forum
promoted respectful intercultural relationships and social
cohesion, by raising awareness about what diverse faiths
have in common, as well as some unique differences. The
event promoted positive messages about intercultural
and interfaith communication and collaboration.

Refugee Week: This multilayered program provided

the opportunity to highlight different aspects of the
refugee experience. The key theme was music and what it
represents. Hope for a better future, the history of persian
classical music, and interviews with Australian musicians
who provided support and friendship to encourage
positive connections for for anyone living in a new country.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

The City of Marion Reconciliation exhibition,
Kaurna: Still Here:

A celebration of First Nations artists was presented

at Gallery M as a collaborative project. It provided an
opportunity for the artists to research the extensive
collection from the South Australian museum and as a
result, develop a new body of work for this exhibition. The
focus was:

e George French Angas collection of 1880’s
illustrations of botanicals

e First Nations People

 The South-Eastern Coastal landscape of
South Australia depicting Kaurna/Rammindjeri
people paintings painted between Adelaide and
Cape Jervis

 Connections to land and Ancestoral practices

e (arvings, art and craft pieces modeled on times prior
to European colonisation

* Atraditional Aboriginal weaving workshop.

YOUTH PARTNERSHIPS

The City of Marion works in partnership with local services
and organisations to deliver positive outcomes for young
people in our City. Throughout the 2021 - 2022 financial
year the City of Marion supported several initiatives for
young people in relation to:

e Homelessness
* Mental Health
* Young people at Risk (Operation Flinders).

YOUTH GRANTS

$120,000 is allocated annually to the Youth
Development Grants. The grants are designed to support
organisations to deliver diverse, innovative, and inclusive
opportunities for local young people aged 12-25 years.

GREEN ADELAIDE EDUCATION PROGRAM

The Green Adelaide program hosted a range of events
involving schools, staff, students, parents and community
members. School visits and online communications
included the provision of resources to educators, working
with youth environment groups, conducting bin audits,
professional development, and project assistance.

Page 15
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PROSPEROU

By 2040 our city will be a diverse and clean economy that attracts
investment and jobs, and creates exports in sustainable business
precincts while providing access to education and
skills development.

Mural-at Castle Plaza, artist: Sair Bean (Sarah-Casson)
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REVITALISATION OF EDWARDSTOWN
EMPLOYMENT PRECINCT

The Edwardstown Employment Precinct is host to
over 4,500 jobs, over 1,700 businesses and provides
$1b into our economy. Over the past 12 months,
achievements across access, amenity and

activation include:

¢ Completion of Greening of Edwardstown

e Installation of an entry statement and mural at Castle
Plaza on Raglan Avenue

¢ A celebration of businesses for service to the area
and support for local jobs

e A successful circular economy grant application

¢ Defence Industry Day

¢ Exploration of traffic management options

¢ A successful water sustainability grant application
e Launch of the Edwardstown website.

CLIMATE CHANGE PLANNING

Council continues to look at ways to reduce the severity of
climate change (climate change abatement) as well plan
for projected impacts of climate change (climate change
adaptation) according to our Climate Change Policy. As
well as working at the council level, we also work with
state and local government across the southern Adelaide
region through the Resilient South regional climate
partnership www.resilientsouth.com

Key outcomes for the reporting period:

Initiating the review of the Resilient South Regional
Climate Action Plan (ReCAP) including securing $99,000
of grant funding from the Australian Government’s
Preparing Australian Communities Program.

Initiating the Resilient Asset Management Project (RAMP)
— a project that aims to incorporate climate risk into our
asset management processes. The $785,000 project

is supported by the Resilient South council partners,
Local Government Association (LGA) Research and
Development Scheme, State Government’s Disaster Risk
Reduction Grants Program, and CSIRO.

CITY OF MARION COMMUNITY GRANTS

The City of Marion’s five grant streams allocate over
$250,000 annually to assist organisations, groups and
not-for-to deliver programs, events and projects that
benefit our local community.

Projects and activities are required to be inclusive and as
accessible as possible for all groups, including people of
various genders, ages, sexuality, cultural backgrounds,
religious beliefs, and those living with disability.

Atotal of 101 grants were distributed across the City of
Marion throughout 2021 - 2022.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

DESIGN CODE AMENDMENTS

Council progressed three planning and design code
amendments for the Morphettville and Glengowrie
Stables, Centre Zones and Marion Road Corridor. These
Code Amendments will unlock further development
opportunities in key locations. The Code Amendments are
with the Minister for Planning for Consideration.

SOUTHERN BUSINESS
MENTORING PROGRAM

The cross-council collaboration with the Cities of Holdfast
Bay, Onkaparinga and Yankalilla provide a one on one
support program was which was accessed by 51 City of
Marion businesses in the 2021- 2022 financial year. The
service is purpose built to respond to current trends faced
by businesses and is designed to help businesses and
start-ups across the region to connect and share insights
for success and growth.

The Southern Business Mentoring Program provides
independent one on one support and advice across a
range of disciplines:

e General Business
e Strategic Marketing
 Digital Marketing.

DISABILITY, ACCESS AND
INCLUSION PLAN

The City of Marion continues to deliver the Disability
Access and Inclusion Plan 2020 - 2024 (DAIP), in line
with State legislation (Disability Inclusion Act, 2018). The
DAIP shows how the City of Marion:

* Promotes the rights of people living with a disability,
working towards ensuring all people enjoy the
same access and inclusion experience within our
community.

* Delivers annual actions to reduce access and
inclusion barriers for people living with a disability.

* Puts the Equity, Access and Social Inclusion Policy
into practice.

The second year (2021 - 2022) of DAIP implementation
is complete, with all 33 DAIP actions delivered.

The City of Marion is proud of our Diversity and Inclusive
Traineeship Program. We offer traineeship placements for
three individuals who identify as either Aboriginal and/or
Torres Strait Islander, from a Culturally and Linguistically
Diverse background, or living with a disability. This

award winning program offers training and employment
pathways for young people.

Page 17
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opportunities for all.

Tonsley Innovation District, Tonsley
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INNOVATIVE

By 2040 our city will be a leader in embracing and developing
new ideas and technology to create a vibrant community with

COVID-19 RESPONSE

Community and Wellbeing

The City of Marion has continued to consistently deliver
services to the community during times of COVID-19.
Challenges have been overcome with the implementation
of a number of new Neighbourhood Centre processes and
programs some of which will continue as an improvement
due to the positive outcomes that have been achieved.

« Life Story Project (a partnership with Positive
Ageing and Inclusion program): this initiative ran
from 2020 to 2022 where a book was delivered to
community members in order for them to record the
life memories, milestones, travel, sport, failures etc,
with these stories then professionally bound by staff
for their keepsake.

* Virtual Reality Experiences (Positive Ageing and
Inclusion program): participants felt as if they were
diving with schools of fish, colourful giant cuttlefish,
friendly sealions, sea dragon and other divers. This
virtual dive enabled them to experience and learn
about South Australia’s unique marine life without
actually having to get into the water.

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION PROGRAM

The Digital Transformation Program is on track with
multiple projects implemented and others well underway.
A combination of technology, people and process are

at the core of these projects as they are the foundation

for future transformational change in the way we work
with, both the Council and wider community. We have
transformed our interactive customer web portal as well as
our finance and payroll systems which have improved our
ability to manage our Assests.

Covid-19 brought about smarter ways to work
collaboratively for our staff while working remotely across
a number of council buildings. Upgrades to our hardware,
software programs and business processes has supported
our staff to continue with core business regardless of
their location.

Projects that have been implemented include:

 Online Payroll System

 Customer Relationship Management
System — Salesforce

e Moved to Microsoft 365

e Device upgraded and management
 SharePoint to enable intelligent intranet

* Geographic information system transition to ESRI
* Unified Communications

e Audio Visual Access in meeting rooms and
council chamber.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022
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SMART CITIES

The Smart City of Marion Strategic Plan and action plan
outlines a set of initiatives against the prioritised 4-year
Business Plan projects and strategic objectives. It is
aligned to the seven foundational principles and three
smart pillars aimed to accelerate transformation to
achieve the ‘Innovative’ community vision. The program
set out to deliver projects against the three pillars:

Smart Community | Smart Organisation |
Smart Places.

The key areas of focus include:

* Digital Transformation (Smart Organisation)

 Data Management and Analysis (Smart Organisation,
Smart Places)

e Smart Parking (Smart Places)
e Smart Lighting (Smart Places)
» Open Space Asset Management (Smart Places)

e Design and procurement of technologies for major
project integration (Smart Places)

e Circular Economy (Smart Community).

COASTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

City of Marion has been implementing a coastal
monitoring program to detect changes in coastal land
and identify coastal hazards. The program has been part-
funded by the Department for Environment and Water
and includes regular inspections of the coastline using
drones, capturing data on shape of the sea floor and
wave conditions, and modelling future sea levels.

Five new CoastSnap monitoring stations were installed
between Hallett Cove and Marino as a citizen science
initiative that engages the community in monitoring
of coastal change. No new major risks or hazards were
detected in the 2021 reporting period.

@ LGA AWARDS

5=

City of Marion Move It Program won the Leadership
in Community Services and Development Award at
the Local Government Professionals SA 215 Annual
Leadership Awards Night.

The award recognises outstanding achievment and
innovation in local government - congratulations to
everyone involved with this outstanding initiative.

Funded through a Federal Governmnet Better Ageing
Grant, ‘Move It’ resulted in the delivery of unique, new
and tailored opportunities to be physically actvie in key
Spaces across our community.
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STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

This year our teams have completed a number of projects
within the City of Marion to reduce flooding.

CONNECTED

By 2040 our city will be l[nked by a quality road, f(_)otpath and public e (deaatar A5Oms el 156 Rl (meter
transport network that brings people together socially and harnesses 375mm) = 1,178Im of new stormwater infrastructure

technology to enable them to access services and facilities * Project finished under budget by $10,547
= total project cost $325,799.

Renown Ave, Clovelly Park — Capital Works
Stormwater Drainage

¢ To alleviate flooding
* Installing four junction boxes, five side entry pits, 78

Berrima Rd, Sheidow Park — Stormwater Upgrade

 To upsize the stormwater crossing from 600mm
diameter reinforced concrete pipes to twin
1,200m x 600m reinforced concrete box culverts

e Significant rock armouring and gabion weirs
were constructed

¢ Project cost $755,000 .

Moreland Ave, Mitchell Park — Permable Paving
Capital Works Project

e 490m? of pavers installed to replace existing
dirt footpath

 Project cost $84,257

¢ permeable pavers allows stormwater to infiltrate
through the footpath and reduces stormwater runoff
into the street.

b o TRANSPORT PLAN

Council developed a Transport Plan in alignment with the
City of Marion Community Vision with the aim to achieve
the following:

e Better transport and movement accross the city

e Improved conditions for all road users, pedestrians
and cyclists

¢ Address the need for parking and accessibility
e Account for future modes or transport.

FOOTPATH AUDIT

Council has completed a condition audit of the entire
footpath network within City of Marion. The audit provided
Council with an overall condition profile of the network
and identified individual defects exceeding 170mm in
height. The City of Marion’s overall footpath network had
less than 9 per cent of the network below the Council
Service Level and was ranked amongst the better footpath
networks in comparison to our adjacent Councils. The
audit identified a total of 1,845 individual defects
exceeding 20mm in height which is Council’s intervention
point. The individual defects served to drive Council’s
four-year pro-active maintenance program, such that the
defects were prioritised based on pedestrian demand.

al Walkivay, Hallett Cove
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STREETSCAPES

Streetscape upgrades were completed on Sturt Road
and Diagonal Road. These works have delivered
improved amenity, and a greener and more walkable
neighborhood. The upgrade included reconstruction

of the existing footpath, extensive tree planting and
landscaping including Water Sensitive Design (diverting
stormwater flows into rain gardens).

LUCRETIA WETLAND

A Stormwater detention basin in Hallett Cove completely
evaporated over the summers of 2017 - 2018 and
2018 - 2019. The water depth, over the 50 years since
the basins were created, slowly reduced, year by year,
as the silt levels in the basin accumulated over time. We
understand that the basin was originally constructed

to capture the silt and to reduce erosive flows into the
downstream Hallett Cove Conservation Park.

The residents in nearby proximity to the wetland
canvassed Council to bring forward the timing of
improvement works. So began a two year journey

with Residents, Regulators, Designers and Council. A
collaborate, reiterate, design process resulted in Council
fully funding the Construction of a new wetland. The
basin was emptied of silt, reshaped and relined to create
a multiple use space, with sediment basin and Gross
Pollutant Trap being installed ensuring the site is safe and
easy to maintain into the future.

The site has now been landscaped and revegetation has
commenced. Over the coming years additional planting
will occur to make the site look natural and welcoming.
The ducks and other birds have now returned to the
new wetlands.

COVID 19 RESPONSE
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

The City of Marion has continued to consistently deliver
services to the community during times of COVID-19.
Challenges have been overcome with the implementation
of a number of new processes some of which will
continue as improvement due to the positive outcomes
that have been achieved.

With assistance of Technology improvements council
have implemented 3CX, a web and cloud based Contact
Centre which enables the Customer Service Team to
work from home when required. This has successfully
increased productivity and ensured a consistent delivery
of service to our customers. This has paved the way for a
more flexible working environment and has improved the
work, life balance for a traditionally on site work area.
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COUNCIL AREA AND WARD BOUNDARIES

The Council comprises of an elected Mayor and 12 Councillors. The city has 28 suburbs, covered by six wards, each
ward is represented by two Councillors. In the City of Marion, one Council Member represents an average of 5,529
voters. This is known as a representation quota. This quota is formulated by the Electoral Commission of

South Australia who provide a table of Representation Quotas for all South Australian councils.

Every eight years councils are required to undertake a representation review to ensure that each ward is fairly
represented by the appropriate number of councillors. The outcomes of the review determine whether a council

community would benefit from a change to Council’s composition or ward structure. Chapter 3 of the Local Government

Act 1999 (the Act) sets out the requirements for a representation review. In accordance with this legislation, the
City of Marion’s next review is scheduled for 2027 - 2028.
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CITY OF MARION COUNCIL MEMBERS

Southern Hills Ward Warracowie Ward

Seaview Downs, O'Halloran Hill (part), Trott Park, Sheidow Park (Part), Warradale, Oaklands Park, Dover Gardens, Seacombe Gardens, Marion (part)
Seacliff Park (part)

Pi

o COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR
MAYOR
Kris H Maggie Duncan Matthew Shilling Bruce Hull Nathan Prior
ris Hanna
_ _ _ July ‘21 - June ‘22 Review and = July ‘21 - November ‘21 Asset July ‘21 — June ‘22 Asset and | July ‘21 — June ‘22 Asset and
Review and Selection Committee Selection Committee and Sustainability Committee  Sustainability Committee Sustainability Committee
Asset and Sustainability Committee July 21 - June ‘22 Finance, November 21 — June 22
Risk and Audit Commitee Review and

Planning and Development Committee . .
Selection Committee

Coastal Ward Mullawirra Ward Warriparinga Ward Woodlands Ward

Marino, Seacliff Park (part), Hallett Cove Glengowrie, Morphettville, Park Holme, Plympton Park Marion (Part) Mitchell Park (Part), Sturt, Bedford Park (Part), Clovelly Park (Part), South Plympton, Glandore (Part), Ascot Park, Edwardstown, Mitchell Park (Part),
Seacombe Heights, Darlington (Part), Tonsley Clovelly Park (Part)

COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR COUNCILLOR

lan Crossland Tim Gard Kendra Clancy Jason Veliskou Luke Hutchinson Raelene Telfer Dr Joseph Masika OAM Sasha Mason

July ‘21 —June 22 Assetand | July ‘21 —June ‘22 Assetand  July'21 — June 22 Planning July ‘21 - June 22 Planning July 21 -June 22 July ‘21 - June ‘22 Planning July ‘21 - June ‘22 Planning July ‘21 -June ‘22 Planning

Sustainability Committee Sustainability Committee and Development Committee = and Development Committee Deputy Mayor and Development Committee and Development Committee | and Development Committee
July 21 —Nov ‘21 Review and  July ‘21 —June ‘22 Council July ‘21 - June ‘22 Planning July ‘21 —June ‘22 Council Resigned 14 June 2022
Selection Committee Assessment Panel and Development Committee  Assessment Panel
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CITY OF MARION CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND GENERAL MANAGERS COUNCIL MEMBERS

Every four years a Local Government Election is held. Members of our Community nominate themselves to be
considered for the position of Council Member within the City of Marion. Council Members represent their community
for a four year term. During the 2021 - 2022 Financial year, the City of Marion Council Members were in their third and
fourth year of the current term.

The fundamental role of a Council Member is to deliver upon the expectations of the local and wider community
while acting in accordance with Local Government Act 1999. The Act provides the legislative framework and ambit of
responsibilities for all Council Members, whether it be as an individual or as part of the decision making body

of Council.

Council Members have regular commitments for attendance at Council and Committee Meetings and must attend in
accordance with legislative requirements. Information sessions are also frequent, mainly in the form of
Council Member Forums.

The schedule below is a record of attendance for our City of Marion Council Members.

Chief Executive Officer
Tony Harrison
July ‘21 -June 22 - : 5

Office of the Chief Executive Officer, S S 5
People and Culture, City Services, : : L . 3 : S
City Development, Corporate Services : :

Number of Meetings 18 2 6 7 5 5 11 15
Mayor Kris Hanna 18/18 2/2 - 717 3/5 5/5 - 15/15
Crlan Crossland 18/18 2/2 - - 5/5 - - 14/15
CrTim Gard 16/18 2/2 - 3/7* 2/5* - - 10/15
Cr Kendra Clancy 18/18 2/2 - - - 5/5 1/11* 13/15
CrJason Veliskou 17/18 2/2 - - - 5/5 - 15/15
Cr Maggie Duncan 18/18 2/2 6/6 6/7 - - - 14/15
Cr Matthew Shilling 18/18 2/2 - 4)7* 3/5* - - 13/15
General Manager General Manager City General Manager General Manager City Cr Bruce Hull 18/18 2/2 - - 5/5 - - 15/15
Corporate Services Development City Services Development Cr Nathan Prior 18/18 202 ] : 5/5 ] : 14/15
Sorana Dinmore Ilia Houridis Ben Keen Tony Lines Cr Luke Hutchinson 16/18 2/2 - - - 4/5 - 7/15
July 21 — June 22 July 21 — February 22 May 22 —June 22 July 21 — February 22 CrRaelene Telfer 18/18 2/2 - - : 5/5 10/11 14/15
Finance, Information Services, City Property, Development Engineering Assets and (CG'enSeral.Ma;lager CrJoseph Masika 17/18 2/2 - - - B - §/15
Strategic Procurement, and Regulatory Services, Environment, Operations, Ity Services CrSasha Mason 13/18 1/2 : : : 3/5 : 8/15
Customer Experience, City Activation, Urban Renewal ~ Community Connections February ‘22 —June ‘22
Data Cross Council (General Manager City
Deve lopment) Note: the figures shown indicate the number of meetings a Member attended out of the maximum they were eligible to attend.
City Property, Development * Was not a member of this committee for the full 2021 - 2022 financial year

and Regulatory Services,
City Activation, Urban Renewal

The above information is reflective of staff vacancies throughout the 2021 - 2022 financial year.
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COUNCIL MEMBER TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with the Council Members Allowances
and Benefits Policy, Council Members are provided
the opportunity to register and attend further training
as necessary for the fulfillment of their role. Certain
circumstances require that Council Members are
reimbursed for out of pocket expenses in relation to
attendance at Training and Development events.

On occasions Council Members are also nominated and
required to travel to represent the City of Marion as a
delegate at interstate events. All costs associated with
training and development or Council delegate activities
are recorded in the Elected Member Expense Register
which is published on the City of Marion website. The
table below summarises expenses for Delegate Activities
and Training and Development during the 2021 - 2022
financial year.

Mayor Hanna

COUNCIL MEMBER ALLOWANCES

Council Members are entitled to an allowance whilst
representing their community. The Local Government
Act 1999 sets out the council member entitlement to an
allowance. The Remuneration Tribunal of SA determines
council member allowances on a four yearly basis, with
an adjustment occuring on the first, second and third
anniversaries of the periodic election to reflect the
changes in CPI. The amounts applied in

November 2021 were:

Remuneration from November 2021

Mayor $88,648 peryear
$27,702 peryear
$22,162 peryear

Deputy Mayor
Council Member

COUNCIL MEMBER GIFTS AND BENEFITS

Council Members in South Australia have a commitment
to serve the best interests of the people within the
community they represent and to discharge their duties
conscientiously, to the best of their ability for public,

not private, benefit at all times. As representatives of
open, responsive and accountable government, Council
members must comply with all legislative requirements
of their role and abide by a Code of Conduct. This Code
of Conduct requires Council Members to report any gift or
benefit they receive in their capacity as a Council Member
over the threshold of $100 as gazetted.

The City of Marion Council Members received four gifts
varying in value from $40 to $100. The total value of
the four gifts was $245 and on four occasions, Members
chose to keep these gifts. Further information can be
viewed on the Gift and Benefit Register on the

City of Marion website.

Councillor Clancy Y

$1,058 $570 $394

Councillor Crossland

Councillor Duncan

Councillor Gard

Councillor Hull

<|=<|=<|=<|=<]|=<

Councillor Hutchinson

$1,058 $570 $422 $99

<|=<|=<|=<|=<|=<|=<|=<

Councillor Masika

Councillor Mason

Councillor Prior

Councillor Shilling

Councillor Telfer Y

<|=<|=<|=<

Councillor Veliskou

<|=<|=<|=<
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COUNCIL MEETINGS

INFORMATION SESSION

Council has a policy position regarding its administration
of information sessionss in accordance with legislative
provisions. The Policy states that:

¢ Information Sessions are open to the public
whenever possible

¢ Decisions to hold information sessions in confidence
are made on a case-by-case basis

¢ Council publishes notification details on the website
to ensure that interested members of the public
can attend

e [|f Council decides to hold an information session
in confidence, the reason for this decision is briefly
stated on the website and reported upon via the
Annual Report process.

On 16 occasions the Chief Executive Officer ordered an
allocation for time for discussions that were subject to
confidentiality under section 90A(4) of the

Local GovernmentAct 1999. These items are listed below:

The below information outlines when additional
confidentiality provisions were applied:

e 20 July 2021 Edwardstown Urban Renewal - 90(8)
planning session of a general or strategic

e 20]July 2021 Darlington - Laffers Triangle 90(8)
planning session of a general or strategic and 90 (2)
3(b) (i) and (ii)

e 31 August 2021 Unfunded projects 90 (2) 3(b) (i)
and (ii) - commercial information

e 9 November 2021 Cleanaway Waste Collection
Update 90(3)(b) () and (i) - commercial information

¢ 16 November 2021 Priorities for Annual Business
Plan 2022 - 2023 d 90(3)(b) (i) and (ii) -
commercial information

e 29 January 2022 Draft Annual Business Plan
2022 - 2023 and Long Term Financial Plan 90(3)(b)
() and (i) -commercial information

e 29 January 2022 Edwardstown Development Site
90(3)(b) (i) and (ii) -commercial information

22 March 2022 COVID-19 - Verbal Update 90(3)(a)
and (i) - personal affairs

e 29 March 2022 Draft Annual Business Plan
2022 - 2023 and Long Term Financial Plan - d 90(3)
(b)() and (ii) - commercial information

e 17 May 2022 Unfunded projects 90(3)(b)() and (ii)
- commercial information

e 17 May 2022 CoMPAS Project Update 90(3)(b) (i)
and (i) - commercial information

e 17 May 2022 Tarnham Road Rescope 90(3)(d) (i)
and (i) and (k) - commercial information

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

e 17 May 2022 SWBMX Track Update - Verbal Update
90(3)(b)()) and (ii) - commercial information

e 17 May 2022 Coastal Walkway Project - Verbal
Update d 90(3)(d)(i) and (i) and (k)
commercial information

e 31 May 2022 Review of Unfunded Initiatives 90(3)
(b)() and (ii) - commercial information

e 21 June 2022 CoMPAS Project Update 90(3)(b) (i)
and (i) - commercial information.

DECISION-MAKING AND STRUCTURE
OF COUNCIL

The Mayor and Council Members attend Council meetings
and participate in the decision-making process, providing
the direction and authority for the organisation’s

ongoing operations. While decisions are made at Council
meetings, the City of Marion also has four Committees,
which assist the Council to accomplish its objectives

and add value to the decisions of Council through the
provision of advice. From the 1 July 2021 -

30 June 2022, Council’s formal decision-making and
Committee structure comprised:

¢ General Council

e Finance, Risk and Audit Committee

¢ Review and Selection Committee

e Council Assessment Panel

¢ Asset and Sustainability Committee

* Planning and Development Committee.

All meetings are open to the public. Documentation for
each meeting (notice of meeting, agenda with reports,
attachments and minutes) are available via Council’s
Administration Building, City of Marion website and
libraries. Hard copies are also available at the

specific meeting.

COUNCIL MEETINGS

The Local Government Act 1999 sets the legislative
framework for legal and transparent decision making by
Council. Council Meetings are the the formal decision
making arena for Council Members where it is decided
what the future operational direction and commitments
of council will be. Council meetings are held on the
second and/or fourth Tuesday of the month with
special meetings called when required. Meetings are
chaired majority by our Mayor by way of formal meeting
procedures. Meetings follow an agenda, formal minutes
are taken and meetings are recorded. Agendas, minutes
and recordings are available on the City of Marion
website. It is a legislative requirement that Council
Members attend.
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RESOLUTIONS OF GENERAL COUNCIL

A ‘resolution’ is a legal decision formed by a majority vote
within a formally constituted meeting of Council. During the
2021 - 2022 financial year, 356 resolutions were made by
Council resulting from 136 corporate reports seeking

a decision.

The Community made deputations on the following topics:

 Marion Cultural Centre Plaza Plan (September 21)

* Section 270 Review — De Laine Avenue (October 21)

e Culinary Escapades Pty Ltd Lease at the Marion
Cultural Centre (October ‘21)

 Mitchell Street Parking (May 22)

 Marion Arena Proposal (June 22).

Petitions were received on the following matters:

* Vehicle Parking and Access - Mitchell Street,
Glengowrie (October 21)

* Marion Arena Proposal (June ‘22).

The following Workshops/Presentations were held in
Council meetings:

¢ Presentation - Local Government Reforms
(August 21)

* Workshop - Public submissions on the Draft Annual
Business Plan 2022 - 2023 (May 22).

REVIEW OF DECISIONS

As required by the Local Government Act 1999, the Council
has developed a procedure for the Review of Decisions,
outlining how decisions of Council or other people acting
on behalf of Council are reviewed. Council’s internal review
of a council decision policy and procedure is available from
the City of Marion website. If possible, council endeavor to
resolve any complaint or grievances in line with the policy
and procedure, without it being escalated to the formal
review process. In 2021 - 2022 council received four
formal requests to conduct an internal review of decisions
of council. The complaints related to the following:

 Oakleigh Road, Installation of Pram Ramps (completed
in2022-2023)

* De Laine Ave, Driveway Link

e Spinnaker Circuit, Public Consultation process

 (Coastal Walkway, public consultation process
(Currently on hold).

STAFF GIFTS AND BENEFITS

In response to Clause 2.21 of the Code of Conduct for
Council Employees, adopted for the purposes of Section
110 (1) of the Local Government Act 1999, Council has
adopted a Code of Expected Behaviours for staff which
outlines that staff are not to accept gifts, benefits or favours
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that may influence or be reasonably seen to influence their
decision making. All Council employees who receive a

gift or benefit are required to record it within the gifts and
benefits register which is made publicly available at the
Council Office and updated quarterly on the

City of Marion webpage.

During the 2021 - 2022 Financial year, staff received and
reported six gifts over the value of $50. The total value of
the six gifts was approximately $470. On three occasions
these gifts were shared amongst a team. A staff member
was also gifted a complimentary ticket to a Networking
Conference as the staff member was a guest speaker at
the event. The approximate value of the ticket was $440.
Further gifts were received by staff with a value below the
threshold and are still identified on the gift and

benefit register.

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

The City of Marion is committed to the principle of open,
accountable and transparent decision making while
acknowledging that, on occasions, it may be necessary

to withhold access to information in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1999.Council is accountable to the
public which is the underlying principle when administering
confidential information. The Local Government Act 1999
regulates how Council can treat this information and

only certain circumstances evoke the appropriate use of
confidential orders. During the 2021 - 2022 financial year,
Council (including committees) considered 78 reports in
confidence in accordance with the

Local Government Act 1999.

Section 90 Local Government Act 1999

When Council identifies a need to withhold access to
information from the public or ‘go into confidence’,

they also need to determine the reason and apply the
corresponding clause as outlined in section 90 of the
Local GovernmentAct 1999. On occasions, more than
one clause can apply to an item. During the 2021 - 2022
financial year, these clauses were used on 94 occasions to
create confidential orders. The large table on the following
page provides further detailed information about Council’s
use of various sections of the Act.

Section 91 Local Government Act 1999

Each time a confidential order is made, it is added to a
confidential register which includes the date and subject
of each item. The register is made available to the public
in December of each year, by way of a Council report

and attachments. This Council report is prepared for the
purpose of a rigorous review of confidential orders to be
undertaken in accordance with the Act. This includes the
review of confidential orders made at General Council and
Committee meetings. The review identifies items for full
release, part release as well as items that will be retained
in confidence and reviewed the following year. The small
table on the following page identifies the outcome of the
review undertaken in December 2021.

Section 90 Local Government Act 1999

Relevant placita of Explanation

Number of

Local Government S 90 (2) Information the times used
Act (SA) 1999 disclosure of which would;
« involve the unreasonable disclosure of information concerning the personal affairs of any person
3(@a) o 19
(living or dead)
* could reasonably be expected to confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the
. » council is conducting, or proposing to conduct, business, or to prejudice the commercial position
3(b) (i) and (i) .
of the council; and
« would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest
3(0) « information the disclosure of which would reveal a trade secret
« -commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the disclosure of which-
. - ¢ could reasonably be expected to prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied the
3(d) (i) and (ii) . B - )
information, or to confer a commercial advantage on a third party; and
 would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest
3)  matters affecting the security of the council, members or employees of the council, or council

property, or the safety of any person

« could reasonably be expected to
3(f) * prejudice the maintenance of law, including by affecting (or potentially affecting) the prevention,
detection or investigation of a criminal offence, or the right to a fair trial-

* matters that must be considered in confidence in order to ensure that the council does not breach
3(g) any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law, any duty of confidence, or other
legal obligation or duty-

3(h) ¢ legal advice
303)

« information relating to actual litigation, or litigation that the council or council committee believes
on reasonable grounds will take place, involving the council or an employee of the council

 would divulge information provided on a confidential basis by or to a Minister of the Crown, or
another public authority or official (not being an employee of the council, or a person engaged by

30) ® and ) the council); and
 would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest;-
3 « tenders for the supply of goods, the provision of services or the carrying out of works.

« relating to a proposal to prepare or amend a designated
3(m) « instrument under Part 5 Division 2 of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016
before the draft instrument or amendment is released for public consultation under that Act

« information relevant to the review of a determination of a council under the Freedom of Information
Act 1991 (SA)

3(0) « information relating to a proposed award recipient before the presentation of the award.

3(n)

Section 91 Local Government Act 1999

Relevant placita of
Local Government
Act (SA) 1999

. Number of
Explanation s
times used

e orders made in 2021 — 2022 under section 91(7) 78

« orders made under section 91(7) that expired, ceased to apply or were revoked during the

91(7) financial year 14

« orders made under section 91(7) that remained operative at the end of the financial year (not
including orders made before 15 November 2010).
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COUNCIL COMMITTEES

The Local Government Act 1999 allows the Council to
form Committees to assist the decision making of Council.
These committees do not make formal decisions as they
are established to oversee and provide advice to assist
the Council in the performance of its core functions.

The City of Marion has four Committees all of which have a
specific purpose. The committees are made up of Council
Members, Independent Members and Council staff. Each
committee convenes at various intervals throughout each
year to coincide with key decisions that need to be made
by Council.

COMMITTEE SITTING FEES

Sitting fees are set per session and range from $1,000
to $1,200 for Independent Members and nil for
Council Members.

Council Members presiding over Committee meetings
receive a 25 per cent loading above their regular annual
allowance during their time on that committee (Council
Assessment Panel has different allowance).

REVIEW AND SELECTION COMMITTEE -
FUNCTION

The Review and Selection Committee was established for
the purpose of:

e CEO Employment Agreement and Performance Review

¢ Vacancy of the Office of the Chief Executive Officer

¢ Process to source appointment of expert members to
Section 41 Committees

¢ Process to source appointment of expert members for
the Council Assessment Panel (CAP)

¢ Review Committee’s Performance

¢ Reviewing, monitoring and recommending to Council
relevant strategies regarding the organisation’s
culture and performance associated with the conduct
of Council Members, employees and volunteers

¢ Performance associated with the conduct of Council
Members, employees and volunteers

¢ Monitor the organisations direction regarding
the efficient and effective delivery of strategic
and operational

e Human resource functions

e Ensure the organisation has appropriate employee
well-being strategies.

The Review and Selection Committee met on three
occasions during the 2021 - 2022 financial year.
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FINANCE, RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE -
FUNCTION

The Finance Risk and Audit Committee was established for
the purpose of:

e External audit

* Internal audit and service reviews

e Financial Reporting and Prudential Requirements

* Internal controls and risk management.

The Finance and Audit Committee met on five occasions
during the 2021 - 2022 financial year. Sitting fees per
meeting are Chairperson $1,200 and Independent
Members $1,000.

ASSET AND SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITTEE - FUNCTION

The Asset and Sustainability Committee was established
for the purpose of:

* Advising Council on the development, management
and monitoring of council’s strategic management of
council assets and Asset Management Plans

* Aligning council’s provision and management of
assets and infrastructure to its long-term
strategic objectives

e Establishing and monitoring community levels of
service to justify assets and infrastructure

e Monitoring the implementation of environmental
sustainability initiatives and strategies, to be a
sustainable organisation and support the community
to reduce its impact on the environment.

The Asset and Sustainability Committee met on four
occasions during the 2021 - 2022 financial year.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE - FUNCTION

The Planning and Development Committee was
established for the purpose of:

 Advising Council on matters relating to the
development and monitoring of the following areas:

 Urban planning, development and renewal

* City growth, economic development and sustainability

* New project concepts and innovative solutions

e Monitoring and review of new/emerging issues and
trends through tools such as environmental scans

* Developing, reviewing and recommending to Council
any policy relating to planning and developments.

The Planning and Development Committee met on five
occasions during the 2021 - 2022 financial year.

COUNCIL ASSESSMENT
PANEL - FUNCTION

The Council Assessment Panel (CAP) has a total of five
members. Four members are independent experts in the
planning, development or architectural field, whilst one
member is an Elected Member appointed by Council.

The CAP considers a wide range of development
applications, ensuring that new development proposals
are consistent with the Council’s Development Plan or
the Planning and Design Code. The role of the CAP is to
make decisions to either approve or refuse certain types
of development applications.

The Panel is presented with a report on every application
to be considered. Each report assesses the proposal
against the provisions of the Development Plan or
Planning and Design Code and includes documentation
from the applicant (or their consultant) and copies of
representations lodged in respect to the application
being considered.

Members of the CAP are required to strictly adhere to the
State Government’s Code of Conduct.

The Panel met on 11 occasions during the financial year
and considered a total of 25 applications.

The Presiding Member received $500 per meeting;
Independent Members $400 per meeting; and Council
Members $200 per meeting.
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INDEPENDENT MEMBER ATTENDANCE
AT MEETINGS

The Review and Selection, Planning and Development and
Asset and Sustainability committees do not have external
members appointed. The following table identifies
external members appointed to a Committee and their
attendance at meetings throughout the financial year.

Finance,

Name of Committee Member Risk and Council
(including special meetings) Audit s Snt
8 sp 8 (FRAC) Panel CAP)
14 meetings
Total number of meetings 6) scheduled 11
meetings held
Terry Mosel
(Chair - CAP July ‘21-June 22) 10/11
Benjamin Russ **
(CAP July ‘21-June 22) 1/11
Bryn Adams
(CAPJuly 21-June 22) 9/11
Yvonne Svensson
(CAPJuly ‘21-June 22) dayi
Michael Davis
(CAP July ‘21-June 22) L
Raelene Telfer
(CAPJuly 21-June 22) 10/11
Kendra Clancy **
(CAP July 21-June 22) /11
Emma Hinchey 6/6
(FRAC July ‘21-June 22)
Dawfj Papa ‘ 6/6
(FRAC July ‘21-June 22)
Nicole Rantanen 6/6
(FRAC July “21-June 22)

** Stand in Member
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DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

The Development Services Unit comprises Planning,
Building, Compliance and Administration support teams.

Each team undertakes functions in accordance with the
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 as
well as the Development Act 1993. Functions include
(but are not limited to) assessment, customer service,
education and assistance.

ACHIEVEMENTS 2021 - 2022
FINANCIAL YEAR

The total value of applications receiving approval in the
2021 - 2022 financial year equated to approximately
$240.9 m, of which $230.5m was approved under the
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 and
$10.4 m under the Development Act 1993.

The two largest approvals were fora $13m upgrade to

sporting facilities and classrooms at Sacred Heart College,

and a $5m development for alterations and additions,
including a pre-school at Sunrise Christian School.

Atotal of 441 applications were approved for new
dwellings and 157 for dwelling additions, along with
734 approvals for class 10 structures (sheds, pool,
verandahs etc).

In relation to non-residential development the following
applications received approval; seven offices, one
workshop, five warehouses, nine civic buildings and 38
shops or additions.

There were 1,359 development approvals granted under
the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016
and an additional 33 granted under the Development
Act 1993, totaling 1,392 development approvals. This

is less than previous years as expected due to regulation
changes, of particular note is that demolition of the
entirety of a building does not require

development approval.

NUMBER OF BUILDING CONSENTS AND
VALUES[1]*

~ o o
S 3 S
N N N
b
© 0 o
- - -
1) 1=} =)
~ N ~

2020 - 2021
2021 - 2022

1789 1771 1734 1636 1758 1392
$180.5m $221m  $227m  $195.7m $286.7m  $240.9m

*These figures include development approvals granted by Council or
private certification only. They do not include developments such as land
divisions, tree applications or developments that do not require building
rules consents. They do not reflect applications refused by Council or
granted approval by the State Commission Assessment Panel.
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CODE AMENDMENTS

(previously referred to as DEVELOPMENT PLAN
AMENDMENTS under the Development Act)

Council has initiated four Code Amendments:

URBAN CORRIDOR - MARION ROAD

On 14 September 2021 Council endorsed the ‘Urban
Corridor Marion Road - Code Amendment - Proposal to
Initiate’ which sought to investigate an appropriate zone
and policy changes. The aim was to enable the creation
of an Urban Corridor type zone (similar to that proposed
in the Housing Diversity DPA) along relevant sections of
Marion Road. The document was subsequently forwarded
to the Minister for Planning for consideration.

At its General Meeting of 14 December 2021, Council
resolved to request that the Minister for Planning place
the Proposal to Initiate for the Urban Corridor - Marion
Road Code Amendment, ‘on hold’, whilst Council
undertook further analysis. On 16 December 2021 the
Department advised that the Proposal to Initiate would be
placed on hold until further advised by Council.

Council undertook further analysis and concluded that the
Urban Corridor Zone was no longer an appropriate zone
for Marion Road. Council considered the following:

e existing land use and the likelihood for development

e traffic volumes and the impact as a result of
an increase.

An amendment of the is proposed for the document
whereby only parts of the residential zoning would be
rezoned allowing for greater flexibility with Lot sizes and
mixed use if there is demand

SOUTHERN SUBURBS RESIDENTIAL POLICY

On 14 September 2021 Council endorsed the ‘Southern
Suburbs Residential Policy - Code Amendment’ - Proposal
to Initiate’ and subsequently forwarded the document

to the Minister for Planning for consideration. On 11
February 2022 the Minister approved the Proposal to
Initiate allowing Council to undertake a Code
Amendment process.

Councils Aim is for the rezoned Southern Neighbourhood
Zone to be transitioned to the Hills Neighbourhood

Zone and that one set of slope related policies are used
throughout the zone. This will provide opportunities

for development to occur in appropriate locations,
particularly on gentle sloping sites. The Code Amendment
document is being prepared for Community

consultation purposes.

LAND MANAGEMENT

CENTRE ZONES

The Code Amendment seeks to address a variety of
outstanding matters / irregularities associated with a
few small-scale shopping centre sites where the spatial
location and / or policy does not effectively support the
land use or where there is potential to improve future
site viability.

At the 24 May 2022 General Council Meeting, Council
endorsed the ‘Proposal to Initiate’ documentation for the
Code Amendment and subsequently forwarded it to the
Minister for Planning for consideration/approval.

MORPHETTVILLE/GLENGOWRIE
RESIDENTIAL STABLES

The former Residential Racecourse Zone, on the southern
side of Bray Street in Morphettville and western side of
Morphett Road in Glengowrie, provided the opportunity for
stabling of horses and residing on the same property.

The SA Jockey Club (SAJC) proposes to construct additional
stables within the racecourse property (corner of Bray
Street and Morphett Road). It is anticipated that many

of the stable owners on the southern side of Bray Street
and western side of Morphett Road may relocate into
these new stables. However, for the sale of their land and
relocation to the new stables to be more financially viable,
a number of the stable owners have requested that the
area be rezoned to an exclusively residential-type zone,
allowing residential development at higher densities to

be constructed.

At the 24 August 2021 General Council Meeting Council
endorsed the ‘Proposal to Initiate’ documentation for the
Code Amendment and subsequently forwarded it to the
Minister for Planning for consideration. On

25 October 2021 the Minister approved the Proposal

to Initiate.

Following further analysis of the proposed Code
Amendment, on 22 March 2022, Council resolved to
increase the area to be rezoned to allow potential for a
more consistent and integrated built form and streetscape
within the adjoining area and particularly along the
western end of Bray Street.

The Minister's approval has been sought for the proposed
expansion to the area affected by the proposed re-zoning.
After the creation of the residential allotment, the balance
of the reserve will revert to community land.
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PREPARATION OR FINALISATION OF
ANY MANAGEMENT PLANS FOR
COMMUNITY LAND

Council has 10 General Community Land Management
Plans which cover Operating Assets, Commercial Assets,
Community Facilities, Sporting Facilities and

Council Reserves. Council adopted an individual
Community Land Management Plan on 28 June 2022 for
the Marion Arena at 262A Sturt Road Marion. At the same
meeting Council also endorsed the amendment to the
Community Land Management Plan 6 — Principal Sporting
or Recreational Facilities by removing the proposed
Marion Arena site from this management plan.

Council revoked the Community Land classification

over the whole of the land in Certificate of Title Volume
3776 Folio 21 which is a portion of the Kenton Avenue
Reserve in Oaklands Park. This revocation will allow a
land division to be completed and a portion of the reserve
to be transferred to Westminster School. The balance of
the reserve will have its Community Land classification
restored following completion of the land division

and transfer. It is intended that the General Community
Land Management Plans will be reviewed and updated in
the course of the 2022 - 2023 financial year.

REGIONAL SUBSIDIARIES

Council has the ability to join one or more councils to
establish a regional subsidiary to provide a specified
service or to manage and administer property or activities
on behalf of the constituent councils.

SOUTHERN REGION WASTE
RESOURCE AUTHORITY

The Southern Region Waste Resource Authority (SRWRA)
is a section 43 Regional Subsidiary of the Cities of Marion,
Holdfast Bay and Onkaparinga. SRWRA is responsible
for providing and operating waste management services
on behalf of the constituent councils and ensuring that
a long-term Waste Management Strategy exists in the
southern region of Adelaide. SRWRA is managed by a
board of 11 people, six Members and four

Deputy Members with the 11" being an independent
expert in business or waste management. The board is
chaired by the Independent Member whom only has a
casting vote. The equitable interest of the constituent
councils in the authority is agreed as follows:

Council Total %
City of Marion 30
City of Holdfast Bay 15
City of Onkaparinga 55
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GOVERNANCE

The Local Government Act 1999 provides the legislative
framework for legal and transparent decision making. The
term ‘governance’ incorporates practices and procedures
that set the benchmark for informed decision-making and
the way we conduct council business.

The reporting obligations under the Local Government
Act 1999 are a major part of the Governance function at
council. We are required to keep several registers which
are a collation of information that is to be made available
to the public. A list of registers is below and full registers
can be viewed either via the City of Marion website or, in
accordance with the Fees and Charges schedule, some
registers can also be provided in hard copy from
Customer Service.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
1999 - REGISTERS

 Register of Interests — Council Members

e Register of allowances and benefits —
Council Members

 Register of salaries and benefits - Employees
 Register of gifts and benefits — Employees
 Register of Community Land

 Register of Public Roads

* Register of by-laws.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1999 - CODES

¢ Code of Conduct — Council members

* Code of Conduct — Employees

¢ Code of Practice - Investigating Complaints

e Access to meetings and documents — code of practice

* Procedures at meetings — code of practice (adopted
by Council for Council Members)

 Local Government (Procedures at Meetings)
Regulations 2013.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The South Australian Freedom of Information Act
1991(FOI Act) gives opportunity for the public to access
documents held by council, subject to restrictions as
outlined in the FOI Act. These legislative requirements
provide further transparency and therefore accountability
for our management of various records.
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The City of Marion website provides a statement and
information regarding the process to follow when
requesting such documentation. There are fees and
charges associated with submitting and consequently
having your FOIl application processed. Each year the fees
and charges are updated in accordance with consumer
price indexation as outlined in the Government Gazette.
In some cases, the cost can be large, therefore prior to
submitting an application it is important to check whether
the information is already publicly available via an
alternative means.

Council is required to publish statistical information in
our Annual Report each financial year to summarise the
number times that documents have been made publicly
available via the FOI process.

Number of applications received 15

Still in progress as of 30 June 2022

(of the 15 received) 3
How were these applications treated

Withdrawn by applicant 3
Determined by council 12
How council released the documents

Full release of documents 3
Partial release of documents 8
No documents found 1
Refused released of documents 0
Internal review (Decision confirmed) 0

SENIOR EXECUTIVE
OFFICER INFORMATION

The City of Marion had three General Managers in
addition to a Chief Executive Officer throughout the
2021 — 2022 financial year. The salary packages
included 10 per cent superannuation and the option
for the use of a motor vehicle which allowed for private
use within South Australia on a salary sacrifice basis.
Available benefits for each General Manager include the
reimbursement of telephone expenses and the payment
of memberships to professional bodies. No additional
bonuses were payable.

Position Female Male e
Range
Chief Executive Officer 1 $298,000
$229,167 -
General Managers 1 2 $250,000

PROCUREMENT
NATIONAL COMPETITION POLICY

The National Competition Policy (NCP) supports economic
reform from practices that restrain Australian markets

and industries. This policy identifies various principles

to encourage competitive markets that would enhance
national productivity for the benefit of the community
whilst eliminating any unfair advantages.

In relation to Government activities, it specifies that
Government should not enjoy any competitive advantage
simply as a result of their public ownership. By virtue

of clause 7, of the NCP Principles Agreement, local
government is also bound.

The City of Marion is required to report any activities
undertaken in the financial year in relation to competitive
neutrality principles such as:

e The commencement or cessation of significant
business activities

e Any reviews or reformed by-laws that restrict
competition, including proposals for new by-laws

» Complaints received alleging a breach or breaches of
the NCP or unfairly competitive practices

e Structural reform of public monopolies.

Compliance with the NCP is reflected within the principles
of Council’s Procurement and Contract Management Policy
which seeks to:

* Obtain value in the expenditure of public money
* Providing for ethical and fair treatment of participants

 Ensuring probity, accountability and transparency in
procurement operations.

Council has not commenced or ceased any significant
business activities controlled by Council during the
reporting period.

COMPETITIVE TENDERING

The City of Marion provides open and effective
competition by providing contractors with fair and
reasonable access to opportunities to do business with
council. In procuring goods, services and construction
works, the City of Marion maximises value for money
at an acceptable level of risk to support the delivery of
infrastructure, facilities and services which benefit

the community.

Public tendering is required for contracts valued at more
than $100,000. During the financial year, the City of
Marion undertook 32 open market tenders to support the
delivery of goods, services and works for the City of Marion
and its residents.
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WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY

The safety of our people and the protection of members
of the public is a key priority, which is reflected in the
City of Marion Values of “With the community and safety
at the forefront of everything we do, we value respect,
achievement, integrity and innovation.”

The Health Safety and Environment Plan 2019 - 2023
outlines a vision; ‘We can all make a difference towards
achieving zero harm, to people and the environment’.

The Plan’s commitments focus on further developing our
leadership styles, organisational culture and WHS systems
through HSE Leadership, Hazard Management, Incident
Management and Continual Improvement.

The KPIis to reduce the Lost Time Injury Frequency

Rate (LTIFR) by 10 per cent against the previous year.
Council’s LTIFR outlined in blue in the table below, using
data sourced from the Local Government Association
Workers” Compensation Scheme (LGAWCS) Claim Analysis
Portal, can be measured and monitored against our

local government sector counterparts being the Group A
Councils (GAC[1]). The City of Marion recorded an LTIFR

of 7.4 in 2021 - 2022 which represents a 63 per cent
decrease over 2020 - 2021 and exceeded the KPI of 10
per cent reduction on the LTIFR from the previous year.
This demonstrates council’s commitment to putting the
community and safety at the forefront of everything we do.

LTIFR COMPARED AGAINST GROUP
A COUNCILS

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate Comparison

35.0

[l city of Marion LTIFR [ Group A Council LTIFR Average
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE

The City of Marion had 387 full-time equivalent staff as at
30 June 2022. The following people initiatives/programs
were delivered:

EMPLOYMENT PATHWAYS INITIATIVES

Marion Council’s Gap Year Program for Year 12 school
leavers provides opportunities for youth in

City of Marion. It is an initiative designed to provide
unique, extended, and valuable work experience to
students from local secondary schools. Recruited to work
in Council, Year 12 school leavers are provided a variety
of work experience over a year of paid employment, in
both the administrative and outside workforces doing real
work and contributing to community outcomes and.

By the end of 2022 eleven young people will have
successfully completed the GAP Year Program since the
program was initiated in 2017. Feedback from GAP Year
Program participants overwhelmingly indicates that the
program has provided multiple opportunities to develop
specific skills, gain a better understanding of business
disciplines and functions and develop self-confidence in
a professional setting.

Three participants have been successful in gaining
employment at the City of Marion. Endorsement from
Council was received to continue with the program until
the end of 2023.

EMPLOYEE INTERSTATE TRAVEL

Travel and

Position Reason ) Gifts
accomodation
Attend
Fleet Manager conference $285 $0
(1/3 share)
Unit Manager Attend
Open Space conference $699 $0
General Manager Attend
Corporate Services  conference $a71 $0

.

ATV
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DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION
TRAINEESHIP PROGRAM

This program is in the 4" year of implementation and
won a Local Government Professionals Excellence Award
in 2021. The Program is an initiative developed to foster
a diverse, inclusive, and multi-skilled workforce. Each
participant undertakes a certificate qualification that is
completed during their 12-month placement with the
City of Marion, thus providing learning and employment
pathway opportunities for young people from

diverse backgrounds.

The Diversity and Inclusion Traineeship Program targets
three key areas:

 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander;
e Culturally and Linguistically Diverse; and
e Disability.

Each trainee gains valuable work experience, and
confidence, they contribute to Council projects, priorities,
and outcomes, and develop key transferable skills in a
supported environment. The success of the program is
evident in our trainees successfully gaining employment
with a variety of organisations following the completion of
their traineeships.

GRADUATE PROGRAM

This is an organic program targeted at soon to be and
recent university graduates. The objectives of the program
are to attract innovative skilled potential leaders into
the organization and to develop the perception among
graduates that the City of Marion is a highly viable
employment option. The program will include Student
placements of 150 hours (10-12 weeks part-time) as
part of a student’s final year of study.

Feedback from students having undertaken recent
placements include their amazement at the variety of
professional work undertaken at City of Marion and the
potential opportunities available to graduates within
Local Government. Having a successful Graduate
Program will help build City of Marion’s reputation as an
employer of choice with young highly skilled talent.

\

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Council continues to embrace strategies to foster an
inclusive and safe workplace for employees and volunteers
where all persons are welcomed, valued, and have
opportunities to grow and develop in their career

at Council.

DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN
(DAIP)

The DAIP demonstrates how the City of Marion promotes
the rights of people living with a disability, working towards
ensuring all people enjoy the same access and inclusion
experience within our community. Thirty-three DAIP actions
were successfully delivered during 2021 - 2022.

VOLUNTEER PROGRAM

Our volunteer program provides a diverse group of
volunteers with opportunities to realise a positive
contribution to our community. During 2021 - 2022 our
City of Marion volunteers have contributed an impressive
38,848 hours of their time to the community, a remarkable
56 per cent increase from the previous year. Urban Warriors
and Open Spaces are two new programs. A regular intake
of new volunteers over the year has resulted in 364
passionate and committed people volunteering their time
to support the City of Marion community. The results from
the Annual Volunteer Survey are highly encouraging:

¢ 90.5 per cent of volunteers agree they were satisfied
with their volunteer role and experience

e 98.5 per cent of volunteers believing their
contributions make a difference

e 97.2 per cent feeling happier after volunteering

e 85 per cent are satisfied for the coordination, support

and communication provided by the City of Marion
Volunteer Coordinator.

The City of Marion continues to learn to ensure the
Volunteer Program continues to develop and have a
positive impact on those participating in the program and

e
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LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Our new Leadership offering is the Marion Accelerate
Program (MAP), launched in February 2022 in partnership
with Uni SA. This program provides relevant, contemporary
and research based content for the 12 participants to apply
what they learn in the workplace and credit toward further
study pathways. We have continued our ‘Emerging Leader
in the Field’ program in Operations. Also, 13 employees
are enrolled in accredited leadership and project
management programs in Open Space and Civil. Our Local
Government Management Challenge Team, the ‘Super
Marion Bros’, competed in May 2022 against 11 councils
and placed second. The Corporate training program has
also included a focus on Digital Literacy.

RECONCILIATION ACTION PLAN

The City of Marion continues to deliver the 2019 - 2023
Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP). The RAP is a plan that
includes significant, tangible and meaningful actions and
activities that an organisation and community can achieve
together to advance reconciliation. The City of Marion

has been a committed RAP organisation since becoming
one of the first South Australian Councils to adopt a RAP

in 2013. We are proud to have delivered 71 RAP actions
during 2021 - 2022. Highlights from the 2021 - 2022 RAP
implementation include:

* Delivery of a booked out National Reconciliation Week
and National Aboriginal and Islanders Day Observance
Committee (NAIDOC) Week program of
community events

¢ Continued delivery of our Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Traineeship program. Our current candidate
is undertaking a Certificate Il in Horticulture within the
City of Marion

 Coordination of reconciliation communications and
RAP branding

 Strong relationship between City of Marion and
First Nations business operator at the
Living Kaurna Cultural Centre

¢ Employee engagement with State Government

 Aboriginal Heritage and Legislative Awareness sessions.

T
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COMMUNITY SAFETY

LOCAL NUISANCE AND LITTER CONTROL

The provisions of the Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act
2016 (SA) came into operation on 1 July 2017.

The Act regulates council’s management of nuisance and
litter related complaints. In addition, council is required
to publish various details for the relevant financial year of
such complaints received.

The City of Marion is required to include various details of
complaints received by the community that is managed
by legislation. This ensures consistency across council
boundaries in dealing with nuisance and litter control.

During the 2021 - 2022 financial year the City of Marion
received 1,046 local nuisance complaints, which is an
44 per cent increase on the previous financial year being
723 complaints.

The nature of the complaints are outline in the below
table as per the reporting requirements of section 5 of
the Local Nuisance and Litter Control Regulations.

Complaints received by the council are outlined in the
table below:
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Smoke 156 0 0 0 0 0
Noise 155 1 0 0 0 11
Odour 76 0 0 0 0 0
Animal 53 0 0 1 0 0
Dust 73 0 0 0 0 0
Unsightly 169 0 0 6 0 0
Littering 364 6 1 0 0 0
Totals 1,046 7 1 7 0 11
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COUNCIL’S BY-LAWS

By-laws are local laws that a Council can create to enable
the good rule and government of the local community,
and they set out what can and can’t be done in a range of
situations and under a range of circumstances.

Council enforces the by-laws through a range of measures
including advising breaches of the by-laws must be
ceased and issuing expiation notices.

Council’s register of By-Laws can be found via the City of
Marion website.

Council investigated 138 complaints about the by-laws.
The Nature of complaints received are displayed below:

Type of complaint/investigation Number

Temporary signs and banners 34
Sale of produce 3
Activities on council land 21
Exceeding number of dogs 3
Exceeding number of cats 24
Miniskip and container permits 20
Complaints on council land 33
Total 138

Council’'s Authorised Officers issued three expiations for
breaches under the by-laws as per the table below:

Expiation type Number

Keep more than permitted dog 1
Comply with removal notice 2
Total 3

Council can also receive applications from residents
requesting to keep additional dogs and cats the number
of applications that we assessed is reflected in the

table below:

Application type Number

Additional dog 49
Additional cat 9
Total 58

Page 40

poth humans and animals safe and the data is displayed

.. Barking dog reports

OUR BY-LAWS ARE ALSO REVIEWED
AND IMPROVED

The below by-laws came into operation on

27 December 2021 and the significant changes of the cat
curfew and permission to keep roosters and peacocks will
become enforceable on 1 January 2023 giving council
time to implement an education program.

e Permits and Penalties By-law No. 1

¢ Moveable Signs By-law No. 2

e |ocal Government Land By-law No. 3
¢ Dogs By-law No. 4

¢ Roads By-law No. 5

¢ (ats By-law No. 6

¢ Animal Management By-law No. 7.

The Animal Management By-law is a new by-law to
prevent and manage nuisance caused by animals or
birds. Under the by-law, a rooster or peacock will be
prohibited without a permit. The Cats By-law provides
that the owner or person responsible for the control of a
cat must ensure that the cat is confined at all times to the
premises occupied by that person between the hours of
8pm and 7am daily.

COMMUNITY SAFETY ACTIVITY

Our Community Safety Inspectors are authorised under
other legislation such as the Local Government Act 1999,
Dog and Cat Management Act 1995 and the Australian
Road Rules (among others) to enforce a broad range of
matters within the City of Marion.

In 2021 - 2022, in addition to the 1,046 local nuisance
events, the inspectors handled 6,712 customer events
and issued 4,470 expiations to assist in keeping our
community safe.

The City of Marion encourages responsible dog
ownership. There are many occasions where our
Community Safety Inspectors have intervened to keep

Case type » Number

A broad range of activities and use of our facilities, keep
our Community Safety Inspectors busy. City of Marion’s
Top 10 categories for customer events in 2021 - 2022
are displayed in the table below:

Case type Number

Parking complaints 1,454
Parking appeals 797
Overhanging vegetation 707
Abandoned vehicles 412
Dogs wandering 392
Littering 364
Dogs not registering 176
Unsightly properties 169
Smoke complaints 156
Noise complaints 155
EXPIATIONS

As a result of the Community Safety Activity above, the
following expiations were issued in accordance with Local
GovernmentAct 1999, Dog and Cat Management Act
1995 and the Australian Road Rules (among others) and
Council’s By-Laws.

Total Expiations issued during 2021 - 2022
Total number of expiation notices Original penalty amount
7,690 $767,500

A breakdown of categories for expiations are displayed in
the table below:

Total
Expiation category nur:ber Number
Local nuisance 9 $5,340
Fire prevention 14 $6,622
Dogs 241 $54,900
Parking 7,420 $699,500
Local government 6 $1,125
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148
Dogs wandering at large 392

Dog harrassments on both human

and animal =

Dog attacks on human and animal
Dog not registered 176
Total

i
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

The City of Marion has an Asset Management vision:

‘To maintain the City of Marion’s assets to agreed
levels of service which maximise community value
throughout an asset’s life.

Our assets enable the provision of services to the
community and businesses for current and future
generations. Assets play a vital role in the local economy
and on residents’ quality of life.

A significant portion of Council’s annual spend is devoted
to the operation, maintenance and renewal of public
assets which deliver safe and sustainable services to

the community. We are delivering eight 10-year Asset
Management Plans which are funded through the

Long Term Financial Plan.

Council will continue to optimise our spending on these
through better asset management to deliver current
service levels in the most affordable and efficient way.

Council recognises that climate change is likely to affect
asset life and functionality. We are exploring ways to build
asset resilience in response to climate impacts

RISK

The City of Marion is committed to the achievement

of its strategic objectives and ‘improving our residents
quality of life; continuously, smartly and efficiently’. It
acknowledges that it must take on board and accept risk
to gain benefit to improve our quality of life across the
city. To manage this risk, a suite of documents have been
developed, are maintained and implemented.

These include:

e Risk Management Policy
¢ Risk Management Framework
e Strategic and Corporate Risk Register.

These documents, in conjunction with our risk
management program, provide assurance that
City of Marion are able to manage corporate risk
effectively in accordance with 1ISO31000:2018
‘Risk Management - Guidelines’.

The Risk Registers as listed above, are reviewed on a
quarterly basis whereby any current risks rated as high
have additional scrutiny placed on them, involving
actions to mitigate the risk.

The Risk Unit continued to manage the City of Marion’s
Business continuity plan throughout 2021 - 2022 as
Council responded to and managed the impacts of
Covid-19 on business operations and the community.

Overall performance of the City of Marion’s risk ensures
that Council is able to achieve its strategic goals.

WE OWN AND MANAGE OVER $1 BILLION OF ASSETS

(.

®

Artworks, Culture Buildings and
and Heritage Structures

O

Fleet, Plant and
Equipment

Coastal Walkway
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Open Space Stormwater

Water Treatment and Transport
Resources
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FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

BRIEF OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The City of Marion maintained its strong financial performance during the 2021 - 2022 financial year, providing a
sound financial basis to support Council’s long-term objectives identified in the Strategic Plan. Below is a snapshot of
Council’s financial performance for 2021 - 2022.

Council maintained its strong commitment to minimise the financial rate burden while continuing to deliver significant
Infrastructure projects. To this end the average rates increase was held to an average of 1% in 2021 - 2022 on the
back of a 0% increase in average rates for the 2020 - 2021 financial year.

Council achieved an operating surplus of $0.542m. Maintaining an operating surplus is critical to ensuring all core
services are delivered along with maintaining the $1.2b of community facilities, infrastructure and open space assets
under Council’s control in accordance with our Asset Management Plans. This positive result is also necessary to ensure
Council’s ability to fund major projects identified in the Long Term Financial Plan. The following information highlights
key aspects of the full Financial Statements contained further in the Annual Report:

* achieved an operating surplus of $0.542m while holding the average rates to a 1% increase in
2021-2022
e attracted $11.742m in grant funding to support Council’s operating activities

e attracted an additional $6.259m in grant funding largely linked to new and upgraded community infrastructure
and sporting facilities

e $102.422m in operating revenue with 80% coming from rates down from 82% in 2020 - 2021
e $101.880m operating expenditure (see diagram below).

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Function Expenses

Development
e Urban Development 2L
Environment

5101.88 ® Environmental Sustainability SATT AT

million Infrastructure $66.563m
e Public Infrastructure and Places :
Community
e Culture and Recreations $13.942m
e Community and Capacity Building $5.427m
® Health and Community Care $7.157m
Urban Development Total $101.880m

Environmental Sustainability
Public Infrastructure and Places
Culture and recreation
Community Capacity Building
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The City of Marion maintains a strong financial position,
providing a sound basis to support Councils long-term
objectives identified in the Strategic Plan. The following
information highlights articulating income and expense
streams with ratios provided as a mechanism to measure
Council’s alignment with budget targets.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Statement of Comprehensive Income details Council’s
revenue and expenses for the reporting period and
reveals an operating surplus (before capital revenues

and contributed assets) of $0.542m for 2021 - 2022
compared to an operating surplus of $0.256m for

2020 -2021.

OPERATING INCOME

Total Operating income for 2021 — 2022 was
$102.422m compared to $97.324m in 2020 - 2021.
The increase of $5.098m primarily results from an
increase in attracted grant revenue of $1.923m in
addition to the increase in rate revenue of $1.700m.
The rate revenue increase relates equitably to the 1%
underlying growth in ratable properties and the average
rate increase of 1% (well below underlying CPI). Council’s
income also reflects a net gain from its share in the
regional subsidiary SRWRA of $0.882m for
2021-2022.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total Operating expenses for 2021 - 2022 were
$101.880m compared to $97.068m in 2020 - 2021.

The increase in costs of $4.812m (4.95%) primarily
relates to an increase of $2.609min

‘Materials Contracts and Other” expenses due largely to
Council’s contribution to infrastructure development,
investment in streetscapes projects, the completion

of the Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility and
Southern Soccer Facility. Council also incurred increased
costs in relation to waste management charges and levies
of $0.719m and further invested in digital
transformation projects.

Additionally, employee costs increased $1.896m in
2021 -2022. This increase primarily relates to increases
stemming from Enterprise Agreements $0.765m,
additional Council endorsed positions to support
operations of $0.814m and an increase to fully grant
funded positions of $0.284m. Council Incurred total
expenditure by way of credit cards in 2021-2022

of $0.241m.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022

CAPITAL REVENUES AND
CONTRIBUTED ASSETS

The Statement of Comprehensive Income also reports
$6.259m for ‘Amounts Received Specifically for New or
Upgraded Assets’. This income relates primarily to the
recognition of remaining State and Commonwealth grant
funding components for three of Council’s multi-year
major projects — Mitchell Park Sports and Community
Centre, Sam Willoughby International BMX Facility and
the Southern Soccer Facility on Majors road completed
during the 2021 - 2022 year. This income also reflects
additional Local Roads and Community Infrastructure
Grant funding of $1.24m.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Statement of Financial Position provides details of

Council’s assets, liabilities and equity as at 30 June 2022.

The majority of Council’s assets relate to community
property and infrastructure assets (roads, paths,
drainage, etc.).

Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment
(IPP&E)

Council’s IPP&E increased by $68.529m (6.06%)
compared to 2020 - 2021 with the majority of the
movement relating to a net revaluation increase for
Infrastructure assets of $37.042m, Physical Assets
Received Free of Charge (including land, roads, drainage
and footpaths) of $1.396m and other movements in all
classes after depreciation of $30.091m.

The table below identifies the key contributors to the
movement in Council’s non-current assets which can
mainly be attributed to revaluations of its
Infrastructure assets.

2022 2021 Increase

$°000 $’000 $’000
Infrastructure 641,314 601,901 39,413
Buildings 130,923 111,825 19,098
Other 425,778 415,760 10,018

Monitoring financial performance and sustainability.

The City of Marion utilises a suite of key financial
performance indicators to monitor performance and
financial sustainability. The key performance indicator
results for 2021 - 2022 are summarised below.
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OPERATING SURPLUS RATIO

This ratio expresses the operating surplus/(deficit) as a
percentage of total operating revenue. Council has set
a target for this ratio of between 0 and 10% on average
over any consecutive five year period.

2021 - 2022 2020 - 2021 2019-2020
0.5% 0.3% 6.8%

The Operating Surplus Ratio remains within Council’s
target and is similar to last financial year. While there has
been a 4.95% increase in total operating costs 2.7%

of this related to materials and contracts expenditure
resulting from increased State and Commonwealth grant
funding. Remaining additional costs were supplemented
by the modest increase in rate revenue.

The average Operating Surplus Ratio over the last

five financial years is 6.46%. With council’s focus on
maintaining a balanced or better cash funding position it
is necessary that an operating surplus sufficient to support
Council’s capital expenditure requirements is achieved.

RATE REVENUE RATIO

This ratio expresses rate revenue as a percentage of
operating revenue. Although this ratio is not a prescribed
measure required by the ‘Model Set of Accounts’ itis a
valuable indicator as it highlights the councils reliance
on rates as a revenue source and the need for council to
seek alternative sources of income®.

Councils reliance on rates has decreased by 2% in
2021 -2022. This is largely due to the receipt and
recognition of operating grant revenues up 19.5%
compared to 2020 - 2021.

2022 2021 2020
Rate revenue ratio 80% 82% 85%
WORKING CAPITAL RATIO

This ratio focuses on the liquidity position of Council

and assesses Council’s ability to meet current financial
commitments. This ratio needs to be adjusted for
restricted assets (eg- unspent specific tied grants that
would need to be excluded from Council’s current assets
as Council would be restricted from using this cash to
meet short term liabilities). It is calculated by dividing
current assets (less restricted assets) by current liabilities
(less liabilities associated with restricted assets). Council’s
target for this ratio is between 1.0 and 1.1°.
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The utilisation of Council’s cash, quarantined in reserves
for planned projects will impact on this ratio in
future periods.

2022 2021 2020
Working capital ratio 2.0 3.2 2.2

ASSET RENEWAL FUNDING RATIO

Net asset renewal expenditure is defined as net capital
expenditures on the renewal and replacement of existing
assets and excludes new/upgrade capital expenditure

on the acquisition of additional assets. It is calculated

by dividing net asset renewal figures by planned asset
renewal expenditure. This ratio indicates whether the
Council is renewing or replacing existing assets at the rate
of consumption.

Annual fluctuations result due to the mix of asset renewal
and new/upgrade capital expenditure. The ratio of 78%
achieved in 2021 - 2022, while below the target of 90%,
reflects deferred expenditure on the vehicle replacement
program due to supply constraints and savings achieved
against planned expenditure in some capital programs
which did not impact the physical renewal targets.
Councils Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP) is budgeted

to achieve an average Asset Renewal Funding Ratio of
100% over the next three years and over the 10 year
term of the LTFP.

2022 2021 2020
Asset renewal funding ratio 78% 86% 58%

BORROWINGS

In assessing Council’s financial position, it is appropriate
to consider liabilities in relation to borrowings.
Borrowings are required by Council from time to time

to finance strategic long-term assets for the orderly
development of the City. Council’s total borrowings at
30 June 2022 were $3.563m — a net decrease of
$0.828m over the level of borrowings in June 2021.

KEY DEBT RATIOS

The following indicators are used to monitor Council’s
performance in relation to its current level of debt.

1 To address Council’s dependence on rate revenue, it has focused upon training and development of Officers to maximise grant opportunities and

annual reviews of its Fees and Charges Schedule.

2 Council’s cash flow is in a good position to undertake day to day operations, along with having sufficient cash to cover the balances in its Accounting
Reserves. Council’s cash reserves quarantined for ongoing multi-year and future major projects and long term asset management objectives have

impacted on this ratio.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022
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NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES RATIO

This ratio indicates the extent to which net financial
liabilities of the Council can be met by Councils’ total
operating revenue and is calculated by dividing the former
by the latter. The result below highlights Council’s Financial
Assets exceed its Financial Liabilities predominantly as

a result of a cash holdings and other financial assets
allocated for unexpended grants and committed funding
for capital projects carried over or retimed to 2022 - 2023
and beyond?. Council also retains sufficient cash reserves
quarantined for multi-year major projects currently in
progress and funding for planned major projects and long-
term asset management objectives.

2022 2021 2020
Net financial liabilities ratio (11%) (34%) (32%)
INTEREST COVER RATIO

Net interest costs are defined as total interest expenses less
total interest revenues. This ratio shows the extent to which
Council’'s commitment to interest expenses are met by

total operating revenues. Small negative ratios have been
recorded for the past six years reflecting interest revenues
being greater than interest expenses and operating revenue
being significant.

2022 2021 2020
Interest coverage ratio (0.1%) (0.2%) (0.5%)
DEBT SERVICING RATIO

This ratio shows Council’s ability to service its debt
obligations from operating revenues, with the target set
between 0 and 5%. The ratio confirms that Council has a
low and reducing debt holding and is well positioned for
the future borrowing outlined in the Long Term Financial
Plan. The 1.1% (diminishing) result is trending below the
maximum target of 5% as illustrated in the table below.

2022 2021 2020
Debt servicing ratio 1.1% 1.6% 1.7%

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

The Statement of Changes in Equity reconciles the opening
and closing balances of Council’s equity over the reporting
period. The balance of equity represents Council’s net
worth of $1,223.8m as reflected in the

Statement of Financial Position.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

The Cash Flow Statement details the cash movements for
the year and reconciles with Note 11 of the Annual Financial
Statements. The Statement indicates a decrease in Cash,
Cash Equivalents and Investments of $26.9m compared to

30 June 2021. As previously mentioned, a sizable portion

of the cash position is committed to unexpended grants,
carryovers and retimed capital works. Council also retains
sufficient cash reserves quarantined for future major projects
and long term asset management objectives.

RESERVE FUNDS

A review of the balances of these reserves indicates that
they are at a level sufficient to meet their purpose and
intent as listed in Note 9 Reserves of the Annual Financial
Statements. Council’s current reserve funds include:

Grants and carryovers reserve: $12.853m

This consists of controlled grant, contribution and council
funds for projects and capital works carried over to
2022-2023 or retimed to future years as required.

Open space reserve: $2.512m
It is considered by management that the current balance of
this fund is adequate to meet its intended purpose.

Asset sustainability reserve — general and major

new projects: $10.151m

The current balance in this fund is considered to be
adequate to provide Council with the funding capacity

to manage its long term asset management objectives.
Funding in this reserve will contribute to major projects
currently in progress including Tarnham Road Reserve
redevelopment, Marion Cultural Centre Plaza upgrade and
the ongoing renewal of the Coastal Walkway.

Water reserve: $1.153m

This reserve has been established to quarantine revenue
received and savings identified from the sale and use of
treated stormwater from the Oaklands Wetland to further
develop third party supply opportunities.

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (LTFP)
Council has a LTFP focused upon:

* Achieving the City of Marion’s Strategic Directions

 Addressing issues arising and opportunities identified
from internal audit reviews, service reviews and business
excellence assessments

e Maintaining a breakeven or better cash funding position

* |mproving the maintenance of assets in accordance
with Council’s Asset Management Plans, with a priority
on maintenance before renewal, and/or renewal before
new (whichever is more cost effective)

* Reviewing existing services and assets to ensure they
meet prioritised community needs

* Approving new Major Projects where it has the identified
funding capacity to do so

* Maintaining Council’s position for an average residential
rate that remains low (in comparison with other
metropolitan councils).

3 Council’s capacity to meet its financial obligations from operating revenues is strong and it has capacity to meet future funding requirements identified in

the Long Term Financial Plan.

City of Marion | Annual Report 2021 - 2022
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Annual Report Summary

- VA
2021-2022 ARION

The Annual Report is a comprehensive council document which includes information
prescribed by legislation, combined with general information about our key focus
themes within the City of Marion. The Annual Report for 2021-2022 is a reflection of
achievements measured against our strategic projects, services and programs that
council aimed to deliver throughout the financial year in accordance with the

Annual Business Plan for the corresponding year.
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.o. Kaurna Acknowledgement

°
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2 ..o. > This Kaurna acknowledgement was prepared in consultation with traditional custodians.

Acknowledgement of Country
The City of Marion acknowledges we are situated on the traditional lands of the Kaurna people and
recognises the Kaurna people as the traditional custodians of the land.

We spent $101.88 million on

O @@

$66.563m $4.217m $26.526m $4.574m

infrastructure development community environment
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Our City

95,650 56.17kms?
residents land area

839kms 492kms
of footpaths of roads

Year in review

Mitchell Park Sports and Coastal Management Plan

Community Centre City of Marion has been implementing a coastal monitoring

Our multi-million dollar sport, community centre, and dog program to detect changes in coastal land and identify
club provides indoor courts for basketball, netball and coastgl hazards. Five new CoastSnap monltorlng statpn_s
volleyball, facilities for football, tennis, netball, rugby, and were installed between Hallett Cove and Marino as a citizen
cricket, change rooms, kiosk, expanded car parking, a science initiative to engage the community in monitoring

neighbourhood centre, function spaces with kitchen and coastal change.

bar facilities. This expanded centre will create jobs and local Stormwater Management
business opportunities while providing a home for up to

1,000 players of local sporting clubs. 490m? of pavers were installed to replace existing dirt

. footpath in Moreland Avenue Mitchell Park as part of our
Food waste recycling program Permeable Paving Capital Works Project. Permeable pavers

Kitchen caddies were distributed to 39,902 households allow stormwater to infiltrate through the footpath and

in a bid to reduce the amount of waste going to landfill. By reduce stormwater runoff into the street.

diverting food waste, the project is expected to save . Or .

Council approximately $200,000 in landfill disposal costs Dlsablllty Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP)

each year. The project was funded with support from The DAIP demonstrates how the City of Marion promotes

Green Industries SA. the rights of people living with a disability, working towards
. ensuring all people enjoy the same access and inclusion

Marion 100 experience within our community. A total of 33 DAIP actions

A cross section of 100 City of Marion residents participated ~ Were successfully delivered during 2021 - 2022.
in the Marion 100 Community Sumr.“nit.. The summit was held City of Marion Community Grants
to seek ideas and hear the voices within our community to
assist in guiding Council on key priorities and the upcoming ~ Five grant streams allocate over $250,000 annually to assist
Council budget. organisations, groups and not for profits to deliver programs,
events and projects that benefit our local community.
Awards Projects and activities are required to be inclusive and as
«Youth Collective Committee — Battle of the Bands accessible as possible for all groups. A total of 101 grants
Major event of the Year 2021 - 2022 were distributed across the City of Marion throughout

2021-2022.
* City of Marion — Move it Program —

Leadership in Community Services and Development
Award for outstanding achievement and innovation in
Local Government.

To view the full 2021-2022 Annual Report visit: ﬁ - q Q CitvofMarion . itvofMari
marion.sa.gov.au/annualreport @CityofMarion i @CityoMarion
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12.3 Finance Risk and Audit Committee Annual Report to Council 2021/22
Report Reference GC221025R12.3

Originating Officer Unit Manager Governance and Council Support — Victoria Moritz

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive - Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT HISTORY

This report is presented annually to the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (FRAC) before being
presented to Council for noting.

Report Reference Report Title
FRAC221011R7.7 Finance Risk and Audit Committee Annual Report to Council 2021/22
REPORT OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this report is to present the Finance Risk and Audit Committee Annual Report for
2021/22 to Council and to invite Council’s feedback on the opportunities for continuing development
of the Committee’s operations. Attachment 1 is a copy of the Report which provides a summary of
the work of the Committee pursuant to the Committee’s Terms of Reference and Annual Work
Program.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The FRAC Terms of Reference provides that the Committee shall report annually to the Council on
its operation and activities during the previous financial year. This report provides an important
communication tool with Council in addition to the minutes received after each meeting.

The primary objective of the Finance Risk and Audit Committee is to add value through the
provision of advice to ensure that the resources of the City of Marion are being used efficiently and
effectively. It assists Council to accomplish its objectives by contributing to a systematic and
disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of financial management, risk
management, control and governance processes.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Notes the Finance Risk and Audit Committee’s Annual Report to Council for 2021/22
provided as Attachment 1.

ATTACHMENTS
1. FRAC 2021 22 Annual Report to Council [12.3.1 - 4 pages]
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A MARION

Annual Report to the City of Marion Council on the operations of the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee for 2021/22

INTRODUCTION

This report provides an overview of the City of Marion Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (the
Committee) operations for the 2021/22 financial year. Clause 4.2.1 of the Committees Terms
of Reference provides that the Committee shall report annually to the Council summarising
the activities of the Committee during the previous year.

During the financial year ending June 30, 2022, the Committee met on six (6) occasions,
including one special meeting to consider a range of matters within the functions of the
Committee’s Terms of Reference.

This report includes a summary on the following matters considered by the Committee:
¢ Financial Reporting
¢ Risk Management
e External Audit
¢ Internal Audit
e Prudential Reports
¢ Committee Membership and Attendance

Financial Reporting

End of Financial Year Reporting

The Committee received the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.
The Annual Financial Statements demonstrate Council's financial performance, providing a
basis for long-term objectives set out in the Strategic Plan.

The annual accounts show councils robust financial position with an Operating Surplus of
$256k (0.26%) within the targeted range of 0 - 10%. The operating result in 2020-21 reflects
the impact of a zero-rate increase in 2020-21 and the significant contribution to developing
our streetscapes and the progression of council’s digital transformation projects.

Budget Reviews

The Committee reviewed the Quarterly Budget Review documents prepared by management
and recommended them to Council for adoption. The Committee commented on the format of
the reports and would like to see the actual year to date versus budget year to date and
recommended a review of the format for future budget reviews.

Annual Business Plan and Long-Term Financial Plan

The Committee reviewed the Draft Annual Business Plan and Budget 2022-23 and Draft Long
Term Financial Plan in February 2022 and again after public consultation in May 2022. The
Committee provided comments and feedback on the reasonableness, fairness and equity of
the potential rating approaches for 2022-23, including in the context of Council’s LTFP and
on-going financial sustainability. The Committee also tested some of the assumptions around
the proposed KPI's and noted the new initiatives and service improvements incorporated into
the Draft ABP 2022-23 and Draft LTFP since its February 2022 meeting.
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A MARION

Annual Report to the City of Marion Council on the operations of the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee for 2021/22

The Committee commended the Council achieving a 2% rate increase for its community and
noting it was excellent to see the utilisation of cash reserves.

Risk Management
The Council’s risk management program continues to be aligned to the ISO31000 Risk
Management Standards and management have continued to make evident the ongoing
leadership commitment to further embed the risk management systems and processes
across the Council.

Quarterly Risk Reports

The Committee received quarterly risk review reports. The risk review is an internal process
undertaken by engaging with the Senior Leadership Team. The review also includes an
environmental scan outlining themes that are topical from a risk and opportunity perspective.
Key changes to the identified risks included the supply chain risk being elevated to a high risk.
The Committee noted the good work that has been done on new causes and drivers in relation
to the risk for poor data quality and information governance relating to the DTP. It was also
suggested to include the effectiveness of the control rather than the responsible officer.

Business Continuity Program

The Committee noted the Business Continuity Program Annual Report 2021-22 and provided
feedback on the program. It was noted that recent turnover of staff had resulted in a gap in
the program however new staff will be upskilled and brought up to speed on the Program. The
Committee suggested considering the impact on the loss of access to systems as well as
physical incidents.

Audit

External Audit

The Committee met with the External Auditors without management present. In response to
questions, the Auditors commented that the audit process had been smooth and an
improvement on last year as they were able to meet face to face with staff this year. The
Committee noted the communication between both groups was of a high standard and the
finance team responded appropriately to all discussions.

The Committee also received the outline of the Audit Plan for the financial year ending 30
June 2022. The Committee noted the scope of the audit to be carried out and noted the Chief
Executive Officer has executed acknowledgement of the engagement letter on 20 April 2022.

Internal Audit
The Committee noted the completion of the previous year’s internal audit program and
monitored the progress of the audits scheduled for 2021/22 which included:

2021/2022
e Fraud Framework Review
e Collaborative Project(s) Health Check
¢ Contractor Management (Collaborative)
e Project Management (Collaborative)
o Desktop review of Stakeholder Management
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A MARION

Annual Report to the City of Marion Council on the operations of the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee for 2021/22

All audits were completed prior to the end of the financial year. The Committee noted this was
an excellent achievement. Administration have committed to thoroughly reviewing outstanding
items and ensuring these are closed out appropriately and in a timely manner.

The committee continues to monitor the Digital Transformation Project, the ever developing
cyber risk environment and the current economic environment and the impact it may have on
ratepayers and Council.

Prudential Reports

Cove Sports and Community Club

The Committee reviewed the S48 report relating to the Cove Sports and Community Club and
recommended to Council the adoption of the Section 48 Prudential Report and confirms the
report adequately addresses the identified issues in relation to the Cove Sports and
Community Centre Stage 1 project.

Coastal Walkway

The Committee reviewed the S48 report relating to Coastal Walkway. The report was
considered by the Committee in confidence given the tender was yet to be awarded, however
has since been released. The Committee raised some concerns with the initial report and
requested these by addressed by Administration. Subject to these concerns being addressed,
the Committee recommended the S48 report be endorsed noting the project’'s support of
Council’s strategic objectives and the project’s alignment with the objectives of the Council’s
Development Plan.

Policies

Reserve Funds Policy

The Committee provided feedback on the proposed changes to the Reserve Funds Policy
including to consider amending the wording around increasing expenditure to aligning
expenditure, otherwise it may appear this is continually increasing. Suggested aligning
borrowings to the strategy, considering it is not appropriate to have no borrowings forever,
rather to optimise these.

Other Items Considered Include:
e HSE Program
e Insurance and Claims Annual Report
e Reserves Policy
e Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations
e Independence of Council’s Auditor
e Cyber Security
o Digital Transformation Program Updates
e Australian Service Excellence Standards — Audit Outcome
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A MARION

Annual Report to the City of Marion Council on the operations of the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee for 2021/22

Committee Membership and Attendance

The committee comprises of three independent members and up to two Council Member
Representatives. Members on the Committee include Councillor Maggie Duncan, Ms Nicolle
Rantanen, Mr David Papa and Mrs Emma Hinchey (Chair).

Committee Emma Hinchey David Papa Nicolle Rantanen Councillor

Member (Chair) Maggie Duncan
Appointed 1 Jan 2017 Appointed 1 Dec 2019 Appointed 1 Dec 2020  Appointed 1 Dec 2021

17 August ‘21 v v v v
12 October ‘21
14 December ‘21

22 February 22

26 April 22 (special
meeting

17 May ‘22
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In conclusion, this report indicates that the Committee has undertaken its principal functions
as set out in Section 126(4) of the Local Government Act 1999 which include:

¢ Reviewing annual financial statements to ensure that they present fairly the state of
affairs of the Council

e Proposing, and providing information relevant to, a review of the Council’s strategic
management plans and annual business plan

¢ Liaising with the Council’s auditor

¢ Reviewing risk management systems and processes across the Council

The body of work undertaken by the Committee is maturing and the Committee is striving to
ensure that its work is beneficial in the context of contributing to the City of Marion’s strategic
objectives.

The Committee would like to thank members and management for their valuable contribution
to the work of the Committee for this period. Council are invited to provide any comment or
feedback for continuing development of the Committee’s operations.

Emma Hinchey
Chair
City of Marion Finance, Risk and Audit Committee

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



CITY OF

A MARION

13 Corporate Reports for Information/Noting

Page 220

13.1 Annual Investment Report 2021-22
Report Reference GC221025R13.1

Originating Officer Treasury Accountant — John Stewart

Corporate Manager

Chief Financial Officer - Ray Barnwell

General Manager General Manager Corporate Services - Sorana Dinmore

REPORT OBJECTIVE

Section 140 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to review the performance of its
investments on an annual basis. This report was reviewed by the Finance, Risk and Audit
Committee at their meeting on Tuesday 11 October 2022 who noted the well managed and positive
results for the year.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council earned $364,649 of interest on its investments in 2021-22 at an average rate of return of
0.86%, a favourable outcome compared to the benchmark indicator (average Reserve Bank cash
rate) of 0.17%. The actual value of investment interest of $364,649 was a 4.0% favourable variance
against a final revised budget forecast of $350,450.

A summary of the 2021-22 Investment Performance is provided at Appendix 1 for the Council’s
information, showing that Council recorded a favourable result against the benchmark indicator.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. Notes the Investment Performance Report 2021-22.

DISCUSSION

Decision making regarding investments are carried out under the guidance and parameters set
within Council’s Treasury Management Policy.

Compliance with Treasury Management Policy (Investments)

Council has complied with all elements of the Treasury Management Policy. Compliance has been
achieved against the following major policy requirements:

Policy Requirement

Review

Council funds available for investment will be
lodged ‘at call’ or having regard to differences in
interest rates for fixed term investments of
varying maturity dates, may be invested for a
fixed term.

Investments in Fixed Term Deposits were made
between a range of 30-365 days with an
average maturity of 92 days and an average
return of 0.90%. The average ‘at call’ rate of
return was 0.87%. No Fixed Term Deposits were
required to be broken during the year.

In the case of Fixed Term Investments, the term
should not exceed a point in time where the
funds could otherwise be applied to cost-
effectively defer the need to raise a new

The variable interest rate borrowing facility was
not required to be accessed.
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borrowing or reduce the level of Council’s
variable interest rate borrowing facility.

Council will select the investment type which
delivers the best value, having regard to
investment returns, transaction costs and other
relevant and objectively quantifiable factors.

The Council supports the Local Government
Finance Authority of South Australia (LGFA) for
the placement of investment funds. The LGFA is
a statutory authority established for the benefit
of Councils in South Australia. Utilising the
services of the LGFA provides an efficient
means of investing surplus funds and a source
of highly competitive interest rates. All deposits
made with the LGFA are also guaranteed by the
Treasurer of South Australia.

To ensure Council continues to receive
competitive rates for investments, quotations are
regularly obtained from authorised institutions on
investments of $1,000,000 or more where the
period of investment exceeds 30 days. During
2021-22 all surplus funds were invested with the
LGFA, who in the process of market testing,
offered the most competitive interest rates.

Investments fixed for a period greater than 12
months to be approved by Council.

No Investments were placed for a period greater
than 12 months.

The Policy indicates where surplus funds can be
invested and that if they are invested in choices
outside of the Policy, Council approval is
required.

All surplus funds invested during the 2021-22
financial year were invested with the LGFA
which is an allowable option under the Policy.

The Policy indicates investment activities that

No investments were placed in such options.

Council would not participate such as shares in
private/public companies, listed or unlisted
property trusts and derivatives.

Performance against Benchmarks

Reserve Bank Cash Rate

Council earned $364,649 of interest on its investments in 2021-22 at an average rate of return of
0.86%, a favourable outcome compared to the benchmark indicator (average Reserve Bank cash
rate) of 0.17%.

Bank Bill Swap Rate (BBSW)

The Finance and Audit Committee commented, when reviewing the 2014-15 Investment Report,
that it would also be useful to benchmark against commercial rates being offered.

The BBSW is the rate at which banks will lend to each other. It is a short term swap rate which
reflects a compilation of average market rates supplied by domestic banks regarding specific
maturities of bank bills. The BBSW is published daily and therefore an annual average index can be
readily calculated for comparative purposes.

The most common index applied is the 90 Day BBSW which also closely aligns with Council’s
average maturity of 92 days. For the 2021-22 financial year, the 90 Day BBSW was 0.29%.
Council’s average rate of return of 0.86% is also favourable compared to the BBSW indicator, the
seventh consecutive year that this has been achieved.
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Interest on Investments Budget Performance

The performance of Interest on Investments is also monitored and managed against the Budgeted
forecast. The actual value of investment interest of $364,649 was a 4.0% favourable variance
against a final revised budget forecast of $350,450.

Conclusion

The investment performance for 2021-22 was satisfactory when compared to relevant benchmark

indicators. Investments were placed exercising due care and diligence and in strict accordance with
Council’s Treasury Management Policy.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Investment Performance 2021 22 [13.1.1 - 3 pages]
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Appendix 1

Investment Performance 2021/22

Interest on Investments

Interest on investments for 2021/22 was $364,649. Recent interest on investment history
reveals the following:

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Total Interest $929k  $1,111k  $1,214k $946k $503k $365k
(including LGFA

Bonus)

LGFA Bonus $90k $132k $168k $174k $185k $199k

The decrease of interest on investments in 2021/22 can be mainly attributed to the significant
reduction in the average amount invested per day, from $56.5m in 2020/21 to $42.7m in
2021/22. Funds were therefore not able to be kept on deposit for longer periods than was
possible in 2020/21, prior to being required to meet payment obligations for creditors, payroll
and progress payments for major capital projects. Last year’s Investment Performance did
highlight an expected significant reduction in interest on investment earnings with the
planned drawdown of cash reserves funding several major projects in 2021/22.

Competitive quotes were sourced during the financial year for Term Deposits and all
investments were placed with the Local Government Finance Authority (LGFA) who
consistently provided the best competitive rates. For the majority of the 2020/21 Financial
Year, “At Call” funds were only attracting an historic low rate of 0.10%. From October 2021,
BankSA could no longer offer any interest earnings on transaction accounts. This is still the
case and consistent with other Finance Institutions at present.

Peak Value of Investments

Investments peaked in September 2021 at $58.9m. The peak value of investments history
reveals the following:

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

$47.1m $52.6m $53.3m $58.0m $62.5m $58.9m
Jun 2017 Mar 2018 Dec 2018 Sep 2019 Sep 2020 Sep 2021

Traditionally investments reach their peak in the first half of the financial year due to a portion
of ratepayers paying their rates in full rather than paying quarterly. Large grant revenue
receipts and the timing of significant Capital Expenditure projects also have an impact on
investment balances.

FRAC221011R — Finance, Risk and Audit Committee — 11 October 2022
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Annual Rate of Return on Investments

Council’s Investment performance is measured against a recommended benchmark and
submitted for consideration by Council on an annual basis. This is in accordance with
guidelines contained in the “Investment Policy & Review of Investments” document published
by the South Australian Local Government Financial Management Group.

The benchmark indicator referred to above that measures our investment performance, is the
average annual Reserve Bank cash rate. The cash rate was static at 0.10% for the majority of
the 2021/22 financial year, however experienced two late upward movements as follows;

4 May 2022 From 0.10% to 0.35% (+0.25% movement)
8 June 2022 From 0.35% to 0.85% (+0.50% movement)

The annual rate of return on investment for the City of Marion for 2021/22 was 0.86% compared
to the annual average benchmark rate of 0.17%, providing reassurance that funds invested by
City of Marion were well managed. The following table and graph summarise Council’s history
of annual rate of return on investments.

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Annual Rate of Return 2.51% 2.37% 2.52% 1.80% 0.89% 0.86%
Average Reserve Bank 1.52% 1.50% 149% 066% 0.15% 0.17%
Cash Rate

Benchmark Variation +0.99% +0.87% +1.03% +1.14% +0.74% +0.69%

Investment Analysis

2.5

f““u

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

% Return Rate
= N
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M Average Return Rate M Average Reserve Bank Cash Rate = 90 Day BBSW
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The Council’s annual rate of return includes the annual bonus paid by Council’s principal
investment financial institution — LGFA. The bonus amount paid to Councils by LGFA is based
on a combination of Council’s investment and borrowing activity for the prior year.

The table indicates a positive variation in each financial year against the average Reserve
Bank Cash Rate. The 2021/22 result is the fifteenth consecutive year of a favourable outcome
against this benchmark. In addition, the 2021/22 annual rate of return of 0.86% also marks the
seventh consecutive year that Council’s investments outperformed the BBSW indicator.

As previously highlighted, Council’'s General Bank Account does not currently earn any interest
which is factored into the benchmark result. The inclusion of the General Bank Account
balances held in the overall investment performance does make it more challenging to achieve
a positive benchmark performance. As a result, it is important that the Treasury Management
function monitors and minimises any potential negative impact.

FRAC221011R — Finance, Risk and Audit Committee — 11 October 2022
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13.2 Community Event Fund 2021/22
Report Reference GC221025R13.2

Originating Officer Team Leader Vibrant Communities — Jacqui Clark

Corporate Manager Manager Community Connections - Merran Fyfe

General Manager General Manager City Services - Ben Keen

REPORT OBJECTIVE

To provide an annual report detailing the expenditure of the Community Event Fund for 2021/22.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Community Event Fund holds $15,000 per financial year to assist local not-for-profit
organisations to stage events or festivals, with the intention of providing a contribution to the cost of
infrastructure for events that demonstrate a benefit to the City of Marion and which are in line with
the City of Marion Strategic Plan.

In the 2021/22 financial year $17,472.40 was allocated to community events through the
Community Event Fund. The overallocation was due to some applicants needing to reschedule their
events during 2021/22 due to COVID-19, and the nett overspend was funded through the existing
2021/22 Vibrant Communities budget.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. Notes the report.

BACKGROUND

At the 26 May 2020 General Council meeting (GC200526R12), funding for the Community Event
Fund was increased from $12,000 per annum to $15,000 per annum. The maximum amount
available per application increased from $1,000 to $2,000 and the guidelines were updated
accordingly. These financial conditions were applicable for the 2021/22 Community Event Fund,
and outlined in the Community Event Fund Guidelines.

Timeline: Applications are open from 1 July to 30 June each year, unless funds are exhausted
prior.

Budget allocations: $15,000 is allocated per financial year.

DISCUSSION

The objective of the Community Event Fund is to provide funding for not-for-profit organisations to
deliver community events that benefit the City of Marion. The process is administered by Vibrant
Communities staff within the SmartyGrants platform. Events must be free, inclusive, open to all
(where possible) and align with Council’s endorsed guidelines to be eligible for this funding.

In the 2021/22 financial year $17,472.40 was allocated to community events with $891.00 returned
through the acquittal process. The overallocation of $1,581.40 was a result of some applicants
needing to reschedule their events due to COVID-19 and was funded through the existing Vibrant

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022
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Communities budget.

For the 2021/22 financial year the Community Event Fund was allocated to:

Page 227

Organisation Event Total Funding
Allocated
Christian Family Centre South Good Friday Sunset Gathering $1,973.40
Adelaide Cricket Club Inaugural Women in Cricket Day $2,000.00
Russian Cultural Centre Inc Maslenitsa — Pancake Festival $1,999.00
Lions Club of Hallett Cove & Australia Day Citizenship Ceremony $1,500.00*
Districts Inc and Community Breakfast
Junction Australia Waves of Sound Event $2,000.00
South Adelaide Malayalee SAMC Christmas and New Year $2,000.00
Community (SAMC) Celebration
Bangladesh Puja and Cultural Durga Puja $2,000.00
Society of South Australia Inc
Special Olympics Special Olympics State Games $2,000.00
AusCycling 2021 AusCycling South Australia BMX $2,000.00
State Championships
Total Allocated $17,472.40
Returned Funds -$891.00
TOTAL $16,581.40

*partial funding returned

In the 2020/21 financial year the Community Event Fund was undersubscribed by $6,117.60
(GC211012R12.1) largely due to COVID-19 and the impacts / restrictions imposed on large
gatherings. It was positive to see more community events taking place in 2021/22 and the
Community Event Fund being fully expended.

Applications are currently being received and administered for the 2022/23 Community Event Fund
with a funding allocation of $15,000. Information about the fund is available on the City of Marion

website.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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13.3 Questions Taken on Notice Register

Report Reference GC221025R13.3

Originating Officer Governance Administration Officer — Cassidy Ryles

Corporate Manager Manager Office of the Chief Executive — Kate McKenzie

General Manager Chief Executive Officer — Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE

To receive and note the information contained within the Questions Taken on Notice Register
provided in Attachment 1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
At the 8 May 2018 General Council meeting Council resolved that (GC080518M01):

Questions without Notice that were not answered at the same meeting will be entered into a
register. This register will be tabled as an information report at the following meeting.

Under Regulation 9 of the Local Government (Procedures at Meetings) Regulations 2013 (The
Regulations):

(3) A member may ask a question without notice at a meeting.

(4) The presiding member may allow the reply to a question without notice to be given at the next
meeting.

(5) A question without notice and the reply will not be entered in the minutes of the relevant meeting
unless the members present at the meeting resolve that an entry should be made.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:
1. Notes the report ‘Questions Taken on Notice Register’.

ATTACHMENTS
1. QON Register 25 October 2022 [13.3.1 - 1 page]

GC221025 - General Council Meeting - 25 October 2022



Attachment 13.3.1 Page 229
Attachment 1

Questions Taken on Notice Register S—

MARION

Report Meeting Councillor | Responsible Question taken on notice during | Response
Reference Date Officer the meeting
GC220913R12.4 | 13 Councillor | Manager People | Unfortunately, the very subject  |A request for current infant mortality rates was responded to by the
September | Hull and Culture — matter does not appear in this Public Health Information Development Unit (PHIDU) Director, John
2022 Jessica Lynch report and one of them | Glover.

remember was child mortality. It
doesn’t appear in this report, yet [PHIDU authored a 2019 report indicating population health data.
it was in the last one. Why PHIDU has not released a more recent report.

wouldn’t we have that in our IThe online data (calendar years 2016 to 2020 inclusive) reports no
report, and can we seek it please? [change in the infant mortality rates, as shown below.

Infant mortality rates 2016-2020

Location Infant Deaths (actual) | Infant Death Rate
Marion (C) 17 3.1
Edwardstown 5 2.6
Marion - South 6 33
Mitchell Pk/Warradale 8 4.3
Greater Adelaide n/a 2.7
Rest of SA n/a 3.1
SA n/a 2.8
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13.4 WHS Monthly Report
Report Reference GC22102513.4
Originating Officer Unit Manager WHS — Mark Jentsch

Corporate Manager Manager People and Culture - Jessica Lynch

General Manager Chief Executive Officer - Tony Harrison

REPORT OBJECTIVE

The objective of this monthly report is to provide Council with assurance that the City of Marion has
effective strategies in place to meet its legal obligations as outlined in the Work Health and Safety
Act (SA) 2012, and to monitor Council's HSE (Health, Safety and Environment) Plan 2019-23 target
of a 10% reduction of the LTIFR (Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate) from the previous year.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Targets and performance indicators have been established to measure the continual improvement
of the WHS (Work Health and Safety) program. Performance against these targets is demonstrated
in Attachment 1.

Local Government Risk Services (LGRS) Lost Time Injury data indicates that City of Marion is
performing better than similar Councils.

No Lost Time Injuries are represented in LGRS data for the current financial year.

The wellbeing of the staff involved is paramount and management review each incident individually
to ensure appropriate controls are in place to reduce or eliminate risk.

The organisation is continuing to implement various initiatives including the Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE) Strategic Plan 2019-23 and Programs to address compliance, key risks and
reduce the LTIFR.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Notes this report and statistical data contained therein

DISCUSSION
WHS Monthly Performance Report —September 2022

City of Marion’s HSE Vision is that ‘We can all make a difference towards achieving zero harm,
to people and the environment.” We are specifically focused on further developing our leadership
styles, organisational culture and systems committing to:

o Developing our people to lead change across the City of Marion

e Embedding a culture of safety and wellbeing as a part of normal business practice
Continually improving our WHS Management System (WHSMS) and Environmental
Management System (EMS) to achieve best practice

Hazard and Near Miss Reports (Internal WHS SkyTrust reporting data)
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Historical statistics inform us that when there is a healthy culture of Hazard/Near Miss Reporting,
there is a consequential reduction in injuries to Workers. Hazards and Near Misses are reported to
date for this financial year and are outlined in Table 1. They can be compared against those
reported last financial year which are outlined in Table 2.

The substantial increase in hazard and near miss reporting from the previous financial year
demonstrates a growing awareness of preventing problems before they occur. This is a direct result
of improved training and knowledge, understanding of accountabilities and the success of the HSE
Business Partner embedding into our operational areas.

Table 1: Hazard and Near Miss Reports - Financial Year 2022/23

Jul-22 | Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar- Apr- May- Jun-

22 22 22 22 22 23 23 23 23 23 23 USEL || 430
21 17 30 68 23
Table 2: Hazard and Near Miss Reports - Financial Year 2021/22
Jul-21 | Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar- Apr- May- Jun-

21 21 21 21 21 22 22 22 22 22 22 LT | )
8 6 6 4 4 5 5 8 8 3 4 11 72 6

Lost Time Injuries Reported (Local Government Risk Services (LGRS) reporting data)

Lost Time Injuries (LTI’s) are those injuries where a whole workday or more has been lost due to a
workplace injury. LTI's reported to date for this financial year are presented in Table 3 and can be
compared against those reported last financial year which are presented in Table 4.

There are no recorded LTI's for the current financial year.

Table 3: Number of LTI’s per month - Financial Year 2022/23

Jul-22 Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov-22 Dec- Jan- Feb-23 Mar- Apr- May- Jun- Total
22 22 22 22 23 23 23 23 23
0 0 0 0
Table 4: Number of LTI’s per month - Financial Year 2021/22
Jul-21 Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov-21 Dec- Jan- Feb-22 Mar- Apr- May- Jun- Total
21 21 21 21 22 22 22 22 22
0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 5

Table 5: Outline of LTIs reported - Financial Year 2022/23

o Description of Incident Mechanism of Injury Injury Description

1 Nil to report

Rolling Total Recordable Incident Frequency Rate (LGRS and WHS SkyTrust reporting data)
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Total Recordable Incidents include fatalities, LTI's and incidents resulting in the employee making a
claim for workers compensation. The Rolling Total Recordable Incident Frequency Rate (TRIFR),
outlined with a solid green line in Figure 2 from internal incident report data, provides analysis of the
average TRIFR over the last 12 months.

The current 12 month rolling TRIFR for the City of Marion is 1.5 injuries resulting in a claim for
workers compensation for every 1 million hours worked. It can be seen that this is a volatile
indicator due to the low number of reports.

Please note that the data set has changed from previous reports to ensure greater integrity.
Previous reports covered a variety of sources with including public liability reports rather than a
focus on work health and safety.

12 Month Rolling Total Recordable Injury Frequency

Rate
3 29 29 29 9 9 29 29
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Figure 2: Rolling TRIFR over 12 months

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LGRS Claims Data FY21/22))

No Lost Time Injuries have been recorded in LGRS data.

Lost Time Injury Duration Rate (LGRS Claims Data FY21/22)

No Lost Time Injuries have been recorded in LGRS data.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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14 Workshop / Presentation Items - Nil
15 Motions With Notice - Nil
16 Questions With Notice - Nil

17 Motions Without Notice
18 Questions Without Notice
19 Other Business

20 Meeting Closure

Council shall conclude on or before 9.30pm unless there is a specific motion adopted at the meeting
to continue beyond that time.
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